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Mr. Love: I think 50% is too high. 

Mr. Reed: I like the idea of "at least" 40%. It does allow you the flexibility 
if the market warrants it to go up higher in securities. 

Mr. McFarland: Any more discussion? Motion is 40% -- 25% -- 25% -- 10%. 
All this in favor signify by sayi ng "aye" . Opposed? Motion carried. 

Mr . Richards: At the very last page, the very last line of page 520, just scratch 
loan or loan guarantees and subotitute the words "and debt" . 

Mr. Gallagher: The words "and debt guarantees" . 

Mr . McFarland : Do we have a motion? 

Mr . Gallagher: I move that the last St:ntence read, "These investments may take 
the form o( equ:l.ty, debt, or debt guarantees." 

Mr. Edenso : Why don't we just say, " •• • equity , debt, debt guarantees, loins, or 
loan guarantees . " 

Mr. Gallagher: On (c) to include that same language. Instead of loans, debt 
guarantees. I have amPnded (b) and (c) to "take the form of equity, debt, or debt 
guarantees." 

Mr . Ml'.Farland: Is there any objection? Hearing none, motion is approved. We'll 
go on to Pol i cy Board. 

Dr . Logsdon: On (c), may I ask a question? I presume that on community development 
projects of municipalities, that taxes are the security? 

Mr. Gallagher: No , it could includ· revenues. 

Dr. Logsdon: Or r evenues. It's hard to foreclose on a municipality . 

Mr. G:1 llagher: It isn't that hara. 

Dr. Logsdon: So lt is taxes that nre the security. 

Mr. Gallagher: All the revenue. 

Mr. McFarland: All r ight. We 'll go to the Permanent Fund Policy Board now. 

Mr. McDowell: Could I suggest u worcJlng for {cJ ) '/ (d) Permanent Fund muy i nvea t 
not more than ten percent of its resources i n private housing in the form of debt or 
debt guarantees . Private hu~ding ln publtc Rector (c ) could incluJe all public sector 
housing. 

Mr. Gal.1:.!!.aher.: Does (cl) limit you to single family dwellingH , because private 
enterprise includes whole type families , then it 's rental situntions . 

Mr. Love: Does this l lmit (a) f rom investing ln profitable mortgages ns investment 
securities -- really highly rated mortgages? 

Mr. c:allaghe r: In the FederaJ nomenclature an inve1:1 tment grade security isn't 
mortgages. 
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Mr. Love: It isn't? -----
Mr. Richards: It depends on what you are mortgaging. I think the intent of 

what Jamie is raising is a valid concern. 

Mr. R~ed: Housing mortgage loans are not normally considered to be an investment 
grade SE:curity. 

Mr. Edenso: If you include this you:re going to g.~t in direct competition with 
the savings and loan institutions. There is one political hazard there. 

Mr. McFarland: I don't know that you are competing with the banks. You can do 
this through the banks if its possible. 

Mr . Edenso: If you'ge to buy from savings and loans and commercial banks, then 
why do you need (d)? 

Mr . Gallagher: You are buying individual Loans, you 're not buying the banks. 

Mrs. Fleischer: You might also want to buy individual loans because there may not 
be any other way for people to get loans for private dwellings in the bush areas. 

Mr. Love: [think by limiting to 10% you could be making it so you couldn ' t 
participate to the max lmum extent you might want in the secondary money market. 

Mr. McFarland: 
loan .--

There is a lot of other State money available for thiB type or 

Mr. Gallagher: You can also mnke the Loans from (c). You've got three areas 
from which ;ou can do housing loans, (bl, (c ), and (cl). The only thing (d) does it 
makes it for a single family dwelling. 

Mr. Love : Maybe it should be in additlon to any housing under (b) :rnd (c ) the 
Fund ~nn enter into mortgages up to ten percent . 

Mr. Reed: That clnrifics ic. 

Mr . Mc Dowall: Mortgnges for private dwellingR Ln Alaska. 

Mrs. Pi 1•LHcher: So Lt would rend, "[n nddltion to uny ho1rning LonnH untJer (b) 
or ( c ), the Permanent Fund 1'1ay invest not mor.o thun CUI\ percent or its t"l:!!'HlllrCC'!H 'l n 
pr!v11te dweJ lltt~s in Alnskt1 in the Corm of dcbL or debt guarantees ." 

Mr. McDowell: " ... the Permanent Fund ma y 1.nvcs t not more Lhan t en pcrcL'!lt or 
lts reirnurccs in prlvatl! dwell Lngs 111 the SL11 tc of Alaska in the Co=:m or dchL or debt· 
i.;1111 ra11 t E1CR. " 

Mr. McFnrlanu : You heard the moL1011. I H Lhcre rrny obj ec tion'{ llearln~ none, 
the mot ion LH ndo9tc<l. 'l'hun~ ls 11 new scrtlon (d). All right, the Polley llonrd now. 

Mra. l. l!hr: We hnd no d!scussion previously nbout who ~hould be t:he cnhinct members 
on the pol Ic y· board. When we voted on the Lssuc Lt wnA two cahlnt' t mernbcrn nnd iu 
Hcction (n) they are specified . r would like to s ugp,cst the pos~1lhllity of ch11nglng 
tills to "consb1tins of the Conuniaslone r of Revenue nnd the Dircc Lor of tlic 01.vlsion of 
Polic·y Development Planning." [think it would he prudent to ltave someone Crom the 
Governor ' s Of(icc who hos dealings wlth nlJ Stote ngenclcs and policies , on t he policy 
board in order to facll l tate that coordinution between gcnernl State policy und the 
Permanent Fund activities . 
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Dr. Lehr: I 111 make a motion to that. 

Mrs. Fleischer: I'll second it . 

Mr. Mc.Farland: Motion seconded. Discussion. 

Mr. Love : I'm opposed to the motion because the Governor already has a lot of 
influence with the two commissioners on the policy board . I think instead of having 
someone from the Office of Planning Development it should be someone more like the 
Commissioner of Community and Regional Affairs and the Attorney General. 

Mr. Gallagher: I'm opposed to the motion as proposed too bPcause a lot of the 
programs that we may be investing in or the policy committee are investigating, have a 
1very close coordination with the activit'ies of the Department of Commerce. Currently 
there are programs in the Department of Commerce -- renewable and non-renewable 
resources -- that have to be coordinated with the Permanent Fund, therefore, I think 
it necessary for the Commissioner of Commerce to be on the board for the close coordi­
nation of these other programs. The reason for the Commissioner of Revenue is that he 
is chief f i nancia l officer of the State. I f.eel that it has the correc t commissioners. 

Mrs . Fle i scher: I want to suppor '.: the intent of the motion. I would like to 
see it broadened and was th i nking of •.he Commissioner of Environmental Quality. Woul d 
it be totally out of line to have the policy boa rd approved by the legislature? 

Mr. Ga llagher: Only State board1 ar e confirmed where they ar e of a regulator y 
nature nod no t an executive function. 

Mrs. Fleische~: So you would have to broaden the membership of the policy board 
to include commisstoneiS who are confi rmed . 

:;: . Gnllaghcr : I t h:I.nk t he present member ship i s adequa te. 

Mr. McFarland: I think these two cabinet offi cers should bl~ appointed by the 
Gnvernor and these a r e the t wo people he would a ppoin t -- the Commissioner of Revenue 
and the Commi.ssioner of Commer ce . 

Mr . Love: 
nlno think t he 

hcr.nuse or thclr 
Attorney Gcner,.11 

l t hink the Comm:Lssioner s of Revenue and Commerce should be on Lt but 
Commissioner of Communi.ty and Regional Affnirs should al so he t he r e 
work on commun 1. ty development and muntci.palitics , then of course the 
Hhould be t here so he could work closely with the Governor . 

Mr. Pih l : I would like to speak i n fnvor of l eaving it 1.1:i it is . I ass 11me t he r e 
ls interchnnge between the people we ' re tnlking a bout nt t he cublnet level , and f Lhink 
tho whole bill provides (or input f r om the vurlous elements. 

Mr. Edcnso : J would t1 pcwk 11lso in f11vor of leaving the bonrd 111nkeup <1 8 I L ls 
current I y r ecommended ln the pr o posed bll L. Pd1nar Hy 1 d lsngrec with hnv'inA the 
Attorney Genern l inc luded on c: hc poJ icy bo111·d . Certainly t he Commi1:1Aio n ~r of Conuncrce 
and Economic Devel opment h11s cwo moJor areas of concern i n the State. One IH t he 
rcgulatlon of business throu~hout the St ntc , Licensing, et c ., securities , corpnr ntiona, 
nnd at the Hnme tlme he has rcFJporu:1lbl llty [or Atimulnt:f.ng the l!conomy , dlrcct loans 
Lo LiusinC"sscn . economic plann ing , etc . lie llticH work with other t:11binct mumber s , so I 
think he tA " very l111portunt per son to the ongoing nc tivi tlcs oC the pol Jcy bonrd. 
Al t hough the Commisstoner of Conunun Lt y und R~g Lona1 Affairs docs hove r es ponslbiJ ity 
for r evenue• ~harlng t his la not revenue s horing cype programs. Thi s l s nn 
investment: Lype progn1m. 
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Mr. McFarland: Could we have the motion stated again? 

Mrs. Lehr: I'm willing to withdraw the motion. I think it's fairly clear that the 
majority of the committee are in favor of retaining the commissioners. 

Mrs . Fleischer: I'll withdraw the second if the motion is withdrawn. But the 
overall problem as far as I can see, is how we assure that the policy board is going t o 
actually be acting in accordance withthe desires of the people of the State. In other 
words, how a re you going to assure that they're going to be responsive? 

Mr . Reed: I have one suggestion that I ' ve done a lot of thinking on and have 
discussed with a number of legislators as a potential . I would li.ke to see consideration 
being the public ' s direct input into the policy board on policy. It looks like the 
Governor has way too much power to put his philosophy in. He's appointed his commis­
sioners and apparently he then appoints all seven other members. I n effect, he has 
appointed nine people to the nine member board. I would like to see the public have 
a direct input through the election of three members run on a state- wide basis for 
election to the policy board. It could be a compensat~d position but one who would 
have direc t i nput from the people. 

Mr . Mc Farland: What kind of qualifications would you set for a member of this 
board? 

Mr. Reed: l t hink t he public and the electorate would s e t the qualificat i ons Cor 
the member s of t he board. On the elected people the population will determi ne them . 
I t hink thnt the people who would run (or this would be some of the mor e renowned 
peopl e ln t he conununlty. 

Mr. Edcnso : Your suggestion virturtlly ins ures that three people fr om Anchorage 
wil l be on thnt board. 

Mr . Mc Fnrlnnd: Anyone want to make .1 moti on . 

!:!!..:......!.~: 1111 make n motion thnt we have an additional member from the pubJ ic 
and the Cnmmissloner of Community and Rcg.lona l Affairs - - an eleven member board . 

Mrs. Fleischer: t'll second it. 

Mr . Mc For lnncl: /\ny discussion? 

Mr. GuJ l ag her: I would obj cc t. The C:overnor always hus a very loud voi ce on this . 
By addln~ a conuniss i oner who has an unusually loud voi ce 1t gives the Governor more 
predominnnc ~ . nnd T would ohj ert , 

Mr . J\l l en: I objec t on t he <iAmc ~rountJ s . 

Mrs . Fleischer : My conce rn l 1 thilt Lhc re he o Ji t t lc L>l t broader inpu t on lhc 
purl o f the cabine t member s than J .1st economic development an<l conuncrce . r th i.nk t he r e 
nre other factors to consider beai.d ~s commer ce . 

!'tr· G;1 llagher: They have t he chi.c f f .i.ntl ncl:ll office r o f t hl! Sla t e . 

Mrs . Plci schcr: /\re you sayin~ t hul Aenc ra lly they would provide a check nnd 
bnLRnce becnuse of their department s? 

Mr. G:11J.ugher: Yes. 
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Mr. Love: I would still li~.e to have the Commissi.oner of Community and Regional 
Affairs on as he is the one who do~s more with the individual communities. 

Mr. McFarland: You say that Commerce is strictly a business deal. What depart­
ments do you have under the Department of Commerce? 

Mr. Gallagher: Economic Enterprise, Veterans' Loans, Small Business Loan Depart­
ment, hanking Securities, Tourism and ATC, APUC, ASHA, HFC, Occupational Licensing. 

Mr. McFarland: That sounds pretty heavily consumer oriented to me. 

Mr . Rose: I would speak for Community and Regional Affair,s. Of a ll the State 
agencies it was created as a result of municipalities' desire to have representat i on 
somewhere i n State government, it is prohably the one agency that has the firmest 
grasp and they are certainly in the best position to know what the pulse is in the 
various communities, what they're trying to put together, their goals and aspirations. 

M1-. McFarland: Any further discussion? Ail those in favor of the motion say 
"aye. " Opposed? Motion's defeated. 

Mrs . Fleischer: I move that we add a word in the first sentence of (a). 
"There i s established the ... . the Commis sioner of Revenue , and seven members to be 
appointed by the Governor, with geographic dis tr i bution to be a factor." 

Mr. Love: I second it . 

Mr . McFarland: Any discussion? 

Mr . Ga llagher : I obj ect because I thi nk the Governo r will na turally do that. I 
don't t hink we woul d have t o tell t he Gove rnor his business . 

Mr. Mc Fu dand: All thof " i n favo r of t he mot ion say "aye". Opposed? Mo t ion - ------defea t ed. 

Ur. Logsdon: This says may not be employees of t he State . 1 wonder H it should 
lnclude municipalities as well as St a t e? 

Mr . GuJ lagher : I have a motion . T would l ike to st rike the word "by l ot" in (a ) 
and a s determi ned by the Governor . 

Mr. Love : I'll second t htt t . 

Mr. McFarla nd: hi there any objec tion to that? 

Dr. Logsdon: Yes . 

Mr. McFa d.nnd: Obj ection to t he motion made and seconded. Dlscusslon. 

Mr. Ga l l agher : On othe r boar ds I've been on, when we had con t roversl:IJ mcmbern 
we 11 l.woys pu t it on a shor t t e rm bas l s to s ee how it w1)uld wor k out . 

nr. Logsdon: That ' s t he ~rnme objec tion r have . lf you Wll nt to consl i t ut c t he 
bo11 nJ 1:1s you want it, you appoint t hem fo r t he en tj r c length of term ynu w1rn t . lf you 
do :Lt by lot t ha t removes t his possibility of t hnt much control . 

Mr. Edenso : The fi r st a ppoin t ment will be l ike t hat ; af t er t hat t hey wil l be 
fo r a f ull fo ur-year te rm. 
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Mr. McFarland: All those in favor of the motion signify by saying 1raye''. 
Opposed? Motion carried. We'll go on to (b) . The president of the Alaska Perm:>nFnt 
Fund shall serve as the chairman of the policy board but shall not be a vcting member. 
ls tr~re any objection to that? 

~Love: Yes. I ' ve always beenopposed to the president being the chairman o( 

the board. l think if the board can have an independence of its own I think it is 
best to elect its own chairman. I would muve to change that to say , "The president 
of the Alaska Pemanent Fund shall serve as a member pro tern w:tthout a vote on the 
board, and the board will elect its own chai.rman." 

Mrs. Fleischec: I'll second it. I'd like to hear the thinking on it though. 

Mr. Edenso: I would like to speak against that motion. The reason we ' ve selected 
the president to be the ehairman of the board and a nonvoting member of the board is 
because he would become a natural tie between the investment advisory commjttee and 
the policy board, and not direct the policy of the policy board. The members of the 
policy board make their own decisions concerning those policies based on the performance 
of the investment advisory committee and based on thP. relationships they developed 
both with the legislative body and with the public at large. 

Mr. Pihl : I would speak in favor o[ leaving lt JUSl: as it is . 
to several boards of corporate entities and I find in practice that 
it works effectively. You might consider changing the word "serve" 
pres l.<lent shall act as president of the board. 

[ ' ve had access 
this :.s the way 
to "ac t as" . The 

Mr. Love: This is about the craziest r~lationship I think we can come up with . 
The presldenL 'ls r eally the hired staff to run the Permanent Fund and ns cha lrman of 
the conunittee , he expects the committee to have a lot of independence . The chairman 
ls traditionally going to be runni ng the meetings and have a Jot of influence . 

Mr. Mcfar land: 1~e chairman generally has less to do with it than anybody else, 
and 1 think putti.ng him as chairman disarms him completely. 

Mr. Love: How can they discuss the firing of the chief execut ive officer wltl1 
the chairman of the board sitting there? 

Mr . Edenso: /\ny t i me the board wishes to discuss performance of anybody they are 
perfectly capable of doing so . They can ask that individual to leave. They set their 
own rules n~ to how the board itself operates. 

Or. Logsdon: How do other f unds handle this? 

Mr. McOowell: Most of them combine the investment committee and the policy 
dec i s ion boat I in one board, then there i s another board of governors. Dealing with tl1c 
one t hat makes policy , the president 11sun l ly chairs it. Also 11 Hual.Ly 1 he has a tic­
brcaklng vote when they have an even number of members . He has :i tic- hreakl.ng vote 
only but he does chair. lt' H done for admlnistrnt'lve convenience . This h1 when they 
arc ln thc1r sessions on polic1es, forgetting about when they r econstitute tl1e~selvcs 
1.nto the investment commitLee . It;s done to insure that the fu.LJ communica tion between 
the llnk -- Lhc one person who .ls the link from policy to i mplementation is the president 
or chief executive officer. It insures tlmt he understands compl.etely becnus~ he i;nt 
ri~ht there during all this di.scussJ.on the policy board committee hud on what t he1 
wunt him to <lo and sec that it gets done . Another thing 1 t i.s usuu lly a r ccogu:f.t:lon 
of the fa c t t ha t in any of these institutions one individual is most HCcountable to 
everybody, Lncluding the public , und the most visible to the public is that chief 
executive officer . They arc al so the ones who hire the presi.<lcnt . 
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Mrs . Fleischer: So instead of electing a chairman they hire him. 

Dr . Logsdon : Yes . 

Mr . McFarla.1d: Any further discussion? The motion is, "the president of the 
Alaska Permanent Fund shall not serve as chairman of the policy board." All in favor 
signify by saying "aye" . Opposed? Motion defeated . Any objection to (c) as it 
is written? No objection. (c) is adopted . (d) Members shall receive no compensation, 
is there any objection to that? Hearing none, it is adopted. Duties of the Policy 
Bo.·:ird. ( L) Sel~ct and appoint the president and other members of the ]nvestment 
commlttee. Any objection? Hearing none it is adopted. (2) Annunl review and approve 
long range operating plans, to include an investment program based on sectoral analysis 
or: the Alaska economy, the budget for the forthcoming year, and the financial plan for 
the following years. 

~~· Gallagher : Is the sectoral analysiB required before you make any investment 
in any nre:t? 

Mr. Edenso : It doesn ' t seem like you would want to make the investment before 
you do 1.t. 

Mr . Love: l think it ' s satisfactory the way it's written because the i n· ent is 

there • 

.!?.E.:__L_98Sclo~: Who does the secto ral analysis? 

Mr. Ml: Dowell : That ' s part of the ordinary business o [ the Fund . The l?ennanent 
Pund arranges for it. 

Dr. Logsd~:: 1ben it ' s administrative c osts? 

Mr . G:t Llagher_: Yes. 

Mr . Mc Farland: ls the re any objection to (2)? Hearing none , lt is :1pproved. No. (3) . 

Mr. G::iLLa~her: T move thnt on (3) we expand the idea of relati.onsldp. 

Mr. Eel~: r would 1.ike to point out that you say you arc going t o have a 
relntionsh tp , and l assume that the bottrd would undertake to establish somC' k.lnd of 
formal pro1:css for doing that. 

Mr . f.ilJ.LaghC'r: l'm trying to address the problem o( locnl communitl~s -- mokinr, 
sure they contact t hem. 

~lr~. __FJcisc~!_C:.r: We s hould do ·1 L under opcrntln~ pri.nci.pl~s . 

Nr . ~1t:Farla11cl : Why don't we , 1111<icr (3) 811y "have so1c.> r<?sponsibllity for 
cHtabY1~<\Ti1nr. re.int.Inns with t he gi.>nc rnl puhl le , lcgis lnturc , cti.: .

11 

Mr. Lovt·: r Lh lnk (:}) i.ll sa Lls [actory . '·lnybc we need Lo ndd nnothC'r sc1:Llo11 
(I 0) whlcil.tfcal ~ wf th re !al foMh I or: between munc lpallties. 

;:!_r.: .. ~cFa rlond: (11) review qunrtcrly reports from the lnvC'sLment c nmmltl l'l' con-
e<' rnin~ dcl"I A ions oud s11pe rvi~d on. /I oy obj f' C t 1011 lo L hat? ll c11 r Ing nonl', J l l:• 
approved . (5) review, coni:tider, ~nJ npprovl! pnl icies. Any obJc:ct1on? flcnrlng none, 
Lt's approved. Review and publis h an annuAl repo rt including finnnc ial statements 
audited by Independent outside auditors. 
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MI:.s... Fleischer: Such publishment being required in at least one state-wide 

newspaper. 

Mr. Edenso : Normally you publish only the financial statement but you don't 
publish the complete annual repor t . You could request that the financial statements 
of the Permanent Fund be published . You don't have to specify whether it goes into 
a state- wide newspaper or not. 

Mr. Fleischer: I think it should be in a newspaper. I don ' t want to see it 
in its own lit tle booklet that will sit in a n office of various departments . It 
should be in the newspapers. 

Hr. Edenso: The report will be formally made to the legislature . That is very 
wide public exposure . 

Mr s . Fleischer: I would like fo r the person on the street to pick up a newspaper 
and see what is happening to the Permanent Fund . 

Mr. Edcnso: One of the greatest impacts you will get is the distribution of 
income.-·u the Permanent Fund is not performing, thP. first people who are going to 
pick lt 11p a re the legislato r s and the Governor's office . And finally , when the thing 
is not dlstr tbu ting or earning any income that ' s going to be obvious to everybody . 

Mrs. FJ eischer : IC it is published i n the newspaper it will help make s ure that 
decisions that are: made all year long will be as prudent as possible. 

Mr. McDowell: You could have that down in 1.20 , Reports a nd Publication!->. 

Mr . Gallagher: An nnnual report should be Rent out , but publishinr, Lt In a 

newspaper would be awkwnrd . 

Mr . Edenso: Normally a.1.1 stockholder s i n a corporation get a copy of the nnnual 
report. 

Mr. Gallagher: T. agree that :Lt should receive wi.de cU.strlb11tlon ancl lenvc t he 
qucst lon open as to what media it takes. 

Dr. Logsdon: l don ' t think you will hnve Ln r equire Lt, I think Ir you lss11e 
l L 1 t would be publ isltcc.I . 

ttr . PihJ.: I t hink that requiring tt to he pubtlshed .l.n a ncwH p1lpcr .l.s .1wkwo r d 
nnd cost ly. We ' ve got in here t ha t ii: would be published nnd I'm s ure it would he 
nvnilabk throughout the State . 

Mn!.:_£.!.S_ischer: l understand Jt w11 1 b ~ 1111111c avnilable . But there 1H :l hig 
tl HfL•rencl~ bctwceu making somelhin g nvnllab l c nnd people getll.ng J.t -- :ill r ecords 
arc nvnllau l e to 1. nyonc who wnnts to go to J un e n11 o r somf;! office and look up the f ll t' . 
I L:hlllk LL should l C 1111111dotcd t hat it be publtshcd In t he newspnpcr , as the fore­
closure Llsts are 1 ul>J lshcd. I think It would be n ve ry good prevent ative in terms 
o[ mok1ng sure the lcc lslons are above-boarcl and as wise nnd prude nt ns possible . 
Thl!rc ' s no thl.ng llk1 public expos ure ; tlrnt's the whole princ iple o f democrncy . 

Mr . Gullngher : l wouic1 go for Lt as say lng wi.de distribution, Jeov" t hu mcdln 
uncl the form it takes Lo the bonrc1 ·- 11 manng~mcnt dec:l.sion what they determtne os wide 
d1strlbut Lon . 

Mrs. F l eischer: l ~ti.ll soy lt Rhould be published. llow do thi!y determ i ne Lhc 
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foreclosure lists? 

Mr . Gallagher : I publish an annual listing of my assets in every newspaper once 
a year and the State Treasury twice, and it says in the four judicial districts in one 
newspaper. 

Mrs. Fleischer: All right . Say that . 

Mr. Gallagher: 

Mrs. Fleischer: 
what purpose? 

Listing the assets is fine , but all the 17 pages of footnotes? 

Does the financial statement say who has gotten what loans for 

Mr. Galla~1er: They are sec up in a category. You will have U. S . Treasury 
bondi:i, corporate bonds, you' ll have housing loans "x" dollars , fishery loans "x" amount, 
and you will have that sort of a breakout . ~ou won't have everyone's name listed. 

Mrs. Fleischer: lt won ' t say which fisheries group or which corporation? 

Mr. Galla~er : It deµt: nds on whether it ls a significant amount. In an annual 
report you don t real l y r eport its segment, nur really describe It too much unless 
it's g r eater t han fivl' per cent of the assets. 

Ml'. Mc nowcJJ.: CPA finns p11l out a financlal re.port that breaks down the amount 
of bu;,i.nc;;_;-we ' r e talking e1bout. 1.i.st individually the things are are large a nd 
group together small things. So yu~ have 110% of t he fund minimum going into invcHtrnent 
grade sec urlttes -- not a l l sting -- .l ust probably eight categories and the dollar 
amount in each o ne and thc> .Lncome from the whole group • On the development pr.oject 
side you would probably list nl L tlie big ones. 

Mr._Ca .Uagher: H ' s not r.cal.ly of that much interest to anyone. 

Mr. Edcnso : The grc<'!tcst amoun t o( interesL you'1:e going t o get is how much the 
Fund makes. 

Mr. C.:al.laghcr: That ' s right. I don't think the people haven r€!al high interest 
111 wh o got whnt loan. 

Mr. Fl1! Lst.:11cr: The r e shn11ldn' t be ttny cause for that, but there could be . 

tf.r . Gallagher: lkcnus v or puhllc :Lnform.'.ltion ruJes, under confldentfality , thnt 
lA nvnlln.ble Lf t he ncwRpnpcr wa n ts to ~o and report it, t he Fune! hu.s to disclose .Lt . 
Bu t Lt ' s on l.y when IL :-i not<'worthy tilat t hey come and look for those th ings . 

~1r.:_~!!:1~!Lq_ : The 1111111111 I ct:!port me rely s t·1ncs Lh<• condition of t he company nt 11 
point Jn tlme 1111cl ltR performance over il period of t 11:.e . It doeAn't break down fl 

ApN: "lf: l c Joern ur lnv nst111c11tfl, lt'A nn nggrep,nt:1.. r cp1>.l us to c:ondl.tJon ;ind tlmc . 

Mm. Flcjsdrc r: I rt!11lly th ink t he people woulcl be lnterc>stecJ in knowlng where 
th<' mo-;;ey--l A gol-;-g-Jn the Stnte ln terms of clcvclnpmen1· 1 0111111 . Why c:rn't we h<l'!e the 
nudltcd rlnancfol st.:itcnwnt puL in at 1.crrnt once Cflch year in one newspaper Jn each 
of the> fnur \1 ·Jl.t·lt1l dls Lric;ts . 

Mr. McDowel I.: I thl 11k the two statemen ts thn t n rc t·he most impo r t1rnt arc the 
Lnc.·0111C""irtntc~nentand the lrn I nqcc s heet. Those arc rccogn l;wcl te rms 11nd lt wl 11 l Lmit 
it to t wo pnges . Then In the .:td you cnulcl Atotc if they wont the foll r epor t to wr'ite 
to a ...:c1·tai11 plncc n nd it wi ll be sent to t lwm. 
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Mrs. Fleischer: All right. The income statement and balance sheet shall be 
published in at least one newspaper in each of the judicial districts. 

Mr. McFarland: Any objection to that? Hearing none, it's dopted. Let 's go 
back to number 7, page 4. Any objection to that one? Hearing none, it' s adopted. 
Number 8 . 

Mr. MeDowell: This makes them the court of last resort for. a person who wanted 
an investment and was turned down on the basis that the investment was not in accord­
ance with the policy of the Permanent Fund in accordance with this law. 

Mr. Edenso: It gives the policy board the opportunity to deal with disgruntled 
people. 

Mr . McFarland: Any objection 'to eight'l Hearing none, it's approved. Number 9. 
Any objections? Hearing none, it 's approved . 

Mr. Swick: Is there anything in there anywhere th~ · tells about performance. 

Mr. McDowell : The reviewing end of it would be done by the policy board. The 
doing ot: it is someone eJse 's responsibility. 

Mr. Edenso: The Permanent Fund shall carry out operational evaluations (post­
audits) of its investments and investment programs and report the results to the 
policy board audit committee. 

Mr. Sw:lck : That ' s a report of what has happened. Is it an evaluation'/ 

Mr. McDow~ll: Well, what is a performance evaluation? 

Mr . Swick : Has what t he i nvestment committee done as good as it might havP done? 

Mr.;. Ede~'>_.2.! We 've got ;i measure of performance by some criter ia , and one of the 
e r l.tcria 'ls ln <1ccordnncc with the policies that have been f.orrnalJ.y adopted by the 
po.LJ.cy hoard. 

Mr. Mt: l101o1ell : Tl11! use of evaluations implies u standard. 

Mrs. FI cischer: Why ean ' 1· we use the word "performance" evaluat ion rn ther th:'1 n 
" o p c r~11· Lonn I." evalua t ton'? 

Mr. PihJ: Could yo11 soy "opcration11l and rerformance evaluntions "? 

Mr. Mc Dowel l : Yr!$ . 

Mr . Mc Fnr J and: A11 y ob ·jections to that? That's inserted i n number 1.0, page 7. 

Mr_i:;,.:_ F leischcr : So that would r (;!ad , ''the PeT111nnent ,Fund ghal. L provide for 
opt.::rntJ mw l nnd performanec evo Luatlomi (post- at1d!ts) of its investments .1nd i nvesc:­
mc..•nt pro~rc1mR and report the results to the pol i cy board audit committee . " 

Mr. McDoweJJ: \~hlch :Js t he recjpicnt of 1111 audit reports. 

t,t_r~cfnrland: I.e t ' s go back to pagi~ 1,, sect:f.on 050, Permanent Fund l.nvci:i tmcnt 
Commit tee. 

Mr. Mc:IJowcll: The pol'lcy hoard deternrl.neR the remuneratton nnd the terms of: 
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o( service, including how long their terms are for the investment committee. They 
have complete control over the investment committee except on investments . 

Mr . McFarland: Any objection to section 050 - section (a)? Hear ing none, it's 
approved . (b) A quorum shall consist of four members of the investment committee. 
All decisions will be taken by majority vote . Any objection to that? Hearing none, 
lt ' s approved. Section 060 , Duties of the Investment Committee. Sole responsibility 
to approve nll investment proposals and review all investments in investment grade 
securities. 

Mr. Gallagher: We mean by this last little part that the money market changes 
from cay to day and they should review those immediately after they are made. If they 
don't like it to tell the investment officer to get rid of it , but we don ' t want 
them to make prior appro~ On all other investments, prior approval is necessary . 

Mr. McFarland: Any objections? Hearing none, it ' s approved . 070 , Permanent Fund 
Prc!:d.dent. Shall be appointed by the policy board for a term of five years , may be 
reappolnte<l and shall serve at the pleasure of the policy board. Any objection to 
that? Hearing none, it's approved . The president shall (1) have sole responsibility 
for presenting investment proposals to the investment committee. Any objections to 
that? 

Mr . Pihl: The word "sole". Suppose you have an outstanding president and he is 
l l I r"ur ap·e-;iod of time , does that preclude us from doing anything? 

Mr. McFarland: You would have an acting president then . 

Mr. McDowell : You would set up the internal rules and would have to make provision 
ror that. 

Mr. Edcnso: lie can delegate it. 

r:!_:_~~d_and: Okny. Number (2) be responsible f:or the ordinary bu9iness of 
or the Permanent Fund :md the oq:~nnization, appointment, dismissal, and remuneration 
or the orflcers and staf:f . Is there any objection to that? Hearing none, it's 
npprovcd. (J) be rcsponsj~ · r for making investments in investment grade securities , 
H11bjcct to rev I cw hy the l11vcstment commit tee . Any obj cc tion? He:lring none , it's 
:ipprovccl . (/1) es t/JI' I.I.sh and main tain adcqun te and Appropriate organizational , 
opc> rntlni;, :rnJ rtnanclul controls. /l.ny objection? Hearing none , it's Approved. 
Srct lon 080, Stntus or the Permnnent ruud . The Parmonent Fund shall be excluded 
rrom the provisions of the Executive Budget Act. The president , officers , and star f 
of the Permnne11t F11nd arc in the exempt service. 

Mrs. Lehr : Our concern here ls for n means of legislative input to the Pennanent 
F11nd short of chongfog the charter. The way the bill is set up now the l.egisJa toni 
arc no t member!'! of the policy board nor do they confirm the pt"ivate members of thaL 
ho11nl. 'l'lwir only lnput .ls the confirmatlon of the two commissioners that are on 
the hon rd · We' re looking for o vehicle by which they will hove input ond o vfow of 
wh:it. tile l'crm:rnent Fund is dolnH through the reRularly established procedures . Under 
Lhe Exl'c'11L Ive Rudgct Act the operating expenditures would go through the re~ulnr 
hudg<.>L prrn:c•ss. They wou lcJ be reviewed by :rnalysts in the Executive Branch and the 
Leg I s lot iVL' Brnnch , nntl the performance woul.d be rcv1.ewed . This woul<l give the 
lcgl::il:iturc 01 Lime and context in which to look ot the per formance reports on what 
I.he l't!1"1111111cnt Fund is doing. Ct would also give the management of the Permnnent 
Fund o Rood forum for interchange of ideas witl1 the Stnte on what other programs 
arc ROin~ on, to assure some coordination. 
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It would be unfortunate if a great deal 0f State expenditures were going 
out through the budget into programs which the Permanent Fund is also spending amounts 
on. lt would be an opportunity for coordination -- for understanding between what 
the Permanent Fund is doing and what the State gov(.rrunent as a whole is doing. 

' As an alternative , if the legis!at ors have nothing short of ahangi~g the law 
that you may end up with much more resi:rictive legislation , more detai1.ed, and more 
closely defined on exact investments which could be detrimental to the operation of 
the Permanent Fund. I don't think they will cut out any operating expenditures but 
it is a non-disruptive and non- damaging way of assuring some checks and balances 
and some legislative input. 

Mr.. Gallagher: Within the first month of any session the Permanent Fund shall 
make presentation before the joint finance committees of the legislature , give a 
briefing as to what they ' ve done in the way of policies, their financial operations, 
what their budget is , what they've accomplished the year before, and where they are 
going. 

Mrs. Lehr: That would be valuable , but still the legislature has no recourse 
if they do"fi'tlike what you're doing except to change the law. 

Mr. Gallagher: That ' s when you should review the budget with them. 

Dr . Logsdon: What was the ob:jection to the confirmation of the policy board 
by the legislature? 

Mrs. Fleischer: It was unconstitutional. 

Mr. Gallagher: The Attorney General says "the Legislature shall confirm 
c:omml.Hs (one rs and regulatory boards" it doesn ' t mean executive boards . 

Dr. Logsdon : As we conc eived this , the legislature was the primary board . They 
should have the power to confirm. 

Mr. Gallagher: I will convey to the Governor that it is the firm feeling of 
the board that all members should be confirmed by the legislature. 

Mr. McDowell: Could you put that in the form of a motion; that that's a 
r ccommenda t :l.on and that it 's not going in he r e because it's presently unconst:l.tut­
ional. 

Mr.. Gu llagher : I 'll make the motion. 

Mr. Love : J ' 1i second it . 

Mr. McDowell: l strong ly recommend thnt it be done , too. 

Mr. Md'arl.111d: We hnve a motion, is there any objection? 

~C:uH~her : Let me make the case for why it shouldn't be. If we have 
Alri!:lk11, l 11c . or some !:lort of dividends flowing back into certain programs, you're 
1naklng the Permanent Fund responsible fo r getting out and doing n good job and getting 
: 1 mnrkC't return. If the legis1ature ha s power over the budget , they can always 
point thclr finger. t o the legislature and say , "we couldn ' t get a return because we 
couldn't hir. e the highest qualified people to ge t the job done." 
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Mr. Mc.Dowell: If it is included in the Executive Budget Act then. tht legis­
lature is a.ccountable for the achievement of the purpose . If it is not included 
the policy boayd is completely accountable for achieving the purpose. 

Mrs. Lehr: Do you think the legislature is held accountcble for the operation 
of various State departments? 

Mr. Gallagher: Yes . 

Mr. McFarl£nd : What are we doing with 080, approving it the way it reads? 
Any objections? Hearing none, it's approved. 

Mr. Gallagher: I move that we apnrove the reserve section. 

Mrs. Fleischer: That 's fine with me. Under operating principles. The prudent 
person rule is fine, but I'd like to put something in front of it. Insert as (1) 
moving the rest down, "the policy board shall consult with local communities on any 
project that is impacted?" 

tJr.s~ Lehr : How about the wording, "The Fund shall be sensitive to the views 
of the impacted community and shall include an analysis of those views and impact in 
the investment or loan proposal." 

Mr . Edens.:.1: I object to the use of the term " impacted". I think it's very 
had analo~y. 

Mr. McDowell: How about as part of item 8 - operational principle. You could 
add "community views" to the list of other. considerations. 

Mr. Edenso: I wouldn't object to that if. you struck "social". 

Mrs . Fleischer: I don't think we should strike "social" . I think people 
should be able to look at t h is legislation and feel the Permanent Fund would pay 
attention to the needs of the smaller communities . I feel it should be separately 
listed . 

Dr. Logsdon: It says , "the Permanent Fund slu1ll make investment decis ions with 
reg: rd to economic and other considerations" including this list. 

Mrs. Fleischer : Wlwt language do you use to differentiate between -- I 'm 
tall ~ lng about cement plal/S? 

Mr. Edenso: rr a community really objects to an investment project proposed, 
thC:!y can always zone it out of existence. 

Mrs. Fleische r: I ,iust think it wlll make people feel better if they read 
this anti they sec those words in there. 

Mr . McFurland: What are the words again? 

Ur. Logsdon : "The Permanent Fund will make no investments in a communi.ty :lf 
the community objects to that investment." 

Mrs. F.1.cischer: That's what I would like to see . 

Mr. McDowell: Under t he philosophy of general word i ng, thoRP t-h ! :-.6 s i.1 most 
coses have been left to be pointed out in this document as items where t he 
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Permanent Fund is being put on notice about a certain area without being too 
detailed because we dor1 ' t want to exclude. other good things that could and should 
he done in the future which we don't know about now. It's cited that the policy 
board shall have relationship with local communites . 

Mrs. Fleischer : That is not the same thing at all. 

Mr . Md>owell: But that'R deallng with the general. pol.icy and investm~·nt: 
program level At a specific investment level you're talking about economic, 
employment, income distribution, environment, and health an<l social. Now youl.r 
just talking 3bout ~dding one more . 

Mr. Gallagher: "The Permanent Fund shall be sensitive to the views of the 
affected community and shall include an analysis of those views and effects in 
the determination of making lar ge investments." 

Mrs . Fleischer : I like that . I'll move for that . 

Mrs. Lehr : I'll second . 

Mr. McFarland: Moved and seconded. 11.ny further discussion? Any objection? 
Hearing none, it ' s adopted . 

t!E..:_ Gallagher: Under duties of the policy board, number 10, "shall hold a 
hearlnA", or whatever other words are appropriate. 

Mr. :k:Farland: "Within the first thirty days of the start of the session the 
PoJ.1.c:y l3oard sha Ll report to the Legislature. " That will be 1.tem 10 under policy 
board. Any objection to that? Hearing none, that's approved. 

Mr. Pihl: Under 080 , I wondered if it would be wise to have an item 7 speci­
fying the power to borrow and guarantee. 

Mr . McFar.land: It ' s covered under cont:rncts . We're on page 5, down to 
Reserves. Any objections to 090, Reserves? Hearing none, Lt ' s adopted . 
nperntional Princ lplcs, 100 . The operations of the Permanent Fund shall be con­
ducted in accordance with the following principles. Item (1), any objecti.ons? 
Hearin~ none , item (1) is approved . Item (2). Any objec tion? ill?ar!nR none, 
that's adopted. Number (J) shall not assume responsibility for m:rnaging. Any 
objectlon to t hat? Hearing none, it's adopted . Number (4) . Any objection? 

Mr. G;-11.lagher: The w1rd "subsidy" is buried deep in th~ paragrnµh. Perhaps 
lt should be redrafted t r cad ighten whn t mRrke t rntes ore . They aren ' t the highesl 
rate, they are like tnsr-ruments. 

Mr. McUowcll: Terms and conditions normnJly obtained hy private inveHtors for 
Almilnr [lnanclng. 

Mr . Edenso: Why don 't you Just add it as a separate paragraph? 

Mr. Gallagher : Thnt might be Cine. 

Mr. McFarlAncl: T Hke it the way it is. lf there i s u question they 're going 
t o ask for answers. 

Mr . Edenso: f didn't have nny problems with the wa y it wns written. 

Mr. Swick: C think the english would nllow you to take the second phrase of 

-22-



the singl e sentence that star ts , "unless the legislature • • ," , just make that the 
firs t sentence. 

Mr. Edenso : Then you 1 r e putting too much emphasis on the subsidy and not 
emphasizing the normal operations of the Permanent Fund 

Mr . Mc Farland: ls tlwrt• any objer.tion to number (4) as it ' s written? Hearing 
none, it ' s approved. Number (S) . 

Mr. Swick: The word "seek" gives me some comfort, but shouldn't the wor d 
"shall" be "may"? 

Mr. Gallagher: Yes. I move we adopt the word "may". 

Mr. PihJ: 1 1 11 second it. 

~cFarland: "The Permanent Fund may seek to r evolve its funds by selling 
its Lnvestments .. . '' Any objection to tha t wording? Hearing none, it's adopted. 
Number (Cl) "the Permanent Fund shall seek to maintain a reasonable divc rsif ication 
ln lts investments . " Any disagreement with that? That ' s a pproved . Numbe r (7). 
/\ny objection to numbe r ( 7) ? Hearing none , it's adopted. Number (8). We added 
somethin~ to that , didn ' t we? 

Mr. McDowell: Second sentence -- ''The Permanent Fund shall be sensi tive to 
the v l e\...s or affec t ed local communities and shall include a n a nalysis of those views 
ln prupns~ ls fo r large i nves tmen ts" . 

Mr. McF1JrJan<l: /\ny objectior to that wording? Hear i ng none, it 1 s approved. 
Numbe r (9) . Any o bjec tion to number 9'? Approver. Number (10) we al. r eady agreed 
1m -- 'l'h<' Permanent Fund s hall provide for 1Jperutional and per formance evaluations. 
Number (llJ Any objection to that? Hearing none , it ' s approved . Sectlon 110 , 
Uorrnw,1ng Powers . Any objection to that paragraph? lleadng none , it's approved . 
Sl•ct l.01 120, Reports and Publicatfons . 

Mt. McDowe ll : Tl1l8 ls whe re we wlll ad<l nnother sen tence t hal says , "The 
nnn ua L J.'1Come s t a't cment and balance shee t of the Permanent Fllnd i:;hall be puolis hcd 
l n at J cost. . .,~ newspaper in each judicial d1Rtrict . '' 

Mr. McFarland: /\n y obje1; tion to tha t? Hearing none, it's npprovcd . Section 
lid) , 'l'c<:hnlcul Asslstnnce. 

Mr. c:aJ I agher: One thing T 'd 'ike to po ln t: ou t he r e J s thu t tei:hnicc; l nssJ titnncc 
Is an opcrnting expense and therefore Lt's ded uctlhle under operu ting expenses . 

l>_r . Lo~8do11: So if there lr> no f nvcstmc!n t rnncle t his lR an :ul minl~trat l ve cos t'l 

~fE.:_ Gullagher : IUght. 

Mr . McFar fontl: Any oli:jcctions'/ llearing none , ll10 is app rnvud. Section l50, 
Cnn!:Llct of lntt'rcAt Po licies . Any objectlc-n to that'/ 

Q.!·_.~o~scl on: 11rn ' L Jcg:ll ly " s holl" n term Lhat is used to be ·tery pos1Llv<! 
r at lll' r Lh.111 "will' ' ? Suc h n s " s hnll" disqualify themselves . 

t!!:_. Gu.I l aghcr : We 've goL :i ri uorurn rcciuiring f·rnr peo!>le to he on the lnvear:ment 
comm1tlrc . three peopl e n r c required if you need o m1~or1ty and if one or t wo diR-
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ql lify themselves you'd never have a majority. 

Mr. McDowel l : They ~hould be in the inevestment committee meet ing because they 
have the most information to contribute to the discussion . 

Mr. Gallagher : I'm just pointing out that when you qay "shall" d''lqualify 
you ' re really ci.nching the requirements. 

Mr. McFarland: You do, but I think you have to have it . 

Mr . McDowell : It's a public f und . 

Mr. Swic k: Does the structure allow someth i ng like tha t to be elevated t o the 
policy board ? 

Mr . McDowell: No. The po licy board could consider interpretation of 150, but 
they cnn 1

t cons ide r the inves tmen t conunittee. 

Mr. Edenso : Then they just consider their owninve stmen::s at convenient times 
where they have a conflict of interesc . You ' re not going to have all thr ee of them 
walk i.n nt the snnie time with some kind of problem . 

Mr. Gallagher : nut when you disqualify one , are 1ou no longer in a quorum? 

Mr. McDowell: The quorum applies to whether you can hold the meeting, and 
o[f i clnlly , it also applies to the vote . The mbjority vote must take place within 
the quo r um ; therefo1·e , l e c3n't djsqualify him!1elf after the meeting is st~rted . 

Mr. Edcnso: 'flwt ' s only iC they e r e ndclresslng themselves to a pa-:.·ticu lar 
lnvus.Lment. f he meeting itself ls not disquaJ.Hled lf t hey have a quo·cum because 
Aome mily o r may not have an lnterest in a pnrr· icular investment . 

Mr. Gallagher: But you ' ve got to l11tvl! four pc '>p le t here fo r eve.ry vote? 
[f one pe rson disqua.LHics hi mself . 

Mr. Edcnso : 'f'h e11 Lhcy c t1n ' t vote• on Lh11t Inves tment. I think "shall" is 
proh:lh l y proper, nlthough l. 'rn not d .l1rnnr.isf1.ecl wlth "wi.l l ". 

tf.!~ th I.: [ rlon' t al!e onyth ing In he r e thnL rcquJ.res a m<'mber to make known 
ony l11l0n•st In 11ornethlng Llint b i bc ln~ consider ed . 

Mr. ~lc l>owell: There i s a dlsc losurc Lnw that l s covcr NI at the very cntl . 

Mr. Plld: What lf: he j ust doetrn't com1.: to the mectin~i' 
rcqulrl~LO!iiilke 11 di.sclosun~ of nny Inte rest. 

think he s houl<l be 

Mr. EdcllSI) : thlnk Lhnt ' R requlrc>d 11111.lcr iwc· Llon Lhrec at the end. 

Mr. Mc Dowell: All r1Aht. Lct ' A sec , "Membe r s of the lnvestment commi ttee s hall 
dl::i c tQ;iC.-:- LheirlntcrcAt ln nny lnvestme nL prnposn l nnd c.Jlsquali.fy t hemselves from 
votlnA u 11 lL ." How' s thut '! That r,cts 1L durinn the Jn tc rlm before you have Lo 
repo r t 1 t. 

Mr. Mc Forlnnd: I tl o111Jt t lwt .111yhoc.Jy wl LI h<! 11ppointc d ro the board who wl 11 
hnvc to worry 11bout fi nonc:ln l d i. s c l os11r<'. 

Mr. G111l11gher : l was Just pointing out the probl em. As un officer of 11 

1.: orpornt ion do you have 11 finnn c i n I interest'( 
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Mr. McFarland: Only to the stock. 

Mr . Motley : Why don't we leave it at any klnd of financial interest. 

Mr . Gallagher: Maybe it is something the policy board should handle itself. 

Dr. Logsdon: You could require disclosure without: disqualification . Let 
Bomebody else decide it for you. 

Mr. Pihl: I really think the requirement for disclosure should be in. 

Mr. Gallagher: I feel that it should be defined by the policy board, but I 
was trying to make sure that we don't put anything in the statute that prevents the 
policy board fr~m making a reasonable judgment. 

Mr. Edenso: Is our wording now, "shall disclose their interest in any investment 
proposal and disqualify themselves?" 

Mr. G~llagher: I so move. 

Mr. Motley: I second. 

Mr. McFarland: Any further discussion? Any objection'? Hearing none, it ' s 
adopted . Location of the Fund. 

Mr. Callagher: T move to strike that. 

Mr. Motley: I second. Strike that whole section. 

Mr. McFarland: Any objection? Hearing none, it's approved. Sec. 170 , 
Confidentiality of information . Any objectio1i to that? Hearing none, it's approved . 
Sec. 180, Tax Exemption. 

Dr. Logsdon: I assume they are exempt from federal taxes? 

Mr. Motley: Yes. 

Mr. McFarland: Any objections to 180? Definitions - any objections t o the 
dcf inltTOns? 

Mr . McDowell: I suggest you modify (3) t.:o change l oans and Joan guura ntecs 
to debt and debt guarantees . 

Mr. McFarland: Anything else under definitions? !!caring none, it's npprnvcd . • 
Sec. 110 , Policy Board I nvestment Connnittee . l don't know what that is. 

Mr. McDcwell: It's exempt servi.ce . -
Mr. Mcfllrlan<l : Any ob:j ec tion'l Ilea ring none, it's approved. Sec . 2001 

Mr. McDowell: It adds the Permanent Fund, boards and commissions, members 
of which must disclose t heir financial in t eres t. 

Mr. McFarlnnd: Section (4), Investments Outstanding. 
Hct1ring none, it's approved. Five is :rn emergency clause. 

Any objec t ions to that? 
Any obJection to that? 

~Gallagher : I t takes effect immediately. I didn't want to wait 90 days. 
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Mr. McFarland: What was the other document we had? 

Mr . Gallagher: That was the interim investment. 

Dr. Logsdon : There was one section that we didn't approve. We approved c.very­
thin~ except the one on the constitution of the Permanent Fund policy board. 

Mr. McDowe~l: There was only one change and we approved it. The change was 
one sentence, "the initial term shall be one member serving" we jus t took out "by 
lot". 

Mr. Pihl: That was "determined by the Governor" wasn't it? 

Mr. Gallagher: The Governor sends down a ~etter saying you have a one year 
or five year appointment. 

Mr. Edenso: It l eaves it up to the Governor to do it . 

Mr . Gallagher: There were a few minority opinions on a few subjects. When we 
send this to the legislature, how shall we include the minority views? 

Mr. McFarland: Nobody asked to be recorded that way. 

Mr. Gallagher: When it goes down to the legislature, do you want a report of 
why we cli.d each section this way? 

Mr. }1otley: I think it ' s goJ.ng to go through so much anyway that we ' ll never 
recognize it afte1wards . 

Mr. McDowell: It nlready exists as a matter of public record in the consultant 's 
reports and the trnnscriµt s of all the meetings. 

Mr. McFarland : Do you want action on th..! in!:erim bill? 

Mr. Gnllagher: YeR. 

Mr. Pihl : Docs the interim legislation provide for getting the policy board 
:rnd the investment committee in motion? 

Mr . Motley: You cnn' t do it without law. 

Mr. Ga l lagher: T thJnk we 're going to do that right here. 

Mr. Motley: It ' s cleaner just to lcuve it the way it is. The money is coming 
ln and we ' ve got to start putting it in investments. 

Mr. P l hl : [ just wondered about fo rming invcs tmen t comm Lt tees . 

Mr. Mot lci: l thlnk you're better off not do ing it. 

Mr. Grillagher:, : noes everyone understand nlUnb~r one i s U. S. Government 
securit.i.es7 Number two is things like t he Worl<l Bank and lnt:cr-Americnn Development 
Hank. Number three ls CD ' s - Corporate investment groldc securities must be doubl e A 
or ubove . Bankers .1cceptances; repurchase agreements one through Clve; deposits of 
S&L 's not Lo exceed !Oi'.: of each S & L' s deposits exclusive of f el..leral, state, nncl 
municipnl deposits , and tha t also goes (or credit unions . 

Mr. McFarland: Any objections '? llearing none , lt 1
H approved. 
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Mr. Edenso: Is that the whole bill? 

Mr. McFarland: Yes . 

Mr. Edenso : No changes to it? 

Mr. Motley: Mr. Chairman, I want to compliment you on your ability to 
shepherd these two deals and you've done a good job of keeping it going . 

Mr. McFarland : It was a well thought-out document, really. 

Mr. Swick: I think the whole Investment Advisory Committee ought to be 
conunended . You came up with a fine job. 

Mr . McFarland: Meeting adjourned . 

Meeting adjourned at 4:00 p.m. 
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Arra Econ11omic Program ~or 
~rit10 Comhng Decade 
Gar Alperovitz and Jeff Faux 

Without funclamental change in the 
way our economy is organized, the 
prospects for the next dee:tde and 
beyond arc grim. F11ll employment will 
not be achieved, price innation will 
rn11ti11uc, and real and politically in· 
spired shortages or raw 111alcrials wi ll. 
.. tc:1d ily erode our st:111tlar<l of li\•i11g. 
What upswi11us there arc will be !>horl· 
livccl n11d shallow. 

The l'('S lllt will be an :11.:cc lrralion or 
soci.11 .1nci p1lli1kal discontent. Expcc· 
t:it iuns of good jobs, clcccnt housing. a 
college cd 11ca t ion, a sccu re old age. 
wi ll bcCOlllC h:trclcr and harder to r111till. 
The tendcndcs uf our large 11rba11izc<I 
Sl)cidy tuwnrd crime n11d per~onal 
alic11 :11ion will be aggra,·:ited ilS people 
feel the 111~clvcs slipping further n11 cl 
1'11~thcr behind. 

Our prnhlc111s will 1101 be !>11lvcd 
~i111ply by '"l>'>tituting De11101.: rat·; l'ur 
1~ 1: Jlll hlicn 11'\ or \•ice 1•ersn. P11I it ka I par· 
ti cs ou t 11f power "ill. nt' l'n11r~c. 
\Jcncfit frrnn h:ul ti111cs al lir .. 1. llnt 
1111cc i11 Jll.)\ll'I'. they , ill h:1'c to 11111\lcr 

/~"cliror '.r 111111•: '/'111• .(111 11m111g 111·1il'!c 11·11s 
m/11pr1•d ji'u 111 11 rt 'JWl'i !wing /)tT/"11"'" 
.for 11 1:ro11111'.f"?SftJ1111d 11i1ms !1y lit<' 1~·x· 
plur11t1J1y P1<~i1•c.·1 for 1~·umo111ic A/1,•r· 
1111tfr1'.t i11 \V11~1ii11r,tu11, O.C. f 1519 r1111 
111•,·1it·111 A1•1•1111e. N. l'Y., l l'r1.r/::'1,gt1111, 
/). C. 200.16). 'f'!tc r1•1111r1 crmt11i11s 1111 
11111t!ysis of t•co110111ic 1111tl 111ili1ical 
1r1•11cls for t!tc coming 25·yo•111· 11Ni11d. It 
11r1:11cs 1!t111 r/,.. lhtiro·tl Sro1t1•s is 111 th1• 
cml 11f 1111 ec11110111ic cm r!tt11 lwg11 11 ll'it/1 
World \V11r II. Whar i.\ ri·q11i1'o'tl 01•t•r 
the f'tJ111i111: tl1•c11d1'. my the 11111/iors. co· 
dir1•ctors of 1 !t1· 1u·1>jt•c1, is 11 s11T•'/Ji11u 
n •11r1:1111i:111in11 of 1!t1• 11111jur l 'OrJ>untlt! 
111ul go 1·cm1111•111 i11s1i1111io11.f thaf 
tlo111i11t1tc rhL• t•comJ111y i11 onfrr to pro· 
tf11ce 1'CO llOllliC ,(('Cllrify 1111(/ t'l.'(Jl/UllliC 

d<'lll OC/'llC)'. 

the courage lo address problems 
cliredly--0r they will soon be out on 
the street. The steady rise in voter 
apathy and the num\Jcr of voters who 
consider thc1mclvcs independent of 
either pilrly will continue. 

The problems arc S) tcmic ancl in· 
lcrlwi11ed with each other to form ii 

maze or policy traps: Currently lllll'\l 

Amcrkan cco110111isls - lihcral and 
comerval i\'c - agree th nt. 1111for · 
t1111atcly. the 1c1111.:cly for innation is 
severe 11nc111pl<>) 111cnt and the remedy 
for u11c111ploymc11t is i11fl:\tin11. J\nrl ou r 
ecmw111ic sy~te11 1 clc1111111cls that re· 
source scarcity he curcd l>y high 
prices. which in turn c;1u:.e dhlocations 
anti u 11cn1 ploymcnt. Eco110111 ic 1lodor · 
ing hns become a !11nller 11f choosing 
y1111 r poison. 

111 thio; context it is clear that what 
one pl1lit ical obscr\'er ha-; called the 
"Politic.; or 111,t:111t Crati!ication" will 
mil 11 n. The 111iick a nswcrs that r,o 
<luwn cn.,ily in an cn1110111y tl 11 111i11atcd 
hy t'•llll'••ntrat iolll'> llf' priva te l'c1111olllk 
pu11er :l t'C, of CllllrSt', hcill!J tried lil\t: 
the 1 hctorknl l1 111;i;i11g of wd forc re· 
cipicnts nnd " prnfliga tc" big citie" is 
:.tcppcll up. dc111:1111lo; tha t g1l\crn111cnt 
spc11di11g be cl1-.1,1kally l\'tluccd nrc 
couplctl with plcns thnt \111">incss cor· 
porn ti ons he !.11 bsidicd furthe r with 
new :i1!tl him;cr "illl:cntivc~" to i11vc.,t. 

There arc !inmc politic:1\ crnp'> In he 
hn1ve,tecl here i11 the short rn11. Cun· 
scrvnt ivcs huvc hi,torically worked this 
gr(111111I; a11d llll\\' S()llle " libcr.11 COll\Cr· 
v:Hi\'cs" :ire being tc111ptcd a<> wl'll: 
\\itllC~S the Clll'ICll l ultl'lllph ul' libc1•al 
J1c1w1crats, c .. pcdally gol'ct nnrs . to 
111:1tch rn11serv11t Ives in efforts lo L'll l 

b:tl'k 1::0\'l' rllll ll'll l progra111<;. But 1p1ick 
politil•:tl ~olutio11s "on' t work - nt 
le:1!1t not for lung: cutting government 
spending will nggrcvntc uncmplo)'· 

mcnl. which will aggrevate social 
unrest, which will r11el real conservative 
politicians, who will nlways win the 
"crime in the stn.:cls" shouting match. 

The attempt to 1110\'C Hight wi ll split 
the Democratic pnrty. When tlomcstic 
prngrams wcrc cul hack to linancc the 
Vietnam war, the victims were \Joth the 
poor :1•1cl minorities; allll then with the 
rccc~s io11 -dcprcssion. work ing class 
whitcs were :-11thlcnly force<! to com· 
petc with wonwn, hl :11:ks. :incl 1>thcr 
minoritic!> for j1>hs in short supply. Now 
11ot nnly arc auto workers :incl steel 
'''11rkl:rs :incl l:111ndry operators in 
trou\Jlc, hut firen1e11, polkc111e11 and 
tc:u:hcro; as well. Thc~c group!> arc the 
\'Cry backbone of the Democratic par· 
ly. And in 1(1tlay's "nrltl, knockinu 0111 
~oc ia l prngrn ms i11 cr1·11~i11gly affects 
not nnly the r•>OI' :11ul wllrk i11g cla:.s. 
bul ncl<ls ~itinilicanl dcmcnls tif the 
middle cl.1~s to th e ti ,1111' 1li-.affcl.'l• '<I. 

l3oyond Polltlcol 
Instant Grntlflc;:i tlon 

Oc~ pitc the n·l:i tive lack 111' \c1fo11s 
1111 p11lnr <lch:ite on cco1w111ic rcf11r111, 
and cll''\)it(' the l'''"'l'f\':tli ,111, too. 111' 
lhc J\1m·rk:111 media, g1c:1t 1111111hcrs 
111' J\111erk.rns nr1'. in fact, dc111on · 
'> lrnhly ;1w:11·c that the larger is· 
"'''c; ha,·e to hc fncl·cl: (•11 tlicr this 
yc.ir thrl'c lcncli11g pnlhtcrs • l.1111ic; 
ll ni ti~. Patrick C'adclt'll, anrl Peter 
I fart - tnld lihl.'rn l Dc11111L' r:t t'i as· 
'cmhlcd in C'hkai:;o that thc public 
'' :111t!I not .. imply pn1g11•, ,j\ c b11t 
"r.ulicn l" an~\\er' to \ hake the t.'1lll ll· 
try 0111 of the l'l'Otwmic title. 

A recent I !art l\111 cl c1111111,1ratcd 
the point 1\ith powerful new data 
!)howing thut a mnjorily (58%·25%) 
of the American pL·nplc think thnt 
A mcric11's 111njur corpora tions tend 



• • • )i , r, . { ll . : :lll'U' 
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l o · dominat'h :mi:t deiermine the ac­
tions -of public officials in Wash-

• ington - rather than the reverse as 
we arc so often taught. A majority 
(57%-35%) of the public also feel 
!hat both the Democratic and Re­
public;1n parties nrc in favor of big 
business rather than the average 
worker. A smaller majority of those 
expressing a view (49%-45%) felt 
that big business is the source of 
most of what is wrong with the 
country. A larger majority (66%-
200/o) favored employee ownership 
and control of large corporations, 
and a plurality (44%-42%) even 
fa,·orcd direct public ownership of 
natural resources. 

Such poll responses show will­
ingness on the part of the electorate lo 
consider solutions lhnt politicians con­
sider bcyoncl the current pale. This 
docs not, of course, mean lh :tl the ma­
jority of Americans now hnve a r:tclical 
ideology. We arc a prnctical people; 
wh:it it docs mean is lhnl there is 
gcncrnl recognition that lhe economic 
system is not work ing, and lhal, 
therefore, it is lime for some major 
chnngcs. It :ilso 111c:111s thal lhc 
polilknl p:irtics an! con:-.irlcrahly 
hchincl lhe pl·ople - - as lhc ri~c in 
\'t) lcr :1pa1hy nlso su g~c·, l c;, Jmcph 
C:i lifano, former aide 10 Lyndon 
Joh n~on. has cltH(llcnlly ~lated the 
h:l\ic rcnlity: 

11'/iifo the• /IC'tJfl /1• .11·c·k /lltr/lllSC ;,, 
tlt rir /fr,•s nnd tlil'ir .WC'it!t)'. th11 C1111• 

1:ri-.1.r <1111/ l::\·1•1·111fr1·, 11111/ th<' M11yors 
1111cl Go1·1•mnr.f, r~f!. ·r 11 1'ri.tis ·11rin11,.,/ 
i11111111t J111 liti1 ·11/ prnJ:ll/ r1fi,w1. Whili! 
1111·11 ll'011y 11h0111tlll'lr11/n'lt'ty 111 prn· 
..,·tit' fi 1c1d 1111cl 1/t clta fur 1/t,•lr 

f11111ili1'.r, thd r 1mlit fre1 / /1·11rln .r still 
------- -·-

.IJll'llk l11 tlll' r/11•111rlr 11/ 1111 1•1·0110111y 
11/ 11/mty. Wit/It- uur l tlrlc'IJ' i.r llill 
1ilug11cd /Jy •I dis, !II t1•cl tl1\11'1'111tiu11 1if 
11·,·u/1/i , 1/11• llr1 111 1• IVuy.r 0111/ /lfr1111r 
f 't1111111 i111·1• dou 111 1· 'l'.t 11111 / c·111.1w.r 
thr 't s nf 111x r1fin 111. 

l'oll tln1:1 :11") ' '"'' l :1ntiatc~ the p11i111 
that n grcl\\ i11g St'fl tlH' llt of 1hc p11hlic 
1 crn~1d1cs 11 1111 'iol111inns lo 1111r 
cco110111ic ..:1+,i, \\'ill 1w1 he li111111I in 
"in, 1:1111 poli1il·11l prnt:111 :ith111" : ·11 ~',, ul 
lhc Jllthllc In 1hc ll :trl poll wm: in fn1°1W 

1)f "111al.i11g ;i m11jnr .1dj11-; t111rnt i11 our 
c1.·cmomy lo lry 1hi11G' \\ hk h ha\'c 11111 
I wen tried he fore ... " (37% fa\'orcd 
"111ald113 minor :1dj11\ t1111•111 s lo c:orrccl 
li1r c111rc111 prohlcm~,'' :111<1 17% fo ll 
lhat the cco11u111 lc 'Y'lcn1 OllLJhl lo he 
''kept ns it i<;, nllo1\ l11g it 10 \ lra l~h1c 11 
i t~df 0111.''); n plt i1-.1 lity of lh<> '-c l'X· 

prc~sl11s n \'icw (.19%-.19%) felt that it 
wou ld do "11iorc good lh1111 hnrm" to 
"clc\'d op n new politic:il nt0\'1•111c111 to 

d 1:1 llcngc 1hc inn11l'ncc of hig 
h11 ~i 11 e'"·" ,\ net :i "ii i!! 111:1jnrity (5Ci%-
2C1%) i.a icl lhl')' \\'1111ld " p111h:1hly \ II(> · 

pw1" or "dcli11i1cly '11 pp111·1" a 
p11·,ick111in l 1·:1ncl id 11 1c who !'.1\•11rctl 
t·m(lloycc nw111•r,hlp a11cl 1:u11lml of 
lJ .S. l '(llll p:t II ico;. 

·n tt''l' arc all ho1ll.: f11 I 'iJ!n' of 111.1 111r· 
ini: 1>pi11i1111 :11111 J\111 l·1·i1•a 's willi11g11•'\S 
to l"llll '>hlcr -.ol11tin11' th.ti wi ll t.1!.e ti111e 
10 i111plcnw111. What is llCl'<lccl b 
hnne,ry, pruu1.,1ms tlt .11 a1·e l·h-nr 11nd 
f11lr and whit.oh connect n public l'i \ inn 
\lil h the l'iti1c11\ priv:llc 1.·onl'crns. In 
some \1·:iys lhc pcrincl we arc c11ler ic1 1~ 
b l'l'tlli11ii.l·c nt of lhc c:irly clay~ of ri11 ti· 
Vici 1111 m w:i r 11p1hl\ it ion, '' hen tu 
s1>1.::1k of 11 direct sol11( io11 10 lite ba,ic 
i.;-.11c was i111pmsible for 1110, 1 polili · 
ci:i ns - 1111 til Gene t<-1'C111 thy's c.1 111· 
prdgn focn!lcrl the hro:icl 11 11<krlyl ng 
public \ Cflli ment. 'f'hc diffcrl·rwc~ 1111w 
- a cc:111'\)1t1 ic prnhlcms 111rn into 

<.' I i'cs - :11c 1h:11. h:i1 i11g hccn 1hro111!h 
1 he 'hi it·•., 1w1iplc 110 longer 11·1"1 ti f. 
lki;i( poli1 i1•11 I pl.1lit11<li:s · :11111 rhc 
p11l l<; 'how 11111d1 gre:tltT puhl ic ~c 111 i­
n1c111 li11 rning i11 11t!1·1111n• of politi.·;tl 
1Pndl'1 ' "' p. 

Tho lnavltahllity n ( tho 
Pl:1n 11 ocf r:conomy 

Sit1l't: the 11)70\ IH'g:111, it lw' hcc•n 
l': l\hio11.1blc fnr 1w l i 1il'i 11 11~ lo 'Jlcak of 
low1·ri11g t':'l lh.'da lions. 'l'o sCl111c dc­
!;rl'C this Im' hc:cn :1 11,eful :1111icl n1c to 
ll1c o"crblown nml 1111tlc 1 li11 a111•1•cl pnl· 
ii ii'~ nf thc p1 cdn11 -; <k c.::ulc. Bu I it is 
:i ho r. w:1y of 111uidi11g ll''l11111,ihi lil) for 
the cco110111ic lll l'' ~ i11 whid t 1\'l' li 11 <1 
0111 sc lvc~. 

Try lllt they mighl, hlmc1·cr, the 
11t1li1 idn n~ 1•:i 1111111 ..:~l·a pc t hi' 11· pon· 
, ihilltr. 'fhc \'ntt· r~ wi ll 11111 ll' t 1hc111. 
~ f11n•1; ,.c r. the t•ennomy h\elf will 1101 
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Jet fhem. Th fact is, for example, that 
-the United States is well on the way to 
a planned · economy - i11 any event. 
Over the next decade, questions of 
economic growth, income distribution, 
price and employment levels and the 
use of scarce natural resources will 
becon1~ more and more subject lo ex· 
plicit political decisions. 

Much of the economy is already, of 
course. planned - by large cmporn· 
lions, banks and their allies in govern· 
mcnt. Responsible estimates have 
been mndc that one-third to one-half 
of the U.S. economy's output is pro· 
duccd in response to a planning 
system rather than to the market. Ex· 
amples rnnge from the o;ctting of 
gasoline prices to lhc redlining of 
ncighboriwoc\s by mortgai;e lenders. 
The myth that we :l l'C living in 11 free 
market economy where prices for steel 
and sugar and insurance policies arc 
set only by the interplay of supply ancl 
demand continucs to be worshipped 
on cclitori:.il pages, b11c it has little rein· 
tion~hip to reality. 

,tions; we can also expect r .in sf ate· 
ment of wage/price controls designed 
- as one Nixon administrath::n of­
ficial put it - to "zap labor." Plan· 
ning dominated by business concerns 
will also worsen the environmental 
crisis. And subsidized business in· 
vestments when there is already ex · 
ccss capacity - and when the over­
arching ecC1nomic problem of income 
maldistribution hobbles consumer de· 
mand - will further waste precious 
capital resources. 

The majcrr question over the coming 
period is not whether we will plan, but 
how - an<l above all for whose bcne· 
fit. And he.re is where the big choices 
will have lo be made between the in· 
tcrcsts of the largr. corporations - and 
the large majority of Americans. 

The current cco110111ic crisis. which, 
with perh:1ps 111inor upturns. will con· 
ti11Ue ill une fUl"l1\ Ill" another illtO the 
forcscc·ablc future. will incrcaSl' the de· 
m:111d for lllorc c;.. plicit planning in 
\\'hich thi.: gO\'CI nmenl plays an 1:\'Cll 

larger . mnrc open rok in the i:cm10111y. 
Americ.1n labor lcatlcrs liki.: l.con;ml 
Woodcock arc strnngly 11q;ing plan· 
ning; anti lcgi-;lation has been int n>· 
ch1l·cd by such Senators as I lumphrcy 
and Jn\•its. But the 1110,1 i111p111 tant in­
sight is. as Nobel Pri1c winni 11g 
cc1rno1nist Was~ily !.c1111ticl' has -.:i id, 
th•ll pl:lllninu will c;,1111c " ... Nnt 
UCC:\11\C 'illnlC wild l'ilClicalS dc111a11d ii. 
hut hcc:111sc IJ1"i11c,~111cn will 1h:111n11cl 
it I \) \..ecp the ~)">ten\ frnm ' P11lt eri11g 
(11 a halt." 

t \)l'l''ent nnly the 11111~1 ,o. 
phi-.1h..11nl l111\i111'" "'c11 and li11 :n1-
dcrs. liki: In\ in Swcc11y Miller. I klll'y 
l·\1nl 11 11nd Fdix Rohatyn. openly ;1d-
1•11calc plt11111i11g. l lowe\'cr. E11rnp1·:111 
c\pc1 icnce. "here after i:arly ~k.:p · 
I ki-;111, h11\i11e"ll'l'll arc 11uw 'trn11g 
~ 11pport c 1·~ of pl;1n11i11n. '"r,gc-.h th:1t 
1.conlicr '> precliction is likely to he 
i>Ol'llC Oll I. 
A~ the cconumic l'1hi~ 1kq>cns mer 

lhe cnming years , the 'lir't wave' of 
pl:tnning in 1c~po11se to e111 n·nt ii\ · 
itiati,·c-; i-. likely to in11:11,ify pre"11r1.·s 
1111 the Ii' i11g , 1:111tl a11b nf the 1·:i~ t •ll:l· 

jmil)'· Bu,inc,.,· need~ !'or l':q1it.il t\\11'>1 

lie pa ill f,11· by ~11111c1.111c 11 ml high 
p1 ices . high int crco;t r:1tcs, :111tl hit:' ' 
tnxc!. "ill he forced 11p1.111 the puhlk al 
largc 1h11111gh 11cll' pl :11111i11g and 11\ cch· 
.111h1m t)e,pitc C\'Cn the hc't i11t cn· 
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Priorities: Jobs and Inflation 

A serious policy which builds both 
on the ncHls of the vast majority and 
on the growing popular si:ntiment 
would. in our judgement. begin by 
placing lirst priorities where the shoe 
is pi11d1i11g: unernploymcnt and inlla· 
lion: 

Johs. It is i11co11tt.:stahlc morally, 
politically, :1 11cl in l•:rn1s of the basic 
CCOlll' l1\iCS of re:.1lll\'CC 11!\C, tha t C\'el'y 
An11.: rica11 willing 111111 nulc to work 
should hn\c a decl'llt job. It is ahl1 in· 
contcst:ihk thal Ki:ync,ian cco1101111c 
luols ca11111>t provide sul'licic.mt jc.1hs 
without rninouc; and politically un· 
aceq>tablc i111lalion. 

The dircd ;111:.,,·c r. as 111:1ny arc 
eo111i11g lo reali1.e, is for the gcwcrnmcnl 
lo gunr:rn tcc c111ploy111c11t. The I l11111ph · 

rey-Hawkins Eqiia1r <;>P,portunlt"y 'ani! 
Full ;mployment Bi11 is a good start. 

The Bill calls for the federal govern-' 
mcnt to act as employer of last resort. 
At any given time, job guarantee offices 
across the 'country would be ready to 
give public service jobs to any American 
who applied. These jobs would not have 
to be "make-work"; there is plenty of 
serious work to be done in America. At 
the beginning, jobs would be created in 
health, transportation, housing, en­
\'ironment, education, and other do· 
rnestic fields. 

The importance of this bill is that it 
goes beyond the general goal of ''fu ll 
cmploy111cnt" as defined by some per· 
centagc or the labor force. Even in the 
best of times such policies do not 
necessnrily result in a job for everyone 
willing :rnd able to work. This bill pro· 
vides every American with the legal 
right to a job - enforceable in court. 
The Library of Congress has made a 
rough csti111ate of the net cost to the 
Treasury of moving to fvll employment 
over 18 months through the Hawkins· 
I lu111phrcy Bill. ll comes to about Sl I 
billion dollars. 

One important result of guarantee· 
ing jobs would be an increase in 
rc<;ClllrCeS :wa;lablc to autlrC~S Other 
major cco11U111ic problems. For exam· 
pie, it has already been propo-;cd that 
pul>lic '\cn•il·e c111 ploy111c11I can be uo;ccl 
to rcf urbbh rail beds to nccommocla te 
e.'\p:111dccl r:iilroad trallic. Such a pro· 
gr;1m W\.Hilll i" it-;elf' ~ti111ulatc new pro· 
d111.:1ive jobs 1 the 111u11ufnct11rc, op· 
cratiun. amt ,, , · •c11ancc or railroads 
:1111! ma:-s t• an~it "'chicles anti equ ip· 
1111! 11 I. 

Si111:I.! th i: 111:1\'i trn11,it imlu .. try and a 
large (and int'reasing) sh:i1·c llf' tl1e 
railrna(t ind11'1lry is :tlrcacly 1111tlcrwrit· 
ten hy the t:ixpayt'l"S (a11c.I lo 11 11 cxp1111· 
1ling tlcgrcc, r11hlil.'.I)' owned ill both 
the h)eill ;iml 11 1tiu11 ~tl kl'cl). jobs rd'llr· 
hi .. hi11g rail I r:i11~portal ion l.'ould be 
dircctcd to ~pctilk area!. of the cn1111· 
try :incl help st:ibili1c c111pluy111c11t in 
those areas. 

This ob1·iomly rcquirt's 111<1111ilng to 
cklinc pl'L'ci'c go:i ls :111tl jub re · 
q11ircmc11t'i :incl thc11 :1 hmi.; li:rm public 
c.kci~io11 to direct.. for i11,ta11ci.: , thnt 
prml11c.:tiun vf ma'~ t1 :111,il \chides ;1ml 
rail pa~-.L'l1gcr l'dlit'lcs he 1:1rgctcd to 
~ te:ulily incn;a-;c jobs in citic~ like 
l)ctroil il'i lhcy 11H.l\'e all'ay frm11 :i11 to 
production jllbs. 

Senator Phillip 1 larl c:llculates that 
if onc·lifth l)f grn11 111l trartic were 
\hiftcd to public transport, 1.5 million 
111!w jot · ~ would be ercalcd hy 1985, in· 
1:h11li11g SI ,000 in the comtruction in· 
ilu ~try, J .)11,000 in repairing road beds 
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manuf~cturing for which an estimated 
ps,000 workers annually could be 
drawn from the ranks of unemployed 
auto workers. 

Such an approach obviously involves 
a dramatic new role for the public: 
it requires planning, public money, 
nnd above all, the capncity to coor· 
di11ate public priorities in terms both 
of needs (a better rail system) and jobs 
(specific nssura11ccs to specific workers 
in specific communities). 

Our review of recent European ex­
perience suggests that to achieve such 
an end without establishing a civilian 
vers ion of the military-industrial com· 
plcx - where the interest of private 
con(rnctors domin:ite a compliant 
burenucrncy - will ultimately require 
direct public ownership of some key 
manufacturing and opcrnting facilities. 
In our judgment, a decentralized ap· 
pronch makes sen'"e - and is also con· 
sisfcnt with the poll data showing sup­
port for ownership forms stressing 
local worke:- and community participa· 
lion. 

Publir ow nership need not be heavy 
hand1'• '1urcaucratic control; nor 111ust 
it be •· tional ization.'' The expC.;1 ir. 11cc 
with p lie corporalions in Europe and 
Canada shows that when tak en !.crious· 
ly public industry cnn lie at least ns cffi· 
cicnt as privnte corporat ions in nwcting 
tests of the markl!t pince in efficiency 
and innova tion. This is also the 
e\·idc ncc from more than 2000 U.S. 
puulicly •)11·ncd electric utilities. Public· 
ly owned indust rics tend to he more ac· 
co11ntnblc to the public (1 l1cir l>uoks :ire 
always open), ancl more rc'ipunsivl! to 
mnjor cco110111 ic policy needs. Uiv l.! n a 
dwke of h~cat ions , for c;<:unp lc, p11hlic 
corpnrntions often loe:1te thl!i r plants 
whi:rl! the cmploynw nt impact will be 
the nrcatest. 

Once the ptl\:.il1ility of alt crnath•c 
0wne rslrip :.tr11d11res is atl111ittccl as a 
s11hjce t tu cnn-;ider for the next <lcc:1de, 
n nu mber llf variations arc pos~ iblc 
which would permit clcccnlrnlizati1m 
n 11<1 ·~conom ic com pct it irin. Fur ex 11 m · 
pie, l:irgc porlions 111' n11·11cr:.hlp could 
hi! old to e111ph)yees 11 ho 1'1>11ld abo 
t:il..c on large r rc:.ponsihil itics for 
rn.111:igc111ent -·· a pr:idice willc:-.prca<l 
in Eu rope. l~ncourngemcnt of n pre· 
li111 innry form of this concl!pt was, in 
fac t. prll\·idcd in recen tly pns~cd tnx 
lct:i' l:tthin. Beyond thi , the crnnm unity 
or con1 11111 11itics where tilt'. pbn ts :ire 
lnea tcd should, in our judgment. par· 
ticip11tc in new ow nership forms. 
Th rci.:-wny "joint vc11turcs" - in\'olving 
n:i tinnnl and locn l gon:rnmc •1t ~. a ncl 

employees - have a number of prece­
dents in Europr (for example, the 
own\!1 Sll l!J ~ f' V >lk~wngon) and could 
mnkc for eminen tly sensible :lr· 
rangcmcnts in industries that arc 
dependent on government conlrncts 
and which - like transportation, 
defense and energy - arc crud;1J to 
long r:rngc plnnning. 

That novel id eas a "Z by 110 11 . ~a 11s 
beyond political debate is suggested by 
a propos:i l Senator Kennedy has of· 
fcrrcd which could llpcn the way to such 
directions. He has introduced lcgisln· 
lion which would divest General Motors 
of its mass trn11sit prod ucing facilities 
uecausc or their sul>stantinl con11ict 
with it s auto producing inlcrcsts. I !is 
legislation wu11 lcl C\lahlish a national 
puulic tru~ t tu own the subsid iary for up 
to ten yea rs. This !>a~ic notion cou ld be 
c~p:inclcd lo :1 1low for 10111:: term control 
;111d pl:t1111ing. :'llld to 111·1>\ idc tlt:i t n 
s11blo t:111tial c;h:ire of 011 nc1 .,hip 11f the 
1c:.ulti ng coq)llrnt ion uho he in the 
h:111ds of an cn1plnycc :rncl lnl':tl com · 
11111nity trust. 

Sdf cvi<lcntly, i;11ara 11t ccd employ· 
111c11t :1 11<1 !he ra lio11al pln11ni11u of jobs 
gcnerntccl by puhlic f111tcl 'i Cl>tlld ha\'I! 
two important implications: First it 
wou ld red 111.·c I hi.: fi.: a r of ccorwm ic 
1111cmploy1t1l'lll a11d ccn11omic rui n that 
is al the heart of lllOSt l'l:!>i\t;1111:e to 
change. Dcf1•11w wnrkc rs wo11 Id he lc, c; 
n·~i'ilC 11t 10 Cll l'> in the 1 lili1 111')' budget if 
they /..11c11• they wou ld h.11·c rlcn !nl im· 
mediate rcpl :1cc111c nt j1Jhs. While work­
ers wn11ld feel less thrca te11ccl by black-;. 
Men kss lhrcat cnecJ by wome n. Work · 
er" in genera I wou Id be h:~s f c:i rfu I of 
cn1 iro11111c11tal re, trictinns 1111 lws inc~s 

and of the introduction of l:ibor saving 
equipment. 

Secondly, gua ra ntced jobs cou Id 
!)tabi lizc loc:il employment conditions, 
reducing the waste and co1111nunity 
di~loca tion associ:i lcd wilh ll11 ct11 nting 
ancl changing employm ent prns pccts. It 
wou ld not end migration from place to 
place, bu t it would certainly reduce a 
uhc;t:intial portion of migra tion within 

ancl between cities th:ll is forcctl upon 
people by the loss of jobs. For exa mple, 
the c:ipncity to plan for st:iblc jobs in 
!.mallcr cities might have eli111inatcd 
11111ch of the current burden in New 
York City -- whi.:rc two cl ecacl cs of the 
1111 niigration of two 111illio11 job ~eckc rs 
has swel led wclforc roles. /\11<1, poli· 
tka lly, we n; we able to tk ul with lhc 
ft111<l1t111cnlal 11nl!111ployment and mi· 
l!l' .1 t ion :.uu rccc; of the u rb:rn problem, 
neither welfa re mothers nor public 
cmployces would be the centra l tareet 
of c;cnpcgnat politics. 

l'l anni ng to s1abili1e cmph)) 1ncnt in 
l'Om1111rni1ies :1 lso would nrnt rih utc to a 
mllre 'table tnx Lase. Stales and lo· 
1.':tlitics w1111 ld not be forced i11to what is 
nf'te11 rui11 u11-; <'ompctition for the l(lt'a· 
1in11 of intlu \ lry: and the lrnrg:iining 
1.>ctwecn ('11rpora1inns and cit ic'i would 
he on n111l'l1 ltl l>l'e equnl tcnns. 

TnO:ulon. 111lcl' the prt'\\lll'C 1, f CCO· 

nn111ic c1·t· 11t~ lll'cr the coming ckl•aclc, 
m we ha\'c i11clkatcd . \\C bclk1•c w:igc· 
prki.: "·011tn1I' .ire i11c\'i t:1blc "hl·thcr 
we Ii~"· it 11r 1111t. IJ11k" thc'e arc del'cl · 
oped in :1 p1 .1grc~'ili.: f1hliio11. wmk l11g 
pc11plc will he forced to pay the 1'mh of 
gcncrnl ec1i1111111k 111i~111 :111ngen11: 111. Be· 
yo11d 'eek ing nwrc cq11i1ahle fi>rtm of 
n11 1t r11ls ami tax rl·for 111 lo ch1se 
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loopholes. tax wealth. and capture 
windfall profits - :my plan for dealing 
with inllation C1Ver the coming decade 
ought Lo have us a central strategy the 
aim or directly stnbili1.ing the prkc of 
the basic necessities ·- food. h1)11si11g. 
medical ca re. ~ ud n 111ini111um level or 
energy. These it ems alone co11~ t itu te 
nearly 75% of average four ·pcrson ur· 
ll;111 family con!.lllllption expenditures. 

The pressures of in nation arc, in fad. 
alre:Hly forcin!: steps toward a dircct 
approach: food sta111ps arc a direct nt· 
t.!111pt to stallili1.c the costs or necessity 
ih:ms for low i11co111e people. So arc 
rncdieare. how ing allowa nces, nnd the 
t towing ll~C ur tent contrnl. Popular 
ki;isl:1tl011 inlrod11cctl al state levels for 
" lifeline" d ccll icily rates - :rnd c,·cn 
energy stn111ps - would fi x the price nr 
a nccc.!>\ily :1mo1111t of ekdricity, !.hirt· 
ing the bu r1h:n f0rw:ml to large mcrs. 

Out prngralll~ which UICI cl)' \ 1t \Jc,idii'C 
low income or other cn11 ~11mcrs innease 
w1nl clc111and. Wit hc.111t cncu11 r:'1iing in · 
cn:.1~cs i11 ~11 pply, the rc~nll is 1111.m:: in· 
ll at ion. t\1ctl k are, whklt i11Cr.'a'iC<I tic· 
m:111d fn r hea lth .. crviccs wit h0111 in· 
~n·a ,ing or r:11in11:1 li1ini_: the :.upply 
ha cla'> 'ic example. 

I lousing 1wlicy ii Inst mies the 11ced 
for n 111ud1 nwre tlirct'I ~olulillll o'er 
the eo:11ing period. A dcn :11l hi.11nc fo r 
every A1m:rk:111 has \Jcen a national 
"goa l" ,in•:C 1937. /\ftcr 110 )'l'.ll'S or 
1t yi 11g 1i111i ~ ecl w:iy,, it is clc:ir that we 
ca111111t 'lnl·:c the l11 11 1 ~ing 1·1'isis with a 
prour:1 111 liin•ted to the h1Hl\it1g sector: 
rent et111tn>ls to kee p price~ cl11w n. in· 
hibit ~upplies. l lominc all..>w:tnccs arc 
bo th CU\tly :ind inl1:i tion:try. /\clticv· 
iug ltli1ti 111 ;)) ilccell t Jc1Tl'i or h01t!l it1g 
.11 l:1i1· piices " ill n:quirc tl it·cet pu blic 
,tl' tinn to nll11ca le the ~'\'O 1110,1 l'mtly 
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tion of · land and ;;s {6a~c· or ale ·to 
developers dates back to t 902. Amsler· 
dam teases all land except for Industrial 
sites, wh ile Rotterdam leases inclustrial 
sites nnd sells land for all other uses. 

Hesitatingly, in lits and starts, • 
American communities in almost every 
state are beginning to experiment with 
public ownership of land as important 
lo rational development. Local planned 
public land ownership is being tried in 
cities as diverse as Mi lwaukee, Wiscon­
sin; San Diego, Ca~ifornia; St. G<!orge, 
Vermont and Yellow Springs, Ohio. 

items in build ing n new home - land 
and ca pita I. 

Though not yet wid ely understood, 
public owncl'ship or land is coming lo 
llc recognized by leading experts as a 
basic req uirement for a serious hou!>ing 
policy. Furmcr llUD SccrcU\ry Rubert 
Wood has observed: 

Ca111i11 h ·1·1·ls ·~( tf,•11.1i1y 110 lo11s:1·r 
111n kc 1ol1•nt bit' pril-1111· <111•111•1.ffii fl 
1111d clc1'1'lop1111•11t. t•1·1•11 tl1r111J:li ! 1)11· 

ill!: ,111d p/111111 i11~ rrq11ir1•1111•11ts 11n• 
111•11ilt1b/1• flJ ·~{{c•c t tlil'lll clin•ctly. 0 11/y 
11 i;1•111•r11 l 1111111 1..itli lu11d .11rn1•rsliip 
1.ml 1"1111tr11l lwi11J: tlil' 1l1 •t:i:: fr1· J11rt·1•s 
in cri'1ir11/ u ri•u .t 1'1111 dtJ tli l!j.J l1. 

The A111ct·ican t 11 ~ lilttlc of Architects 
in 1972 1n:Hlc :i lkt:iilecl propl1snl for 
the joint Fc<kral, stale and local ac· 
quisition and 1lcvclopn11.:nl l,f one 
111illin11 acres or lnncl in ~ckekd 11 rbn t1 · 
fringe nrc:is of the country. The /\ IA 
C'1ti 11111t1 d lhut OllC 111illi u11 Hl:l'C'i l'Cl lllll 
acconwclatc 1)11e-1hinl 01' the 11alit'n's 
i;• o" th l)\'CI' lite m:xl 30 yea rs :it the 
rcl.11i"l.'!y low ;wer:ige tlensily tlf 75 per· 
suns per acn:. 

"The nppreciating \'1th1c Ill' this 
l11 11d," ~aid the AJA, " n.:ali1.ecl \Jy h·ase 
1111d su lc O\'er the next JO )'t•:i rs - wo11 ld 
be c11oug'1 lo cover its orii;l1111l cu,1 plus 
n l n q~c propurlill ll or the cost 111' pro.! p:11'· 
ing the !:inti f11r dc\'clupmcnl." 

Public l:\11rl clcvrlopmc:nt is c;on1 anon 
in Eu rope. In 19-16. Brilnin cn.:alcll 
public tlcvclop111 c11t eorporati1ms lo 
huil<I Is l lCW 1.'0lllllll lllil1 ·s or o0.000 
popul11clo11 c11d1. In Sw1:de11 i11 rct·e111 
ye:tr'i. 80% or the ho11~ill~ 111uh:rwrit1c11 
l>y the cen tral u1wen1 111c11t hns hcen 
IJ11ill on 11H111icipnlly owned larnl which 
i-; either :,old or lc11ltccl 10 the buil<lcrs. 
111 the Ncthcrl :111r.ls . the public nc<1uisi· 

Lnntl is only h ~llf the underlying prob­
lem of price. The clepcncle11ce of hous· 
ing on capital markets is well docu· 
mcnted . Unless adequate supplies of 
capital are made available, housing is 
simply not built, or built at high interest 
costs. 01:iirmnn Henry Reuss of the 
House Banking and Currency Commit­
tee has proposed what might be a first 
step toward the ~•llocation or capital to 
major national priorit ies. Reuss hns 
suggested that the F ·dcrnl Banking 
Reserve Do:1rd, through :1 \1arkty of 
availnble ccntrnl banking techn iques, 
allocate capitnl to the 11ntio11's most 
pressing needs - :.uch llS low and 
moderate i11co1l'C housing aml mtlSS 

tranc;i l. Reuss has also suggested a role 
for publk ownership :.ncl has proposed 
thut the Ftanklin Nationnl Bank be n:t· 
tio1111foecl a11d run ns a yardstick 
agai11~ t which to jutlgc the Jlt'rformancc 
of olhcr large hanks. 

111 rn1111cction with food prices, set· 
ling the priority go:i l or ~ta ll ili liug fai r 
cons 11 mer prices also requires a 111ore 
direct public c ffnrt. Uut in thi-; c~sc , 
since :1gricull11ral policy has lnng bee n 
ilolllinatccl by the go\'crn111cnt, the 
question is not whet her there '\ho11ld be 
a "igni licant publ ic rnle -- bu t /rnll' to 
~ltape il II) 111ccl the needs of the v:l\I 
~n .1j111 ity of l'nll'>Untcr~. 

Q,•cr lhc co111ing tlcca<le (1dt h 
pl'l'h .1po; momc11t:11·y Jau,) fo1,c l prkc'i 
will i;o up ~1r :unatk11lly. As they <lo, in 
our judgment, the growi ng power 1.1f 

rnn .. u111er and 11rba 11 co11~till1e 11cic!> "ill 
p:tl the..;c i;rnu p'i in l >l' ~ il i11 11 lo re" rite 
nld legi, latiun t111cc l llH!>itlcn:d the 
Jirivalc tlo111ai n of the laq;ic il)>rib1 1)lncss 
eo11ccrt1!1 which c\0111i11:itc the " f:11 m 
bloc." One 111odcl of pulicic!) " hich 
achieve l0wcr 1.:omnmcr food price~ is 
the Can.1di1111 nppt ~mch lo " he:t l. In 
C':111:1dn, luw 1:011'>ll lllcr pt kc'i arc 
c~t ahfohcd and farn1 pnillttctiw1 i:o~ l s 
;ire ,11pplc111c11.eu by di rcct p:1y 111cn t ~. 
Si111 ilar g~ncral )IJ'alcgics fur whea l a11d 
other c111nmollitie., wcrc prnpo..,cd in the 
J ') 19 Brn1111a 11 Plan. l'he hrl\ic a p· 
prnadt h11\ been i11 -;1it11tcd in \Heh na· 



lon.s as -S\\ edcn, Norway, Japan and 
Brit ain. before its entry into the Com· 
mon Market. 

Over the past three years cxpen· 
diturcs for food by the American con­
sumer have risen by an incredible total 
of ner rly $6:) billion dollars- implicit­
ly perhaps the most regressive tax one 
could imagine. The cost of a program of 
supplementary direct payments wilt 
both be much lower than such sums, 
and much more progrei.sively dis-
1 ributed. New policies might also be 
designed, as a social and economic 
priority, to support the small and 
medium size farmer, and small co­
opernlives, as a mailer of principle 
-rather than largo! agribusiness con­
cerns. 

Broadly speaking, a direct approach 
10 innntion which aims to stabilize the 
price of necessity costs in the family 
budget wou Id, of course, not a Item pt to 
slabili7.c all prices. Pricec; for non· 
necessities - high price luxury foods or 
second , vacation homes - could be 
:illowcd to rise. This woulci not only in­
crease equity. but it could also help 
con<;crvc resou rces. 

Rczourcc Conscrviltlon: 
Planning and Public Ownership 

Price lltability for the 111!1.'.C\\itil.:s or 
life, like job stability, would put a 111orc 
wc11re economic tloor under \\'Orking 
people. lklicf from the anxiety or being 
withou t work :rnd wilhn11! money for 
liH'ld :rnd rent would proviclc many with 
01e time .ind e11c1·gy lo ex11a11d thdr 
perso na l lives as wel l. 

It wo1ilcl nlso free 011r ~odc ty n'i a 
\\'hole lo deal with the lnnl!cl', deeper 
cc~1110111ic issues that focc ""· o;11d1 as 
lhc i. l•!,1dy depiction of n;1 !11r11l re­
•;011 rces and the :ilien:lliC111 Ill' 1woplc 
frnm their w11rk :ind 1hci1· comnwnity. 

Over the next 25 ye:1r-; we 11•ill fa~ t he 
rca1;hi11g the cntl of lhc nv11 ilal1ili1y of 
m:iny 11al11ral 1'(·~011 1·cc s. As a result we 
wi ll h:l\'c lo lihift dr:in1 nlk11 lly whnl \\'C 
pr•1Cl11cc and what we cnno;11111c. We 
knmv lhat this 1dll require long rani;e 
pl:mning. 'fhc 111arkct i~ 11l1 t adct111atc; 
it lloe-.n' t llc111l 1he iluht -.iunal'i. It 
wou ld hn1·c t:iken :i <k c:it1c fo1· the 
Unitr<I St :1 tcs to prepare for the energy 
1•1 bic; of I 973. n11t 1i1•c years he fore the 
~· ri~i'i pclrok11111 prices were 'i till <lcc li 11-
i11g. Even ns la le 11s 11)73 they were ris· 
ing nl 11 1·mhld..: r:1L ly 'i lower r11 tc lhilu 
the genera l price level. The 111:.t thing in 
the world th:il they 11'l·rc , ig1111lllng wns 
!llnrc drilling. Or rccyelinn. Or n ~e:i rch 
for nlternati \'C energy ~uurccc;. 

( 

Rational energy and' general resource 
policy will require planned, slower 
economic growth. The alternatives arc 
to continue our extreme vulnerability to 
foreign supplies or to fu rther di~tort our 
economic and environmental priorities 
r ·, for example, the Rockefeller-Ford 
proposal for a $100 billion energy pro­
gram would do. 

A serious commitment lo job security 
and price stability would obviously 
make planned limited growth much 
more acceptable lo the American peo­
ple. But our rcsomce crisis will still re­
quire a substantial change in our 
lifestyle and altitudes. It will require, 
for example, limits to the major source 
of consumer stimulation - advertising. 
For it is extremely unlikely that the in· 
cessanl psychological pressure on 
America n consumers to buy more and 
more is compatible with the long term 
need to conserve resources and to 
restructure our life style nround new en · 
vironmcntal realities. 

Given its dynamic of unrestricted 
growth, the modern corporation is, over 
the long run, incompatible \\'ith n low 
growth, low resource ah~orb:111l econ­
omy. Ulti111atdy, for this reason - and 
to assure plnnnlng for job stability ove r 
the long haul - the gin nt corpora tions 
al the core of the economy n111-;1 be re· 
pl:icccl. This is pat 1icularly I rue of cor­
porations which con trol energy re· 
sou rec~. It i-; not just the monopnl is lie 
pradiccs th at make these firm~ unlit to 
be in chargc \)f our energy rcsc111H·cs. It 
is their inhcrc nl need for growth. Thus, 
even if -;m·1·e~~ r11 1 nutitrust 11ctin11s 
co11lcl he hrn11ghl ng:ii11 '1t the l:11w::-. l uf 
th e 11111l1in:1tio11al c1wrgy c1nnp:111ks, 
the hnsie pmhlcm w1rnlcl 1101 he M)h•cd. 
(I 1Hlcccl. we hrnki: up St a ncl a rel Oi I in 
1911 .) The re is \Onie rca ... nn to lwlievc. 
in f.wt. lh;H while there 111i1;h1 be "mnc 
rct.1rd:i1 inn of J)l' il'C i111.:n•;1,1·s. I he w:i., te 
;iml ti II plic:ll i1rn or 1.'l'l':l ti 11g n\\\I c oi I 
1·orpnr:i tio11s w1,uld maJ..c a 1 :1 1in11a l 
't111,1Tva tinn polky en· n lt:ss :1ttai11 nllle. 

'l'hc n11swcr lies in ra ~hio11i11g 
l'conomk in~ lit111ions 11 hil'11 go bcyo11 <1 
the for·prnfit cMp11r:itil)11 i11 it c; abil ity 
to cngngc i11 ln11g te1111 1 c:;1)\I rec plan­
ning for the 11:1tin11 a~ n whole. i\11cl :l'i a 
\'aridy of Ame1 icnns who rcsponilcd to 
the I lnrt 1\ >11 rccogni1ccl, and a" jt1!>t 
:ibout every Wl!~lcrn inl111stri:di1ccl 11a· 
tlo11 hn" co11cl11dccl. this will aho rc­
q11irc public nwncr!>hip. The Stc­
\'t: 11 ~on ·Magn11~011 Bill, which c:db l'nr :i 
publicly owned oil :ind ga' \.'Ol'fl•' I atio .1 
on puhl ic 111ncls (where the h111:· if 
reserves lie) is n rcaso11.1blc fir~t ~ t c p in 
this llircction - and the f:ic l th111 JS 
Sc11ators have emlorwd it 11gai 11 '>US· 

gcsts the politital fcasit>flity of discuss· 
ing quite new approaches. 

Public ownership docs not necessarily 
guarantee sound resource use. The Ten­
nessee Valley Authority for example is 
hardly less growth oriented than most 
private electric companies. It will be 
necessary therefore to add a further 
dimension to the concept of "fee sim· 
pie" ownership - whether public or 
prh1atc. The larger public itself must 
assume the responsibility of tmsteesliip 
over the land and natural resources. 
The principle n1cans the public as 
trustee may not waste resources needed 
for the next generation by, for instance, 
giving away lease rights al low prices. 
Trusteeship concepts have alt'cacly been 
recognized in preliminary form in 
several stales which nC\w provide for 
lcgnl remedies - enforceable through 
citizen suits - for failure on the par! of 
public officials to folli ll their broader 
responsibilities in con nection with some 
e11viro11111cntal issues. 

Economic Democracy 

As we have indicated, the United 
Stales is already well 011 the way to a 
pln1111ecl cco110111y. Over the coming 
cl ccacle, the economy ca11 be plnnnccl for 
full employment. price o; tabilily and 
resource conservation - or it ca n be 
pln1111cd for co11 1in11cd inOationary 
grow th and a wor~cni11g dis1rib11tion or 
income and wealth :1mo11g lhe pop11'a· 
1io11. 'l'hc llCAt years will 'cc a clear 
tendency townrcl incrensing co11centra­
tin11 of ccu111)111 ic pt>wcr in thl~ ha11cls of 
p1il>lic 1111d priva te h11rcnuLracics. We 
111:1 y 11ol Ii kc it, l.>11 t we m usl face it. 
OthCl\\'i'iC WC wi ll IHI( be aufc IO dcill 
wi th ii-; cn11"t'q11 cnce-;. 'l'hc :im.wcr lies 
111lt in pining for n long gone cc1ln0111ic 
1•1·a of ~ma ll til'lllS n111l fr t.:c markets 
(thlrngh ill JO/lh' :ll'e:t') :u11it1 tl\ I "''e 
111 :11.c ~Lll'it:). It lie" in rn:tld:1t.: 1' 1•onnrnie 
di:111 orr:icy :i ncl clcccntra li 1111iirn a 111n­
j<1r go11l nf'eco11 0111ic policy. 

1:1rst, it means c111.:t)lll'llgi11i: t·111ploycc 
"'''111.:rship ancl pa rl idpation In 
111:111 :1gl' n1c11l. As 111a11y now rcn1gni'IC, 
111ost n1:ij1w t·urpon\l Ions n n· 1•nt i1 cly In 
1he h:111tls llf a ~ctr pc11>1:111:1tlng 
1n:i11ngcme11t. 111 1'111ft·:.sor Galh1:ii1h's 
phra'ic, "the eu thn 1:1-.ia of the ,rock 
hlihkr" j, nlnll>'i t l'01 lpkte for mo~t of 
our l n rgc~ t linm. ~ ia11111, .. mcn t is 
I hen: fore llCctHllll'1blc 10 Ill) OllC. 

The th l'l' c·wa y joi 11 l p11hlic-1"wkcr­
l' Olll Ill II :1ity {l \\'ll Cl'~hip llrl'anl:.! ll1e11ls 
o;ugcc'\tecl for the fc11c1a l Cll 11tr:1~1n1., in 
lrn11o;portnt ion could he nppliccl to other 
fcdcral contrac ts nnd to ot her in· 
d u\I rics. ,\ s first !>tcp~ in a new cl ircc· 
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tion,. ,,ntl as 'is common in West Ger- and towns and states to engage in 
rha'ny und elsewhere in Europe, n~n- serious planning around the question of 
supervisory employees could be prov1d- what they want their town or neigh-
ed with scats on corporate Board of borhood to look like. Beginning efforts 
Directors by law. Consumers and for such democratic planning arc now 
representatives of communities that being tried in cities such as New York, 
receive both the burden and advantage Minneapolis, and Washington, D.C. At 
of the firm's location might also be the state level, Hawaii, Washington and 
eligible for scats. Investors would, of Iowa have involved thousands of 
course, receive a return on their capital citizens in plann ing for the next 25 
_ just as employees receive a return on yc:trs. All of our experience shows that 
their labor - but the control of the en· the issues, techniques and technology of 
tire enterprise, which includes labor as such planning are not beyond the ca-
wcll as capital, would be shared. pacity of ordinary citizens, if we allow a 

Secondly, as we move deeper and reasonable time to develop c ~:ricrience. 
deeper into a planned economy, it is im- With the basic power to ph .111d the 
pcrativc that we begin to widen the par· ·control over key resources. com1 .111nities 
ticipation in the planning process itself. could also bcgin lo build local altcrna-• . 

Fortunately we do not have-1:" · ' .1rt lives to the for-profit grO\\lh oncnted 
from scratch. We have bchinc\-1. .:i -=' ' ".:orporation. The last clccadc has seen 
ten years of experience with \'a\!1fus 1it~p1c formation of a number of such com­
tcm pls at cit izcn pa rlicipa t ion :ind \,111 n ity based inst it 111 ions, including 
co1111111111ily pl:11111ing - from urban re- consumer cooperatives. co111111unity 
ncwal to transportation to antipoverty development eorpornlions, 111unicipally 
programs. In mos I of these cases. com· ownctl enterprises. cvc11 a few worl,er 
1nu11ily participation wns rcprt!sc rit ..:11 owned fadorics. They ct111tai11 the seeds 
by citi1...:11s lighting for lhe right to pnr· of n much l:'trgcr l'Oll~ titucncy for a 
ticipale. And in 111osl instances citi1.cns plann..:d fair anti 1lc1.:cntrali1cd econ· 
have been in a negative 'lance. 'l11ey llll\)'. Several propo~:ils have been m:idc 
ha\..: bc..:11 trying to stnµ some outrage by Ralph Nader amt lit hers f11r the cre:t· 
- some highway. -;omc 111011,trous tion of devclop111c11l banks lo ;1,,b,1 in 
pkce or pu~1lic 1111usi11g, the pol111tio11 the linant' illg and prnvi,ion 11r tl'Chnieal 
of some river - r:ithcr than plan Jiu· ll!.~ i s l1111ce to these lnl·al i11,t i111tions. 
somcthin1t· llec.::111!>1! they arc loca l and geographic· 

Nevc1 thclcss hnn<lrctl-; of thou~:111cls ally rooted. they :H'c much h:ss gearc(l to 
of pctiple from all walks of' life have the c.:c.111ti1111lHts gl'llwth lhal is the goal 
had cx pc.·ric11c.:c in orga11i1.ing thei r or the 1110tlcl'll big bmincss wrporation. 
ncighlwrs. interpreting i'1.'11i ng nwps, 111 a \cc.:11 rc ec.:ono111y the .role of' 1the 
makint: co111111 11nity \llt"ll')'S. tl cnwn- :-. 111:111 !oe .J c.·11tre 1 ~rc 11 e 11r 1111ght abo ~H! 
'i trating in rn111t uf city flail 1111cl so sln:11i;thc.:11cd. Ult1111:itc..:ly a 1lc111ncr:1t1..:· 
fo, th. 'l'l•c-;c ·1 rc all critka l ~ki ll-; in a!ly cldc1111i11c<l 11:1 ti l1na l plan .,1w11ld uc 
b:iildi11g th!.! l'ap:itity f'M 1lc1111.)c.:ralic thc int cgr:ll cd and l':m· fully h:ila11l·c.:d 
planning. 11ul lhc cxpc1·i<!11c.:I.! of thi: l a~ t s11111 of tltc pl.111s ol' lh1111.,a11cl'i ul' cr1111· 
1lcc:11li.: lonk place in :111 e n\'irn111llent 11111nities uml m·lghlu11'lto1Hls i11 
"hc1c planning ihclf hntl little 111e:i n- America. 1111t thc p11litkally h:1l:111ced 
ing. What g1.11>d tlicl it dn to participate \'iew::. 11f a 1'1·•·'i idc.:11ti:1l 't:1ff .11\d a Ii.\\' 
in the plr11111i11i; 11f one's t:•>1111111111ity if l..1·y C'o11g1·c .,~ i1111:1 I l'lwirn1i:11. S1 •l· tio11 7 
the key \' ,ll i.1blcs - like fh l.! lo: .1tlo11 or 111' the (\Hl)~l l''l '>lll.1 11 I l:l\d, i11'i' Fqual 
jobs nn<l h11 11~i11g \\WC lllll ofthc ~·on· Oppnrt1111ity 1111cl F11ll l ~111pl11)111c11t Bill 
lrol of the c1 u111 11 1111ity'! 111 the context of npens 1he tll11>r by prnvidi11g flll' l1wa l 
a nalional c.:11111111i t111c11t ti.1 'icc11 rc jnl1s pla11ni11g n1u11~ils and "n)11 11111111ily 
:i nd fair l':tpit :tl :t ltOe:t liOll, etll llll llllit)' UO:tl'((<;," 1311( (lil'\I.! :tl'I' lllCrl'l)' :ic )\•j\(W)'. 

pl. 11ni11i; wt111 ld he 11111c.:h 111nn.: rekva11t. The rc:d pM'cr b ~till ltcltl in th..: ha nds 
Co1111111111ily plans for p1 1p11l:1til)ll of 1h~ ln11 1:11111.: rney; i11 the 11 11 lou fa111il · 
grnwth. j11b dc1•clop111c11t, h1111 ., i11g, ia1 p11lli.:111. dti1.c11 partidp:1 tion i".I :1 

s'hould be the core of the planning proc· 
ess. National plans should refl~ct. not 
dictate, community priorities. 

Democracy, of cou rse, is a value in 
and of itself and should be pursued for 
its own sake. But there arc additional 
reasons for making it a major goal of 
economic policy. Over the next decade 
and beyond Americans arc going to be 
asked to make major adjustments and 
sacrifices. Only when there is a sense of 
commu nity and a sense of participation 
will such plans have the confidence nnd 
trust of the population. Without that 
trust American dcmocraey itself will be 
hard pul to survive. More fundamental­
ly, economic policy should, we believe, 
scr\'c the broader, positive goal of rein· 
vigorating the experience of community 
in America. 

It is obvious that the long term go3b 
we have sketched cannot be met all at 
once. Nor can they be mct without short 
term political connicls - both between 
the parties and within the pnrtics. 
Finally, th..:y ea11nol lie met without n 
~ig11ilka11l period of open and honest 
cxpcri111 c11tation. public tlcbalc, :111d 
wide. ranging inquiry into iiubjcc.ts 
prcv1011sly sw..:pt under the 111g 111 
Amcrica11 politics . 

We bclic\'c that the American public 
is both 11wl111·e cnout:h for i.uch n 
clehatc - :11111, l)l'fSSecl by CCOllOlllk cir­
e11111:.ta111:cs - more th an ready for it. 
There arc a l ~o ~ ignili c11 11t ~tarting 
pni11ts rur all thc ba ~ic tleparlurcs in 
legislation :1lrc11i.ly intr<>tlucctl by 
cst;lulisllcd pnli1icin11s - fro111 Kcn­
nc<ly, Stc,•en'inn, M11g1111H1n illld 
l hlmphrcy i11 the Sc:11 nte 10 l~ i: 11 ss. 
I la\\ kin'i n11d others i11 the I llHl\C. 

tr:111::.1H1rla ti1111 t'c.1ulcl. :11111 :.I 0111<1, tic 111aq;i11al 'op to <lc111m'1a1k itlcal'i. 
the h:\) iS 11pc.111 \\ hich r 'tfi1.1n:d 'C',nllrecs <itcp'i in a 1111.lrl! (lll\ith·c di1'.·1·tin1t :If\! 

arc :i lloea ll'<I. lhc i111pr1W~·cl 1~ iti1 c 11 p:i1 tki pa tion re · 

We 111e pre~l· 11tly l'11tc1 ing a time of 
1wtiti•·nl i11 st;1hility a11d a111hi\'alc11ec: 
l~cpuhli l'ans p11,pnsc h11gc c11crgy 
~pending pro i..: rnni.. thr1111ch new public 
l·1lrpqr:iti1.111<>; D1·1110c1·:t1'i t' llt bal·k 
\Ocial 111 1,u1:1111'i. It i" 11 pnllt ic.:u l c 1.lln· 

nionpl:l~·c to ' "Y Iii.ti the 11:ilio11 11111 \l 
h:"'c h11lcl 11 i.:w j11llicics. Uu l the p~ 1 tics 
~1.rnti11111· to ur.hp liir ~horl lcrlll ild· 
va 111 :111..: while the dh.t1111k11t 1>11ild'i, 
anti ,~·i1ik p11li tki.111!-t 11f the l~ it:ht .,rep 
up thtir c'pl11i tati1111 111' the cii111c 1111tl 
\'inlcm·c whkh arc the i11c,•it.1ble re~ 111t 
of '"'!!ln ·ti11g hn-.k prnhlrnl!.. It b ti111c 
that \IC heui11 h :i tal..c 0111~eh·e~ ,,•1·i1111s· 
I)'· ll11le .. s the poliliC'al pa1·tics take 
tl'~pn 11 , ihi l ily fqr 11pc 11 1kbatc 1HI the 
future of 1\1n c1 ka . the 1i111c i ~ not 1'.1r off 
when thc)' "ill i.:1·a .. c h l have a p.1rt to 
pl:iy i111h.11 fu111r..:. o 

J\ '\ccnntl uc.: 1w1 alien" of l'1l11111111nity q11ire111c11h i11 t r:111,111>rt<1liu 11 .111tl hnll\· 
pl:111 11ing. therdnrc. w1rnlcl pnwiclc i11g prnhlc1m. fb1 h~· 1· than :111 a fl cr-
as)ht:111ec lo citi1.cn'> i11 11..\ghuorhnods th1111 ght. l'11111nrn11i1y pl :11mi111-: co1111cils 

rt.i. 1 · ~1><"• h •<'p• i1111·1! '"" " I hr n c-111111 I .ti ic It(\; ...... N1t\1•1tll11•1 I 97!t. " \Y, I\ 11 ... 111 .. Jo• ,., t11111111i1 p .1111•1 1111 ''' " ''" .11 11t ili1. m•ril Ill 1h1• N.11im1.1! 1)1•tt11)~ 1 .tdf' 
1'" 11 .. C1.11l\1·ntion lo I 1111i .. 1ll1-. l<1'n111d.y, N111t•ml1<·r l'l?!1. 
Copin All' ,1\o1il;1hk .11 7~· ('.IC h 10 CIJ\l' r lll\I or p1i111ini; .1111.J 111.1i!in11. Q11.1111ilie\ ;1l hull. 1.11n. \\'1i1c.·: ~. l' EI\. l :i l !I ( '1111111 ·• do HI l\11· thlC' :-.l1111h .. r11. 

WJ,H11gto11. I> t; , :IOO:lfi , • J ' 
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The Problem 

It is PIE-F's understanding tha.t the Gover!'lor and the Alaska Permanent 
·- -- . . . - . . . -- ... _ --- --

Fund Commission (APFC) are faced with a complex set of problems in deter-

mining how .best to invest the revenues to be received by the Permanent Fund 

(the Fund) . · The idea of maintain~ng, as a permanent part of the State ' s 

endo~ent, a financial fund to offset the disappearance of one set of the 

State's basic real wealth, much of its oil and gas, is obviousl y appeal ing. 

Effectively carrying out. that mandate is , however, replete with pract5.cal 

· and even some theoretical difficulties . For example, defining a "permanent" 

value for the fund in the face of continued inflation is itself not a 

simple matter . 

There appe!1X" to be two basic problems only one of which is, as we 

understand, the r esponsibility. o~ APFC. Determining how to invest the 

corpus is APFC ' s major mi s s ion but, this should perhaps not be carried out 

entirely without regard to the second problem, determining (by the 

Legislature) how to employ the earnings gained from the investment of the 

c~rpus of the Fund . 'rhis proposal is concerned exclusively with the 

former question. 
' . 

There are a number of what mi ght be considered contextual probl ems 

which can be partially solved or i>ossibly exacerbated by the nature of t .he 

Fund's employment, but which in any event should be considered in making 

rational decisions as to the kind of investnient of the Fund that would · 

best serve the interests of t he general public of Alaska. Among these 

contextual problem areas are : 

o uneven development of Alaska, the urban- rural differences; 

• o the impact of any investment program on immigration and 

he nce on land values, on the one hand, and earnings and amenities of 

pr.esent residents on the other; 

o problems of distr"ibution of income and wealth; 

o problems of relations betwee n· white and na tive populations; 

o the difficult problems of s tability--seasonality of 

employment, the "boom town" phenomenon"; 

o the relative roles of the public and private s ectors . 



• 
Obviously, deciding where the public interest lies in seeking solutions to 

these problems . involves subjective judgments as to social and political 

values, as well as economic considerations. However, whatever one's 
# 

beliefs about these pr~blems, they will be affected by the uses to which 

the Fund is put and the way the Fund is managed . 

There are similarly a number of sometimes incompatible criteria by 

which various possible .uses of the Fund might be evaluated : 

o How can the benefits o:: the investment be ~ept in 

Alas.ka? 

o How can the uses of the Permanent Fund complement other. 

State revenues or other income and wealth in the State? 

o Is it desirable .to transform the dollar flows into the 

fund into some form of tangible investment in Alaska, intangible 

invesbnent in Alaska? If the income potential is lar<,Jer, should some 

of the funds be invested outside Alaska? 'lhe problem of local versus 

external investment '1E'\Y be particularly complex because of the fact 

that different segments of the population may benefit from one 

investment policy far mor~ · than from the other . 

Preliminary thinking by the ~ublic Interest Economics Foundation 
t 

staff has led to the tentative conclusion that tr. ~ major candidate areas 
I 
I 

for investm~nt of the fund can , f9r discussion purposes, be usefully be 

grouped into ,such categories a's : 1 

o infrastructure : hi~hways, aviation facilities, sewer 

and ,, ter systems, public utilities (especially electricity); 

o seed funding to Alaskan cities for urbanization/development/ 

redevelopment; 

o housing subsidies, either for areas. where housing costs are 

particularly high or where needs ar~ particularly great; 

o hWTian capital "investment, education, health , training; 

o direct income redistribution transfer payments; 

0 external investment. 

The Corrunission or its staff may well have identi fied other ar.eas of: 

comparable or greater interest to it. 

The problem of choosing the balance, among these (or other) main areas 

for investment, which would best meet the needs of .the people of Alaska is 



extraordinarily complex and difficult. This proposal :i.s written in the 

belief that the Public . Interest Economics Foundation can provide expert, 

impartial analysis that should help decision-makers to solve that problem, in 
light of the potential goals and contextual proBlems identified above. 

The PIE~F Approach 

The ·Public Interest Economics Foundation is, as is more fully 

described berow, a not-fo~-profit public interest corporation . comrni~ted 

to approaching economic and social problems with a high level of 

technical rigor and with the overall purpose of advancing the interest of 

the public at large. 

T.he research and related capclbilities of PIE-F suggest that, ov~r 

t~ ~, we could usefully examine a substantial range of policy aspects of 

the investment dec i~ions fqcing SIA, incluqing its West ~oast affiliate 

(PIE- ,/est). In par.ticular PIE-F has extensive experience in several of 

the areas of potential investment j ust specified: transportation, 

educ~tion, public utilities, mineral resources, health, financial 

institutions. The pr1ncipals of PIE-F would be willing to come to Alaska 

to d~scuss a range of research possibilities.. However, in order to present 

a .reasonably concrete initial proposal, we ~repose here to examine 
I 

investment in infrastructure--particularly t:-ansportation infrastructure 
I 

and, possibly, electric public utilities. PIE-F would be willing to 

investigate some other areas of g11~eater interest to SIA in which we are . 
particularly well qualified. The details of the proposed work would of. 

· course be different, but the major thrust of the approach would be similar 

. for 11vrny · areas of potential investment. 

Any category of investment encompasses an implied objective. In most 

instances, the objecti~e may be expressed on a quantit~tive dimension, su•h 

as new nousing units pet annum; employment or 'income gains per period in · a 

specific basic industry such as fishing or lumber; dollar value or square 

footage of redeveloped urban space. 

In addition to the specific objectives measured by the quantified 

dimension, a varie!;y ~f other public policy concerns/objectives inhere .in . 
each investment c~tegory. The committee may, for example, wish to know 

the. effect which each unit of expenditure in each category might have upon 



·' 

net immigration rates, lana use and urbanization rates, resource 

consumption or public service demand . 

Of the invHstment categories listed above,· on'iy one is 

specifically directed towards shifting the equi~y positions of income 

groups. All forms of publ ic investment, however, have equity implications. 

In addition to the productivity (benefits) accruing from a specific 

investment program, attendant public costs will arise . These costs will 

range in nature from secondary growth support systems (highway patro~, 

· rGad maintenance , ·sewc:•ge treatment plant management) to costs of depleting 

stocks of finite resources to housing loan program administration costs. 

For each investment category PIE-F will identify and , where possibl e, 

quantify pr.imary and sec;:ondary costs which can reasonably be anticipated. 

A decision to pursue specific investment options will yield aggregat~ 

economic effects. Employment, income, and price levels in Alaska will be 

affected to some degree, though not in all instances to an empirically 

signifi~ant level. In addition to these aggregate variables, price and 

income changes will occur in specific industries and geographic areas. If , 

for instance, an ambitious housing subsidy program were chosen , it can be 

c~pected that there will be upward pressures on the price level associated 

with income and employment gains in selected areas. 

In its role as an outside renearch resource, the PIE-F staff would not 

(at least initially) undertake to ' rnake recommendations, but would rather 

examine the full range of rnajor consequences oi investment in infrastructure 

(or other agreed area of investment) . Preliminary analysis by the staff 

suggests that the; following types of consequences would be suitable for 

analysis: 

o Efficiency of the overall economy, ba sed on use of 

complementary resourses, suitability of the investment to the needs of 

/\laska, costs , t i.ming and, hence , the rate of return and present value 

of l he now of benefits to be expected. 

o . Distributional irnpacts including rich/poor, n;itive/non­

native, old-timer/newcomer and l ncentives to migrate, and regional 

i ncluding urban/rnral . 

o Stability .cdtcda tnclt~ding scasonnlity of employment , 

boom- bus t cycle , and vulnerability to fluctuutions in export prices. 

o Public versus private sector involvement. 



• Additional con~~quences might be of ~reat interest to the committee. 

Before beginning detailed data gathering and analysis, the l i s. of 

consequences to be examined would be ~greed upon between SIA and PIE-F, 

as would the specifics· of the investments to be ~xamined. 

The problems are, of course, too broad to be examined. exhaustively 

within the time and money resources proposed . It is PIE-F's intent to 

develop a syste~atic way of analy~ing the consequenc~s of infrastructu·.e 

investments, to draw out the general character of consequences in 

qualitative terms and to the extent possible indicF,te orders of magrltude.' 

The rcport ' is i ntended to provide a good qualilatLve base for understanding 

the implications of broad policy decisions cor ·..; :!rning the advisability of 

major investment in the kinds of facilitie~ ) be examined . 

Tasks and Schedule 

These major tasks are envisaged : 

o Background 

o Field examination and iri:forma tion gat1' .. ~ring 

o Analys is 

Task One: Drawing on the resources in Washington , D. c. and on 

those in the San Francisco Bay area and Seattle, t he study staff will 

develop a basic understanding of : 

o the legis lative background , t he history, and mandute of 

SIA; 

o such directly or indirec tly related dcvelor:ncnts as the 

land allocations associated with statehood , the Native clai m::; settl ement; 

o the pipeline legislation and its ~conomic implicati ons. In 

this task t he s t aff members will supplement their previous exposure to 

/\lasknn affairs ttr\d will be l ed by Ms . Mary CJ.:\y Derry, au t hor of The 

Alaska Pipe line: The Politics of Oil and tlative Land Cl aims . 

'I'hc initial back9round work will be performed in the l ower .for t y­

ei9ht Cor r eai:;ons of economy. once t he material s readily available outside 

Ala:.;ka hnvc been digested, t he backgrouncl cxplor,\tions wi ll move to J\lnskn. 

Key members of the t onm wll.l come t o Juneau and l\nchoragf! to visit with 

mcmhern o( Sl/\ a nd offici41ln in the OCficc o f the Governor , t he St nto 

Leg lslat1·1.·e , nnd th~ir staffs . J\ vinit will 2'li;;o be mode to the Unlverzlty 

oC /\lDckn , a t l oi1st the AnchorA9e compu~ . 'l'he purpose of this par t of t hc 

viGit wi ll bo to complete dcve l opnent o C backg round inCormhtion. 

Task 'l'wo: Liu9ely in /\lnGku , pt:obnbly ac a cont intmtlon of t he 



I 

same visit, infcrmation will be gathered on: . 
. . . . 

o the particular kinds of infr astructure (or possibly other 

investment) under serious consideration for investment of Fund monies; .. 
o economic devel opments and forecasts; 

0 availability of complementary resources; 

o kinds of consequences of particular importan9e to SIA; 

o . relevant quantitative data, and 

o attitudes of various sectors of the population regarding 

\1se CJf the Fund . 

During the early stages of the visit,agreement would be reached o:n 

all the major features of the research to be performed, s~ch as the 

specific investment categories to be· examined and the consequences to be 

explored. In addition avenues for obtaining additional information would 

be identified. 

The second portion of the visit would be devoted to gathering the 

detailed information needed for the investigation. 

Task Three: On the basis of ti background inforr.iaf:ion initially 

obtained , the objectives and details agreed in Alaska, the information 

gathered in Alaska and outside the State,the study team would perform the 

analysis. The analysis would specify to the fullest extent possible within 
j 

the constraints of time and resom:ces , the foreseeable cont-iequen(':es of the 

investment patterns analyzed. A ' ~eport would be prepared . It woul d 

describe the project, the background, the. information gaci1erod, the analysis 

and the conclusions. It would al no identify the Hmi.tn tions of the '.itudy 

and indicate areas where further r esearch should be performed . A carnera­

ready copy would be delivered to tho Conunittea. After delivery of the 

report, if the budgot allowed and the committee desired it, key .nembers 

of the PIE-F study team would come to Alaska to make oral presentation of 
~ 

the work and its results. 

Sche'dule : Although a research project must be managed in a 

flexible way , an~ it i s , t her efore , impossible to be precise llbout all 

aspects of the schedule of completion a major unde rtaking such as t hat 

contemplated here , the following schedule appears to be rcaU.stic. 

Work will get underway immediately upon recoipt of written 

au t horlzution to proceed . 

Wi t hin four week~ the background work outside Alas ka will 

be complete. . 

The fifth week would be spent in /\lnska , largely completing 



.. 
the background work and reaching final agreement on the content of the 

remainder of the work. 

The sixth and, possibly the seventh week, some of the regular 

staff and the Alaska liaison person would devot~ to gathering information. 

By the end of the twelfth week the analysis is to be completed. 

During the remaining three weeks the analysis would be reviewed 

and the report put into final form, edited and typed. The camera-re . ~} 

copy should be mailed fifteen weeks after authorization to proceed. 

In the sixteent~ week PIE-F representatives would be available 

to visit Alaska for oral presentations and discussions. 

Management and Staffing: 

The project will be under the direct supervision of 

Dr. Allen R. Ferguson, President of PIE- F. The study will be undertaken 

jointly by the Washington office and its West Coast office, PIE-West. 

PIE-West is managed by Robert Wocott who will be responsible for 

supervising the work to be performed there. We plan t o designate 

Professor Richard Norgaard of the University of California as project 

manager. Ms. Mary Clay Derry has agreed to be a special consultant to 

the PIE-F team , advising on the background of the problem area . A 

resident of Alaska will be engaged on a part-time basis to provide 

liaison for PIE-F ·with Alaskan ofCiciols and to obtai n information in 
I 

add.ltion to that gathered during the visit to 1\laska. 

It is intended that the remai nder of the study team will be 

selected from among the individuals whose resumes are provided below. 

Dudget: PIE-F proposes to undertake the study on a cost plus 

fixed fee basis comprised ot all direct costs, including fringe benefits, 

overhead on all direct costs computed at a rate of 70 percent, and a 

management fee of 12 percent. It is proposocl that the total obligation of 

the State not exceed $36,500. 

The busi!:> for t he budget is shown ln 'l'able I. It should be 

noted that the bud<]ct doe~ not include tho costs of travel to or within 

/\las ka or costs oC food and lodging in the state . That estimate is 

omitted becllur;c Hntil inj ti<tl convcr!rntions arc held with representatives 

of the s tate, it is impossible to determine the extent of s uch travel. 

Those conts would, o( course , be added t o tho State's o~ligation under 

n11y forthcoming contract . 



QUALIFICATIONS 

General: 

The Public Interest Economics Foundation (PIE-F) is ~ct-for-profit 

public interest co~poration--?Ol(c) (3)--incorporated in the District of 

Columbia. .It was established by a group of economists and public 

interest advocates with the primary purpose of involving economists more 

systematically in public policy decisions to advance the public interest. . 

PIE-F and its affiliate , the Public I11terest Economic.r, C-=?nter (PIE- C) 

--a SOl(c) (4) corporation--carry out five interrelated programs: research, 

education, goverrunental relations and a clearinghouse program which 

provides liaison between professional economists and public interest 

groups and goverrunent· . officials, and publication of a newsletter 

Public Interest Economics. 

PIE- West is the West Coast ·office of PIE-F. It concentrates on 

research, educational, 
j 

and clearinghouse f\\:~ctions. It has contacts 

throughout the western United Sjtates extending into Canada. Its major 

research activities have concentrated on economics of resource use and 

environment. 

The staffs of PIE-F, PIE- C and PIE··West are treated as a single pool 

and arc interchangably assigned to var~ous projects and all three draw 

on the same pool of external expertise. This project will be undertaken 

ar. part of PIE-F's research program. 

The conduct of PIE's research activites is unique in several 

respects. It is PIE ' s policy to carry out research programs in economics 

and related' fields that can be expected to contribute to advnncing· 

the public interest. 



As a public j nter_est nonprofit research organization, PIE-F has 

as basic component3 two rather special sorts of groups: , 

o two boards of advisors--a Board of Economic Advisors and a 

Board of Public Interest Advisors , and 

o a large complement of volunteer economists, as well as paid 

consultants , currently numher~ng over 800. 

The membership of the two advisory boards (see attached ~IE-F 

brochure) reflects a broad range of political orientation and includes 

individuals of national stature as well as less prominent persons of 

special competeuce. These advisors have been genuinely involved in the 

activities of PIE-F , including PIE:-West, and it has become a standard 

practice to use members of the Board "of Economic Advisors as reviewers 

.and advisors on particular research projects . Through these advisory 

boards and the hundreds of affiliated economists PIE-F/C is able to 

i 
identify, evaluate and recruit on an ad hoc basis economists with 

I - -
virtually every kind of specialization from throughout the country. 

PIE-F/C's research. activities arc organized to take full advantage 

of its own nuclear staff and regular consultants as -well as its special 

access to outside professionals. . It is typical practice to develop 

resea.rch teams consisting of regular staff, member~ of the board of 

economic advisors and temporary employees or consultants drawn in part 

from the list of P!E-F associates. The management pl.:in for the present 

project is an example of this kind of organization. 

In all PIE-P/C projects , a serious effort is made to assure high 

professional quality. Most of tho projects have been under the direct 

supervision of an economist with a national reputation; frequently, pre-



l~ minary results have been reviewed and criticized by a team of members 

of the Board of Economic Advisors. In a number of instances new theory 

or' methodology has been developed to cope with practical applied 

problems in an analytically rigorous and sound manner. In addition , 

senior members of the PIE-F/C research team have goverrunental, 

research and volunteer-sector experience. 

Research Experience 

In their five years of existence PIE-C/F have completed major 

studies in areas directly relevant to the requirements of the Alaska 

Permanent Fund Commission,Research has focused on gov~rnmental policy 

and its impact. Fields in which such studies have been performed range 

from the environment to health care. Najar studies have covered: 

analysis of the effect of regulatlon and taxation on water quality 

invest, regulation and subsidization of railroads, the merchant 
I 

marine, motor carriers , irnpac"ts of off-shore development, health care 

facilities, solid waste 
I . 

facilities, inland waterways, regulation of 

banking anrl the electric power industry. Other studies have been 

concerned with the distribution of the burden of costs of environmental 

protection, industrial no~se Legulation, materials policy and regulation 

of milk marketing . 

Some projects that appear to b~ of particular relevance are 

briefly swrunarized below. The scope of PIE-F/C research activities 

is provided in .the publications list attached. 

l. Infrastructure and utilities 

For the Unites States Railroad nssociation and for the State of 

Maryland, PIE- C under took two major studies dealing with the conseque1 • .:cs 



of ,disinvesting in rail facilities. The study examined the obverse of 

the question: what are the social and economic impacts of increasing 
.. 

investment in infrastructure? The methodology would apply broadly to 

hat question ~s well as to the question for which it was developed. 

These studies resulted in. the publication of two reports : The Impacts 

on CotMlunities of Abandorunent of Railroad · servi~ (USRA- C-50010, 

Dr. Robert Gallamore) and Railroad Abandoi.• ~' Ln Maryland for the 

Department of Economic and Community Devel.or . ..;nt, >tate of Maryland. 

For the National Association of Rail ?assengers (NARP) , PIE-F is 

creating a detailed research agenda on the question of Federal ownership 

of all (or part of) the rail~oad fixed plant (track, terminals, etc.) 

in the United States. •r-he deteriorated condition of railroad track and 

other facil.i.ties and the poor financ i a l condition of most American 

· railroad~ have already created ~risis situations (notabiy the Penn 
I 
' 

Cen~ral), but there is clear likelihood of further wide-spread collapse. 
' 
! 

Fundamentally the technology of freight transport and the demand for 
I 

freight trnnsport have changed markedly in tha period since the railroads 

were ·organized and buU.t. 

For the Community Involvement Network PIE-F prepared a citizens' 

manual for electric utili t y rate reform. The 'large incrcaseB in 

electricity rates which have occurred more or l ess continuouBly in 

recent years have sparked wi de-spread citizen action. Much of the reason 

for the upwa~d rate spiral li.es in the "declining rate" pricing system 

and the classification of customers into more or less isolated categories, 

bothwidely used in the United States . This system oiscritninates against 

-~---·----·-



residential customers compared to industrial users and provides discounts · 

to large-volume users with~n each class. Fundamental rate reform, . 
implementing flat-rate ("fair share") peak-load electricity pricing 

and possibly "life-line." rates, is the only way to correct the$e problems 

and , at the same time, to assume most efficient use of additional 

plant capacity. The PIE-F manual explains a rationalized , equitable 

pricing system and advisee citizen groups on how to proceed in bringing 

utility rates to issue and in p~rticupating in the hearing process. The 

manual clears the air on the economics ofl <ilectricity rates in a readily 

understandable manner , spelliny out rate reform goals for citizen 

groups. 

PIE-C sponsorod the preparation of a s tudy as part of the Fora 

Foundation Energy Po).icy Project. The stucly by Charles Cicchetti , 

Edward ne~lin, and William Gill~n , entitled Perspective on P~wer : A 

!~uay of the Regulation and Pricing of El ectric Power (Ballinger Bookr., 

1975), denlt with the effect of existing nnd alternative forms of 

regulation in the electric power indsutry on efficiency, adequacy of 

investment and tr.chnological structure of that industry a nd, in turn, 

on the efficiency of the economy as a whole. 

2. Environmental issues 
~ 

A substantial amount of PIE-C/F ' s effort has been de voted to 

environmental economics. 'l'hree studies have dealt wlth wa ter quality . 

One was undertaken for the Environmental Protection Agency and dealt 

with the distribution of t he burden c: the co!'1ts of water pollution 

control nmong various segment!! of t he population. 'I'wo studies for 



Experimental Techn?logy Incentivss Program included analyses of the 

·effect on water pollution abatement technology of several r egulatory 
, 

changes: use of monetary penalties as supplements to rigid quality 

s~andards, the use of capital subsidies, the effects of postponement 

of compliance dates on abatement technology in the Delaware River Estuary 

(and in the automobile industry). 

PIE- West has assessed tu-=? on-shore economic impacts of outer 

continental shelf nil and gas development for the California Governor ' s 

Office of Planning and ·Research . In addition, PIE-C/F has been active 

in analyzing and in educational and advocacy efforts re1at~d to the use 

of poJ Jution taxes as a more efficient method of regu ... ation in the 

entire environmental area. 

We have just completed a study for. EPA on solid waste management 

· concluding that a c~arge on use ofvirgin materials in mctnufacturing 

would substantial~y and ef ficiel tly reduce solid ~aste. 
I 
I 

:; • Consumer issues I 

PIE-F/C has completed two projects of part.lcular relevance to the 

conswnerr: a study of the impact of dercgulati•.m-marginai cost pricing 

of natui:al gas for the Center for Strategic and International Studies 

at Geo.rgetown University and research on the potential economic impact 

of an effective national conswner education program i...f· · the Office of 

Con!:;umm: Education ( ·The Effect on Residential Customers of Natural 

Gas Price Deregulation ancl Economically Rc\tional UnifoJ.'11\ Pricing and 

~he Potential Economic Benefits of Consumer Educa tion . } 



4. RequJatory reform 

PIE-F/C has also been deeply involved in the analysis of a nd i n 

testimony and educa~ionalactivities associated with the_ regulation 

and reorganization of ~ailroads in the Northeast and Midwest with 

emphasis on the potential impact of change on efficiency and technol ogy 

in the railroad syst~m and , i ndirectl y , on the rest of the transportation 

industries. 

For the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice, PIE~C 

undertook to study the effects of the regulation of c=ean freight rate 

conferences by the Federal" Maritime Commiss ion on economic efficiency, 

competition and innovation in the ocean trades . 'J'.he project resulted 

in testimony on four related topics : Professor Leonard A. Rapping , 

University of Massachusetts, on North 1\tlantic Pool {NAPA) and Freight 

Rates; Allen R. Ferguson , NJ\Pl\ and Overtonnaging; /\aron J. Gellman, 

NAPA and Technological Change and Innovation; and Professor M.1\. /\delman, 
I 

Massachusetts Institute of Technology, N/\PJ\ and Compctit"ion in the Ocean 

Fr~ight Industry . ! 

Dr . Ferguson has testified for the House Merchant Marine and Fi~heries 

Committee on the economic and technological impacts of the operating 

differential subsidy program. 

5 .• State and financial studies 

1\lthough some s tudies have nlready been mentioned previously 

in other categories, it is relevant to this proposal to point out that 

PIE-F/C has undertaken the followi ng studies for state governments in 

order to demonstr ate our flexibility not only in dealing with . national 



agencies but also with st.ate agencies: Hospital Capacity in Somerville , 

An Application of Certificate of Need Legislation, A Review and Evaluation 

of the Application by Tileston ~ Hollingsworth for a Variance from the 

Massachusetts Regulations for the Corit~9..1 of Air Pollution, (and Varia~ 

from]\ir Quality Regulations: the Criteria for the Grant/Deny Decision, 

. . (all three for the Department of Public Heaith of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts;) A Policy Analysis r0r Recycling Municipal Solid Waste 

in Minnesota, for the Minnesota Pollution Control Agep.;y, and Railroad 

Abandonments in Maryland, for the Govern9r ' s Steering Committee , State 

of Maryland •. 

Three studies in. banking and finance indicate another aspect of 

PIE-F/C ' s ability to deal with the concepts involved 'in the pl~nned 

emp~oyment of Alaska's permanent fund: a book , The Banking System: 

A Preface to Public Interest Analysis, by Stanley W. Black III, 

Glenn Canner and Rob~rt G. King, published in March 1975 and . I . 
with a .g~anf. from the Stern Fund: Financial . I 

two 

studies prepare~ Inter-

l 

locking Directorates; Feasibility Study and Interlocking Directorates · 

among Financial and Non-Financial Corporations: Sur'fey and Background. 



RESUMES 

Allen R. Ferguson 

Robert M. Wolcott 

· Richard B. Norgaard 

Steven J. Buchanan 

Mary Clay Berry 

Polly Roberts 

.:roseph "Pat" Weinstein 

Edgar Rust 

I ., 



Education 

ALLEN R. FERGUSON 

PRESIDENT 
PUBLIC INTEREST ECONOMICS CENTER 

PUBLIC INTEREST ECONOMICS· FOUNDATION 
1714 Massachusetts Ave. , N.W. 

Washington, D.C. 20036 
(202). 872-0313 

Ph.D., Economics , Harvard University, 1949 
M.A., Economics , Brown University , 1943 
B.J\ . , Economics, Erown Univ~rsity, 1941 

PREVIOUS POSITIONS 

Independent Eaonomist, 1971-1972 

Planning Research ~orpo1Jtion , 1965-1971. Director of Policy Research 

Department of State , 1963-1365. Coordinator for International Aviation 

The RAND Corporation, 1953-1958, 1960- 1963. Senior Econonist and 
Deputy Head, Logisti cs Department 

Nort~western University, 1958-1960. Director of Research, 
The Transportation Center 

U. !:. Government , 1951-1953 . Industrial and Transportation Economist 

University of Virginia, 19~9-1951. Assistant Professor of Economics 

EXPERIENCE DIRECTLY RELATED TO ALASKA: 

I n 1971-1972 consultant to the Office of Economic Opportunity. P.evicwed t he 
OED-sponsored health delivery system in Alaska. Spent several weeks in 
Alaska, particularly in Nome and Bethel .and villages in their hi nterlands , 
also in Anchorage , Fairbanks and Juneau. 

EXPERIENCE DIRECTLY RELA'rED TO INFRA-S'l'RUC'l'URE ANALYSIS: 

Extensive research in transportation analysis, highway, air, water and rail; 
in public utilities; i n human resources, heal th, organization of human re­
sources delivery systems , consumer education ; environment . 

t'Yl'HER EXPERIENCE 

The Public Interest Economics Center and The Public Interes t Economics 
.Foundation arc coordi.nate 11ot-for-profit organizations i n Wc>shington 
whose overall function is to involve dconomists systematically in public 
policy . l\s co-founder and president of the organizations have overall 
responsibility for their funding and operation. 



. ' 

PIE-F research has concentrated in .transportation, environment, health 
technology and banking. Although the research varies, if there has been 
a main thrust , that thrust has been in the direction of reducing govern­
mental price and ·entry regulation in transportation, more effectively 
applying economic criteria for action in technorogy and health planning, 
and shifting the reliance in environmenta1 regulation from rigid standards 
to some form of pricing mechanism. 

Immediately prior to founding PIE-C and PIE-F, Ferguson worked as an inde­
pendent economist undertaking planning studies for high\\·ay development ~n 
Sumatra and evaluation of health programs in Alaska for the International 
Bank for Reconstruction ·and Development and the Office of Eco.nomic Opportunity 
respectively; preparing studies opposing some forms of Federal subsidiza­
tion, primarily for the SST and Lockheed; advising the Department of 
Educ~ tion of the government of Manitoba. 

At the Planning Research Corporation Fergu~~n was responsible for promoting 
and supervising civilian government research especially in economics and 
the social sciences. Previously, the corporation had engaged primarily 
in military research activities. Developed and supervised contract research 
covering such diverse areas as the evaluation of the H~ad Start Program, 
the first study of how the nascent Department of Transportation should 
implement PPB, a PPB planning study for the Manpower Administration, a 
study of urban manpower needs for the State of New York, other programs 
of research for such agencies as the Economic Development ~dministration, 
the Office of 'l'elecommunications Policy. l\mong the private clients for 
which PRC economic research was performed under Ferguson's supervision 
were Doeing, Air Canada, the Regular Route Common Carrier Association. 

In the Department of State, Per9uson occupied the newly created post of 
Coordfontor of International Aviation. 'l'hc office was designed to coor­
dinate the activities of the Civil Aeronautics Board, the Federal Aviation 
Administration , the Agency for International Development and the Department 
of State in international aviation. The subject matter included establishing 
and facilita ting U.S . policy on aviation in developing countries and on 
trade in aviation equipment; representing the Unlted Stutes governmnet in 
multinational conferences. 'l'he single most demanding portion of the position 
was responsibility for the commercial air <19reement negotiations between 
the United States and foreign governments. Served as head of the United 
States delegation in negotiations with several western European countries, 
and Canada, Japan, Nigerin , for excmple. In addition, played a substantial 
role in the rationalization of North Atlantic rates, resulting in their 
complete restructuring in 1964 . 

1\s the f.trst full-time Director of Research nt the 'l'ransportation Center at 
Nor t hwestern University, performed and supervined studien of severnl aspects 
of transportution, such as forecasting the pricc>s of used aircraft (at the 
time when tho airlines were converting from pi r; ton to jct power) , and some 
aspectn of highway subsicllzatlon. The mo!Jt import11nt product wns The Economic 



Value of the United States. Merchant Marine , p~blished i n 1961 , which became 
the standard work in the field. Its conclusion , that the subsidization of 
the merchant marine was economically unsound , formed the basis for much of 
maritime policy of the federal administrations since that time • 

• 

At t he RAND Corporation during "the early l960's performed research on arms 
control, deterence, and the Berlin crisis. During the 1950's I was deputy 
and, for a year, acting Head of the , then new, Logistics Department , orga­
nizing researc_h on Air Force supply , maintenance, transportation and pro­
curement policy. The program succeeded in facilitating the introduction 
of some policies designed to reduce inefficiency in the Air Force logi stics 
system. The policies were based on the appl ication of newly oeveloped 
inventory theory, application of compute~ technology and reorganization of 
the role and characteristics of air transport in the logistics system. 

In the early 1950 ' s Ferguson was an economist with the Office of Price Stabi­
lization anr~ with the Centi.:al Intelligence Agency. 

At the University of Virginia taught the advanced economic analysis course 
for undergraduates and the course in t r ansportation economics . 
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ADDENDA TO FERGUSON BIBLIOGRAPHY: 

·- .--
With Steve Buchanan and Bradley Gewehr, Citizen Involvement in ·Reformi na 
Electric Utility Rates, prepared for Citizen Involvement Network, May 1976. . . 

.. 
Statement Prepared for Subcommittee on Merchant Marine of the House of 
He rcsentatives Commi ttce on Nerchant Marine nnd Fisherieo at an .Oversight 
hearing concerning·thc Operating Differenti(,1.1 Subsidy 6DS). , February 26 , 
1976. 

Statement Prepared for the Senate Subcommittee on Anti trust · and Monopc·ly 
Lerrisla.tion, Committee on the Judiciary, a step toward reducing the inequi­
ties and inefficiencies in the current system . of price and enb:y regulation 
in transportation, Decemb~r 10, 1975. ,. 

Beyond Keynes : Fairness and Growth, adress delivered at the National 
Democratic Issueo Convention in Louisville , Kentucky, November 22, 1975. . . 
Sta·tement Prepared for the House of Representatives Subcommittee on 
'rrnnsporti.tion and· Commerce, Committee on Interstate and Forei1111 Commerce 
in support of controlled transfer ao the key ingredient in the reorgani­
zation of the rail system in the Midwest and Northeast, uelivered on 
September 10, 1975. 
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SELECTED BIBLIOGRAPHY 

With Leonard Lee Lane and Donald A. Stewart: The Economics of the 
Railroad Problem, prepared for the Sierra Club , August 26, 1 975 . 

,. 
Statement Prepared for the House of Representatives Subconunittee on 
Interstate and Fore~gn Commerce , delivered on September 10, 1975. 

Testimony Prepared for the House of Representatives Subconunittee on 
Transportation and Commerce, Committee on Interstate and Foreign 
Commerce, delivered on July 24, 1975 • . 

St.'ltement Prepared for the Sen.1te Subcommittee on Antitrust and Monopoly 
Legislation, Committee on the Judiciary_, delivered on December 10, 1975. 

~eyond Keynes: Fairness and Growth, address delivered November 22, 1 975 
in Louisv.t.lle, Kentucky at the National De.'llocratic I ssues Convention. 

With Leonard Lee Lane, Transportation Policy Options: The Political 
Economy of Regulatory Reform, prepared for the Deparbnent of Transportation , 
1975 • . 

With Norman H. Jones and Albert Lowey _Ball: Evaluation of Proposed 
Standards for Determininq Rail Servic•:! Continuation Subsiclies-- 7\ Public 
Interest Approach, prepared f.or the Office of the Public Counsel, Rail 
Services Planning Office, 1974. 

· .~scd Occupational Noise Exposure Regulation, Stat.ement for EP/\ before · 
Occupational Safety and llea~th 1\dministration , 1975 . 

I 

With . .Dprry Sl<1vsky: Evaluation of the Bolt , Beranek and Newman, Inc. 
Study of .the Impact of Noise Control at the Work Place, prepared for 
the Office of Noise Abatement, . Environmental Prote ction 7\gency, 1974. 

With .Donald Mitchell Smith and Victor llabib: The Gross Revenue Impact 
on Railroads in the Conr.:iil Reqion of Placing User Ch<trges on Barges, 
prepared for United States 'Railway 7\irnociation, 1975. 

With others: 1\ ' PoliEY /\nillysis for Recycling Municipal Solid Waste in 
Minneso ta, prepared for Minnesota Pollution Control /\gcncy, 1975. 

Wi'th others: Co11umini ty Impact::: of /\bnndonment of Railroad Services, 
United States Railwuy Associat.ion, 19./'1. 

With 1\lbcrt I.owcy nall and Victor llnbib: llospltal Cilpacity in Somerville, 
prcpnred for Blue Cross of Massachusetts and the Massuchusctts Dep.:trtment 
of Public llenl th; 197 3. 

With Marc Roberts and 1\rthur Snow: Vilrfo.ncc from Air Quality Rcgulation5: 
'l'he Criteria for the Grant/Deny Decision , prcpnrcd for the Massachu setts 
Department of Public llcnl th, 1973. 



With Norman' H. J9nes et al: Project Evaluation--Project Scoring for the 
Economic Develoµnent Administration, Planning Research Corporation, 1966. 

With others: Railroad Aband~mments in Maryland, prepared for. the 
Governor's Steering Committee on Railroad Ab-ndonments, 1973. 

A Design for the Evaluntion of the Comprehensive Health Care Program in 
Alaska prepared for the Office of Health Affairs, OEO, August 1972. 

With others: A Review and Evaluation of the Application by Tileston 
and Hollingsworth of Boston, Massachusetts, for a Variance from the 
Massachusetts Regulations for the Control of Air Pollution , prepared 
for .the D~partmet:\t of Public ·Health of the Commonwealth of Mas~achusetts. 

·"The Role of Neig'hborhood Health Centers in Economic Development-", 
Neighborhood flealth Center Seminar Program, Berkeley, California, 
January 197 2. 

"Economics for the Age of Aquarius", New Priorities, Fall 1971. 

"Why the SST is Not Good Business", The Wall Street Journal, March 2::. , 1971. 

"Status of the American Economy", National Committee for an Effective 
Congress, Research Project, 1970. 

"Liberty and Justice in 1970", ibid. . . 
With 7\. Dobson ~~: A Manpo\1er Strateg:r' for Urban Development in the -
State of New York , prepared foi: Soc iul Development Planning Commission 
of the State of New York, Planning Res.earch Corporation, 1970. 

"Pro~jrarn Budgeting and Consist(mcy i~ Transportation Policy", Pnpers , 
Ninth Annual Meeting, Transpor t:ation Research Fortun, September 1968. 

With others: 'I\ Planning-Progr runming-Dudgeting System for Transportation, 
prepared for Office of the Undersecretary of Transportation, U.S. Department 
of Commerce, Planning Rese~rch Corporatio~, 1967. 

"Tactics in a Local Crisis", Journal of Conflict Resolution, June l~'i3. 

"Deterrence and Disarmamcn t 11
, paper , the RAND Corporation, Novembcx 1962. 

"Mechanics of Some Limited Disarmrunent Measure s ", 1\rncr ican Economic 
Revit'w, llay 1961. 

With others: The Economic Value of tl~ United States Merchant Marine , 
The 'l'ranspor tat ion Center , Northwc:;tcrn U11ivcrs i ty , 19(11. 

11
'/\ Marginal Cost Funct:ipn ror ll ighway Construclion and Operatio!l" , 

nroorlc.in F.conomic Review, May 1958. 

"Air E'oroo Logi~tics'', 1\oronntttlcn.I t.n<]inocrin9 Review, Jah~.lry 1957. 
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With G. B. Dantzig: " The Allocation of 1\ircraft~Routes--An' Example 
of Linear Programming Under Uncertain Demand" , Management Science, 
October 1956. 

With G.B. Dant.zig: " Tlie ·Problem of Rou ting Aircraft: 1\ Mathematical · ,. 
Solution", J\eronau tical Eng incering Review, April 1955 . 

"Empirical Determination· of a Multi- Dimensional Marginal Cost Function.", 
Econometrica , July 1950.' 

Technical Synthesis of Airline Costs, unpublished Ph.D. thesis, 
Harvard Un~versity , 1949. 

With r::. lunes: "Technological Change and the Equilibrium· Level of the 
National Income" , .Qu'arterly Jou~nal of Economics, May 1948 . . 

, 



Education: 

Experience: 

ROBERT M. WOLCOTT 

DIRECTOR 
PUBLIC INTEREST ECONOMICS WES'!' .. 

U. tversity of Clncinnati, Cincinnati, Ohio 
Ph.u c~~didate (degree expected 9/77 
Dissertation topic - "The Welfare Impacts of a 

B'l'U Based Energy Pricing Policy" 

Xavier University, Cincinnati, Ohio 
M.A. Economics 1968-1969 
Thesis - ''.Ari Economic Analysis of the Urban Renewal 

Program in Cincirmati, Ohio" 

Xavier University, Cincinnati, Ohio 
B. S. Economics 1964-1968 

Director, Public Interest Economics West. Responsible 
for the overall administration of the Western regional 
office of the ?ublic Interest Economics Foundation. 

Areas of responsibility include direction of a five 
person technical staff, financial management, research 
contract negotiations and fundraising as well as review · 
and revision of Public Interest Economics West programs • 

. Principal areas of expertise in economic research 
include energy pri~ing, regionai fiscal impact analysis, 
environmental and energy regulation and welfare impact 
assessment. 
3/1/76-prese!'lt 

Regional Economist , Region IX, U.S. Environmental Protec tion 
Agency. Principal economic policy advisor to senior staff 
of the Region IX Agency Office. Responsible for evaluating 
the social a~d economic impac ts of regionally implemented 
environmental control strategies, inclusive of the monitoring 
of contracted analyses and individual performance. Specific 
focus directed towards the public finance of surgace trans­
portation in California and other transportation Analysis 
related to selected air quality problems. 

Other selected areas of investigation have encompassed 
public utility rate schedules in California and Arizona , 
macroeconomic impacts of t he EPA sewage treatment construc­
tion gra~t program, des ign of an air quality management pro-

. cess nationally, criteria design for inflationary impact 
statements and cost effectiveness review of alternative air 
quality strategies. 



Overal~ concern in th~s position has been directed towards 
speci!ying ·the distributional impacts of environmental and 
energy strategies and sensitizing regional policy.makers to · 
these effects. Conducted numeroqs lectures within government 
and area universities on economic and environmental analysis 
and policy. 
2/13/74 - 2/27/76 

Economist; Assistance Branch , Systems Management Division, 
Office of Solid Waste Management Programs , U .. S. Envirorunental 
Protection Agency. Delivery of technical assistance to local 
governments . in the area of solid waste management, focusing on 
operations research and economic analysis of l ocal programs . 
Position involved the review of technical econo~ic policy 
studies and contract monitoring . While in pos~tion conunissioned 
to· co- author study for the National Conunission on Productivity 
in the area of Solid Waste Management Productivity. 
12/4/73 - 12/1/72 

Project Coordinator; Over the Rhine Urban Renewal Project, 
pepartrnent of Urban Development, City of Cincinnati, Cincinnati , 
Ohio. 
Responsible for overall implementation of designated urban 

. renewal plans, focusing on the coordination of all Federal , 
State and local involvement. Conducted detailed analysis of 
the problem of housing abandonment and evnluation of: current 
rehabilitation programs . 
9/1/70 - 12/1/72 

I 
'l'enching Fellow; Department of. Economics, University of 
Cincinnati, Cincinn.:tti, Ohio. 
Part-time instructor of "Principles of Econom.ics11 series. 
9/1/70 - 12/1/72 

Publications': . ~he ~~.nta ~ Petroleum Transportation Contr2yersy, with 
R. •iorgaard and S. Baron; n paper submitted to the California 
Govcu.rn..1.1. 1 s Office of Pla.nning and Research; J\·1ly 1976 . 

'l'n.£ Regional Economic Impacts of Outer Contin~rntal Shelf 
O: .!. and Gas Development, with S. Daron, M. Kavanaugh and 
s. Littfe; a paper submlt tcd to the Californict' s Office 
of Planning and Research; November 1976. 

Productivity in Solid Was te Management, with C:. Garland, 
J. Quinn, and R. Weisl ; a repor t prepared for the Nntionnl 
Conunission on Productivity; June 1973. 

The Economics of Residential llouni11g 1\bandonmcnt; a pl\pcr 
prepared for the City of Cincinnati, Departmc11t of Urban 
Development; Juno 1972. 



RICHARD B. NORGAARD 

EDUCATION 

Ph. D., Economics, The University of Chicago, 1971 
M.S.; Agricultural Economics, Oregon State University, 1967 
A.B., Economics, University of California, Berkeley, 1965 . . 

PRESENT POSITION 

Associate Professor of Agricultural and Resource Economics 

HONORS 

Ford Foundation Fellowship, 1968-1970 
Federal Water Pollution Control Administration Graduate Trainee,1965-1967 

EXPERIENCE DIRECTLY RELATED TO ALl\SKJ\: 

·Reviewed two papers by Hildredth and Ferris and Wayne Thomas 
on Alaskan agriculture for Federal- State Land Us e Planning Conunission , 
1977. 

Consultant , Department of Natural Resources, Alaska, Petroleum Lca~ing 
Poli cy, 1976-19~7. 

Currently supervising five student interns in Alas ka with government 
and public interest groups studying environment and resource problems 
and counselling, 1976-1977 • 

I 

Supervised dissertations and government study pupers on land use 
planning and miner a l development in Alaska, 1972-1973. 

Consultant,CEQ, DcE!p Water Port Study project,Aluska Port Supply 
thro~gh 2000 A.O., 1972-1973. 

Consultant, Institute of Social Economic lll1d Govornm~nt_ Research for 
successful research proposal, $1 million , NSF , "Man i n the Arctic." 

River Guide on the Copper River. Con~rnltant: to ISEGR on Environmental 
Impac t Report on Pipeline Project. Summer 19'/l. 

Rcsenrch Associate, ISEGR University of Alaska, Ford Foundation Project 
on Lnnd U!;o Plnnnin9 and Development-., Sunvner 1970 . 



,· I , 
1

• , . / Sel ected 'Professional Exuer ienc.e a'nd Service: 
. .. 

Member , ~ncrgy . and Re~ources C9uocil , University of California, Bcrl;elcy, 
~incc 1976 . 

Member , Advisory Board . <ind Consultant t o Public Inte:.-c!.lt 
0

.Economics--Wes t, 
s ince 197.6 . 

· ·::..::.-::;~·Consul tart 1 Off ice of . Eneq~y R.SD Policy , National Sc.ic_nce Found at.ion , 1974-75 . 

Consultant, Office of Pesticide Pro~rams, Environmental Protection Agency , 
19711-7 5. 

Consultant , tnergy Policy Project , The Ford Foundation, 1973- 74 . 



·contrlbutinr. tditor, F.nvlronmcnt, Scientist~ 1nstitutc for PubJ.ic lnfon'\.'.l tion 
· since 1973. 

. 
tko~er, Cotton Study Team> Studi on Problems of Pest Control: A Technology 

Assess:nent, tnvironmC'rttal Stud ies Board, National Academy of Sciences-­
Nation~l Academy of Enzineeiing, 1973-/4r 

Consui. Lcrnt, South Pacj f :tc Di.vi!.: ion .Coc1prchensivc Port S tucH cs, U. S, Arr;iy Corps 
vf Eneincers, 1972- 73. 

Consultant· and Rcsc~r~n Associate, Inntitutc 'o( Social, Economic, 2nd Govern~ 
tuent Res~<:lrc:h, Unive.rslty of Alask.ct, J.9/(1-71. .. 

Ucober, .!'c:st Hanagenient aud Rc:;earch Advisory Coll'JUittee,· Vres'iden .. t f s Council 00 
· P.nvironrucmtal· Qu~lity, 1971-72~ 

Instructor, Economics, Orezon College of Educ2t1.on, 1.967-68, 

River Guide and l 1hotogr<.phel:, American llivcr Tc1urin& A!:sociiltion, · 1fat5.ona1 
Geoeraphic Society, an cl Conservation Organiza t :fons, per.iodically slncc. 
1959. 

)rofessional Associations: 

Aroerica.n Association for the Advancement of Science 

American Economics Associatjon ' I . ,,. 
I 

. . 

.-Federation of Americ.an Scientists . . .. 

. Review Work: 

-·--..· .---· 

American Jou~nal of Agricultural Bconomics 

Environmenc 

..Tout'.aal of Environa:ental Economics and }ta.aagement 

r<:iocl Economics 

Selected Fublica ~ lons : 

Acad~-:ric Articles 

"The Economicn of lmprov inz I1cs ticidc Use ," Annll:tl P.cvic\../ of Entomolo Py_ Vol, 2i 
(1976). .., , 

''Scarcity ancl Crow th: llot1 Does It 1.ook Toe.lay,'' Aml!r icnn Jour'nlll of A;;_r lcul­
tural Economics (Dr.:ccmbe r, 1975). 



.. 
With Darwin ·c. Hall , "Environmental Amenity Riel~ts , Transc:ic. t ions Costs, and 
Tcchnolocical Chanse," J ournal of Environr.!cntal F.ccnomics and ?-tanaf' cc~nt 

, (D ecember , 197/t): ·-· -

" Resource Scat."ci ty and New 1'ccnnolo~y i n U. S . Petroleum Development," ?12tural 
Resources Journ~t (April, 1975)i see , also, Comment and Reply in Land Econoaics ,. 
{ February, 1976). 

With Allan C. I.ichtenbcrg, "f.neqw Policy and the Ta:< Trea tment of Oil and . Cas 
Incoa.:e ," Natural Resource's Jou rnal (Oc t ober , ~9_74) . · 

With Darwin C. Rall, "On the Timing and .\ppH.cation 
Journa l o f A~ricultu~al EconorJics. (Nay , 1973); see 1 

August, 1974, issue; 

of .Pesticides," Am2rican 
also, Cotil!Dent and Reply ln 

> 

"Pctrol.euu1 ncvclopm~mt in Alaska-: l'rospe.ct~ P.nd Conflicts," Natural Rcsoui:c es 
Journal (January, 19?2). 

"Sr.rea1nflow and Sediment Deposition in the J,ower Colurohia," ~fa ter Res ources 
Research (Oc.tobeL·, 1971). 

. . 
"S treamflow Flue tu:itioa, ·Bar Rouzlrness, and 'Eed Load 'Hovecoent: J. 1Iypothesis , '' 
Water Resources Rese2rch (June, 1968). 

·Profcwsiona2. Reports 
. . 

With Rob Wolcott and Snnclra B.:?ron , "The Santa Ynez ·Petroleum. Transport Contro-
v ersy.'' prepared for the Office of Planninc and Rcsc.urc:h , State of Calif~ruia, 
September , 1976 • 

. . 

. · . ' . . 
"An Evaluation of Int~g!"ate~ 1'c·Jt ?fanagement I·rocrali1S for California •:ind 

.. 

.... _.._,.. ·---- . 

A'riz oaa Co t ton, " in Evc.1.l!2tto~ of lntc~rat~d ·Pest Han2';!ement 1'rogr2ms for 
Cotton in the United St2tcs , prepared undc~ the super.vis ion of Rosmarie von 
Runker for t h-: Env:i.ron.~ac:::al l'rotection Agcmcy ;ind Counc?J. on En'lironra~nta1 
Quality, 1975. 

Witb Danrln C. Hall a nd Pa1nela True, "11'1e Pcrfo~nce of Independent Pest M.an­
aeeCl~t Co:isi.:J.tant~ i."1 5.'.lo Joaquin Cotton ~ud Citrus, 11 California Agt'icu1tur e:. . 
(October, 1975). 

--With Dayne E. Leland, "An Economic An.:ilysis of Alterna t ive Ou ter Continental · 
Shelf Petroleum Leasing Policies ," prcpu cd fa r the 0~ f ice of Ene.q;y !l~D Policy, 
Na t1onal Sci~n~c Foundation) S~ptcmbcr 1 1971•. 

"Ala!Jka ll.?t't"olcwn Dcvelopct?.nt and Supply ta the Lm-1cr ~es t Coas t: 1 980-2000 ," · 
Wc;-~t Coc1 s t uc~nwatt.~ c Facilit'tcJ Studv , Su~plcm~nt 11 to the Petroleum 
Consumption and Supply Stu .. Jy, North a·nd South Pacif lc Divisions , U. s. Al:my 
Corps of Enr,ineers , J une , 1973 . 

"A~ "-~~l:,O !!!.$ ~£ In.:l~~tlon Ilcncfitr. a nd Co!lt!l AttrlbutnblF! to New M~lones Dum. ' ' 
tcs ttl'l!ony presented in Envit:onmant;il Dcfcn!lc 'Fund , Inc., ct a l:.. versus F.llis 
Amstrone ct nt. [C-72-1057 ] on September 27, 1977., in U. S. Dis trict Cout:t - --- , 
Northern Californi~1, Siln l·'r~nci~co. Als o pres ented t o the W~tcr Rc~ourcc!> 
Contcol 11oar<l, State c; f Ca.li(ornio, Sacr.ao\~nto, DC' cc;ubet .S <\nd 11, 1 9 72. 



\-!:it.la ~("ld r n. l'1::1n:c1n ::rncl ll:-1;·1h~ ~·· J.<::l:rnc!, 
11 J>i.!t r<•lt·11m 1'n:·:•stion ::ncl. l' .i11i::li•1c.: 

l~<-r,111;:: ti<'.-.i~ ·in ,\1::~.1:.1, 11 pn:.! ;.:·n~r~(l :il t. 11~ :n!·d /,}:!!:L-: Sc .i-.:!ncc· Conf.cr~ncc-, Al n~;1:'1 
Djv.i ~d<1:1 nf tli.:: f,1:1t:d.c.:.H\ /\:;:-:oc- ·i;itjn11 for th.:: falv;;:1ci:.:1:.c·1:t cif f.ci.cncc; · F'.:i 1:0 .111ks,-

/\1:1~ : l::l, /,\: ,r,t:r.t 17, 1972. 

\{itlt ,\rJor-: r.. Tti!:!;:in~, Gee:·~-~~ ·: H. I:(l2~r'~, Vjctor l:"j!'>::~r, :tlid Cra~:~ f.r. :id.=-o~ , 
:~.1::~:-.~:!t_)'.; p_e:J .. i.~~~- .f-i~P.9..!._t;., ln~~ r i l11tc of Soci:il, Eco::0i:1 i.c , :!ncl Covcr1\ii1!:11t. R::~:cc.!Ych, 
lln:iv•:1· ~-: i . ty of 1\l:::;l::t, Au:_;ll::t, 197.1. ; ;d:: .) pll11l ·i.~;lH:l: 11:: :m /··Pi"~n<li>: to t.l:.:- 1'nrn.:;·­
Jll;1!>1::t 1'j !1.:.~ Ji1w Env :ixcm:;;..::nt.;11. Jt:.;):!t:t H<: p .. 11t. 



EDUCJ\TION 

STEVEN J. BUCHANAN 

SENIOR ECONOMIST 

Colorado School <;>f Mines, B.Sc . , Geophysics, 1969 

The Johns Hopkins University, currently completing Ph.D. thesis 
Economics 

PREVIOUS POSITIONS 

Associate Staff Physicist, .The Johns Hopkins Univer.sity 
J\pplied Physics Laboratory, 1969-1972 

EXPERIENCE 

Transportation Research - At PIE-C Mr. 1uchanan co-authored a major 
study of the community impact of railroad abandonments (disinvestment) 
in the Northeast. A computation procedure using a model of the firm 
pr~,·ided quantitative estimates for several measures of economic impact: 
'l'he; resulting estimates were used by the Unite9, States Railway 
Association to evaluate rail abandonment recommendations. Mr. Buch­
anan also authored a PIE-C study of public ownership and operation of 
the fixed railroad facilities in the U.S. PIE-Chas pursued several 
research and legislative ac:tivities address ing the problem of surface 
freight transportation regulation. Mr. Buchanan has been substantially 
involved in most of these E!ff or ts. 

I . . 
Regulatory Research - Mr. Buchanan has been involved extensively 
in the PIE-C work on innovation and federal regulation being 
conducted for the Experimental Technology Incentives program of ci1e 
Bureau of Standards. · This work has included writing a background· 
study of the regulatory process as it relates to innovation incentives , 
preparing preliminary regulatory experiment designs, and performing 
a study of antitrust considerations for cooperative industry research 
and development'projects . At PIE-C Mr. Buchanan has written economic 
impact as r,essments of the Consumer Product Safety Commission's Dookrnatch 
standard and the proposed OSHA industrial noise regulations . 

Public Utilities - Mr. Buchanan has also written a study of FCC cable 
TV regulation, which pr opooes revisions to the existing regulations. 
In the electric utility field Mr. Buchanan has written a handbook for 
public participation in rate hearings which i s being disseminated by 
the Citizen Involvement Net.work. The handbook presents the case for . 
marginal cost pricing of electr icity in l aymen's terms and gives 
practical guidance for citizcno ' groups in achieving electiricty rate 
rationali~ation. 

Environmental and Educational Res earch - Mr . Buchanan is the senior 
~esearcher a!1d author of a study of the effects of product charges on 
the municipal solid wa::: te problem. 1\t PIE-C he also was co- author of 
a s tudy of th" e~onomic impac t s of conmune r ecluca tion. 



resume - 2-:-

Public Lands - During his graduate work Mr • .Buchanan co-authored 
a . study of theory and policy issues relating to common property re­
sources. The National Audubon Society funded the study, ,w:Uch fo­
cussed primarily on the problems of wildlife and adminis~ration of 
public lands . ~ 

Quantitative Modeling - At the Johns Hopkisn Applied Physics Laboratory 
Mr. Buchanan developed a digital simulation of a centrally con-
trolled transportation network. The simulation was used subsequently 
to identify optimal routing strategies in a prototype transit system 
for the Department of Transportation. Mr. Buchanan also acquired 
substantial experience in real. time applications and computer modeling 
of radar detection and de'ception techniques. · 



Name: 

Address : 

Tel ephone: 

Born: --
Education: 

M .ry Cl ay Berry 

1207 Duke Street 
Alexandria, Va. 22~14 

549- 6304 , 

January 24, 1938 in Washington , D.C. 

I attended public and private schools in Maryland and Kentucky 
and was graduated in 1955 from The Masters School in Dobbs 
F1 :r:.y, N.Y. 

1959 B.A. Smith College 

1961-63 Coursework for M. A. in political science at the New 
School for Social Research in N.Y.C. 

Experience Directly Rela,ted to Alas,. a : 

Experience: 

Author The Alaska Pipeline : The Politics of Oil and Native 
Land Claims. 

Reporter, Washington correspondent for the Anchorage Dail:t 
Times and the Fairbanks News- Miner. 

1959-60 

1961- 63 

1964-65 

1965-66 

1967-71 

Editorial assistant, House Deuutiful, N.Y., N.Y. 

Researd1°c'.r, CBS News, N. Y. , N. Y. 

Reporter, Paris Daily Enterprise , Paris , Ky. 

He porter , Providence Journal-Dul. <?tin, 
Providence , R.I. 

Reporter, Griffin- Larrabee News Bureau, Washington, 
D.C. (I was the Washington correspondent for 
first the 'l'centon (N.J.) 'l'i1nes and later the 
Anchor.:tgc (Alaska) qaily •rime!l and the Fairbank!l 
(1\laskn) News-Miner. ) 

1971-present Freelance writer, Was hi ngton, D.C. During 
this period, I wrote The Alaska Pipeline: The 
Politics of Oil and Native Lund Claims (published 
in 1975 by Indiana University Press ); worked as 
a consultant ~nd wri ter for the Ford Foundation' s 
Energy Policy Project and the Natural Resources 
Defens e Council, a public service law firm 



Other: 

specializing in energy; wrote a Washington 
column for Money magazine (primarily deal ing 
with tax , banking, and energy matters and their 
effect upon the middle class consumer);" and, 
from February 1976 to February 1977, was a 
Fellow of the Alicia Patterson Foundation , 
writing about the lobbying process.· I am 
presently completing a book based upon work 
done on the Patterson Fellowship. 

1970 recipient of the American Political Science Association ' s 
Public Affairs Reporting Award for coverage of the settlement 
of the Alaska Native land claims. 

1976- 78 Member, Board of Directors, Burgu.1da Farm Country 
Day School, Alexandria, Va. 

References: 

Don.:i ld R. Lar.cabee, Griffin-Larrabee News Burenu, 1237 National 
Press Build~ng, Washington, D.C. 20004 S54- 3579 

Richard Nolte, Director , Fellowship Progr.:im, Alicia Patterson 
Foundation, 535 Fifth Avenue, N.Y., N.Y. 212-697-0868 

Edward L. Strohbehn, Attorney, Natural Resources Defense 
Council , 917 15th Street N. W., Washington , D.C. 20005 
737-5000 



EDGAR ~UST, Ph. 0. 

Mr. Rust is both a practicing planner and a recognized authority on the dynamics 
of urban and regi.ona 1 Grov1th and decl inc. Hi::; ground-breakili9 study, No Growth: 
!Jn.P,~cts_g!!J·!ctr~12~Jjta1~ f\rca~, is currently rcc2ivi11g favorable revim·1s ir. the· 
major journals. His career has con:bined original research, policy studies arid 
practical i11!plc1;jcntation i~ \':ork in the fie1ds of city planning, housing, trans-
portation and r !gional development. . . 

EXPERIEHCE: 

1977 to present 

197'1-1977 

1973-1974 

1972-1973 

1966-1971 

Re sec:. rch Asso~i ates ~rb.1n ~n? f.!l.~a 1-~~J;~;f:l~_J:s?oc"i ~ l=s_. Eco~.::i:ni c 
anct de::1ograph1c stt.:dH?!: of tr.c 11::p~ct!: or Hl ~~~;an Cut~r Cor.t1n~n·· 
tal Shelf marine mineral<> development. 

Associ~te and Principal Analy::;t, Berk~!s·LJ>]~r.niJlg__J\ssoci~tes. 
Case studies of pl anning for assisted housing, and analysis of 
a national s<1mple c:f housing assistance plans. Study of labor 
mobi 1 i ty programs. Development of regi 011e11 sub-state economic . 
moniforing ·system*. AsseSS;i;f:nt of needs and mitigating measures 
for populations of declining rural areas~ Analysis of relocation 
requirements of the severely handicapped. Analysis of Alaskan 
rural settlement pJtterns."' · 

Research Associate , ~cientific AnalY_sil Corporation. "A Study of 
the Consequences of t·:etropolitan Stal.ii ity or Decline."* 

' I 

Po~tgraduate Research Planner, Institute for Urban and Rcoiona1 
Dcvel£P.r.1ent_. Model d~sign and cali.hra-tion, policy te-st111g .for 
1'Nationa l Interregional DerilogrcJphic Accounts," a simulation of 
the future distribution of population and i r coir.e levels among 
U ~ S. metroµoli~an areas. 

Urban Planning Director, Bui1di_Q_g2yster.is Oevelo~r.ient, Inc_. , 
San F1·a.1cisvi, California. Sclf-P.elp Housing Methods stu.jy 
for the U.S. Offi ce of Urban P.esearch i~ nd Technology.* I1r.prove­
ment of publ ic hou sir.9 m~nase11,ent tind m11intenance procedures of 
the Sun Frdncisco Hou$ing P.uthority. Study of housing mJinte:rrt?nce 
costs in government housing.~· lllJD In-Cities Housing Research and 
Development Prograni. Study design of the Sun Diego County Trans­
portiltion Research and Impl err.cntction Pro~1ram. Study of lo\'1er 
income regi ona 1 housing need~ and resources 'for the ~ietropo 1 i tan 
netroit Citizen~' Oevelop~ent Authority.* Consulted to the 
cities of Waterbury, ConnccLicut and Junenu, Alaska, in urban 
µlanninQ . . Con~ultcd to privute fir111s on diversification oppor­
tunities in the building industry. 

*Project Director or Manager 



1965-1966 

1963-1965 

E!"'UCATJON : 

1961 

1963 

1974 

OTHER: 

Awards: 

1961 

1975 

Consul ti nq_: 

1975 , Apr i l 

1975 , March 

1972 

1965 

Urban Planner, Skidmore, O•,·linqs and l ·~erri ll, San Francisco . Da ta 
9<L.1e riryg, arcaPTJnnTng antJ · de•;elOp~c11t control aspects Of the 
M«rket Street East Ger1era 1 Mei gh!)orhood Renewa 1 Pl an for Phi 1-
adcl phi~, Pennsylvani a. 

Pl anning Assistant I I, Plannino Dcnartment, Anchor~ae , Alaska . 
Pr~pared and conducted pub-1 ic r~vie\'t of zoning crdinanc~ . ~1-
minist ered part of zoning and subdivis ion casc load. Prep , red . 
first capital improvements prog ram and annual review procedures. 
Prepared populat ior. projections , street and highway plan, sub­
di vision ord~ nance, and sp~cial issue studies . Drafted proposed 
post-earthquake bui lding restrictions. 

Will i ams Col lege, B.A. 

Massachusetts Institute of Technology, M.C.P . 

Uni versity· of Ca l iforn ia , Ber kel ey, Department of Ci ty and 
Reg ional Planning, Ph.D. 

Graves ~ssay Pr ize, ' Wi ll iams College 

Student .A\'/ard for Outstandi ng Achievement, American Institute 
of Planners 

Associated Bui lding Industry· 

Department of Region.al Economic Expansion , Can?ja 

San Francisco Development Fund 

Kapl an and . Gans, Planners , San Francisco 



.,I ' .., 

Teaching: 

1967-1971 and 
Fall 1976 

Lecturer, Department of City and Regional Planning, University 
of California, Berkeley. 

.. 
Professional Affiliations: 

M~rnber American Institute of Planners 

Publications and Reports (Prindpal author unless othen1ise noted): 

No Gro\·tth: I nma cts o.n_ f 1e tror.o 1 ita n Area$, Lexington, r·:a·ss: Lexington 
Books, O.C. Heath & Co . , 191 5. 229 pp. 

"The Dynamic~ of P.ural Community Gr0\·1th, 11 in Pro_s:e2dinci_s of the Ih'ird · 
Asian Paci~ic Social Oevelopme_nt Seminar, Cultural and Social Center forthe 
Asian and Pacific Region, Seoul, ~orea, 1976. 

"Old West Sub-State Monitoring System: 
No. 1 for the Old West Regional Con~ission. 

Background and Priorities ~ " Report 
February 1976. 

"Old Hest Sub-State Monitoring System: Data Source Catalog. 11 Report No. 2 
for the ·Old He$t Regional Commission . :February .1976. 

"Old West Sub-State Monitoring System: Recommended Sub-State Monitoring and 
Outreach .Procedures." Report No .. 3 for the Old West Regional Cor:mission. March 1976. 

"The EVolving Pattern of Village Alaska.'' Report written for the Federal-State 
Land Use Planning Commission for Alaska. March 1976. (By William Alonso and Edg~r 
Rust.) 

"Adaptation or Reversal: Policies for the Quality of Life in Declinin.<J Portions 
of Montana, North Dakota, and Wyoming." Prepared for the Old West Regional Con'dnission. 
March 1975. (By Edgar Rust and Wi lliam Alonso.) 

Metropolitan Areas Without Gi::_9~tJtll. Ph.D. Dissertation, ·Department of City and 
Regional Planning, University of California, Berkeley, 197~. Also prepared for the 
Center for Population Research, U.S. Department of Health, Education and Welfare, 
and published by Scientific Ana1ysis Corporation, San Francisco, 1974. 

"Administration Polarization and ~!etropoHtan Emrloyment Chan9cs . 11 Prepared for 
Economic Development Adrninisfration, U.S. Departr.1ent of r.on:rnerce, /·lay 29, 1973. 



.. 
Publications an~ Reoorts {cont'd): 

Large-Scale Self-HelP. HOtfI·J!'q Me_thods, San Francisco Building Systems Devel op­
ment, Inc. Pre:pared for the Office of Urban Research and Technology , U.S. Oepart­
mcnt of Housing and Urban Development. 

Vol. 1: Analvsis of Context, January·Jo, 1970 
Vol. 2: · f:.nalysis o-f "I~ern~tive _r.uildino f·~ethods, May 1970 
Vol. 3: Rcco1111:1endcJtions, Fay 19/0 
Vo 1 • 4 : sun:.iilar:-Y._, June T97 o 

··- . ... .... . . - - -··-· ··--··-·- ... --·-- .. 

"Utilities: A Report on the Potentia l for Boeing Involvement in Earth Surface 
life Support Systems ," Building Systems Development, Inc., December 1970 (\·1ith 
Willi am Meyer, et _tl.). 

"The Economics of l•:utual and Self-Help Hou5ing Methods," and "The Range of 
Self-Help Construction Procedures and Their Technical Characteristics,'' in Self­
Helr~ousinq in the U.S.A., Cambridge: The Organization for Social and Technical 

· Innovation , Inc., June 1969 (with flichael Berl inc). 

"Position Paper on Manager.1ent of the Housing Development Process ," In-Citi es 
Experime11ta l Housing Research and Development Project, April 1969. 

"Lo\·1er Income Housing Requirements of t:etropolitan Detroit," Bui l di ng Systems 
Development, I,nc . Prepored for the! Metropolitan Detroit .Citizens' Development 
Authority, June 1968. 

I 

"Brief Analysis of 82 Cities," Building Systems Development, Inc. Prepared 
·for the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, July 1968. 

"Housing and Neighborhood Deve 1 opnicnt Strategics, 11 in Re_P.ort to t~ater~url' 
Non-Profit Devel op ment Corporation, Can:brid~e: The Organii:ation for Social an 
Techni cal Innovati on, July 1Y67 (With Raply Iredale). 

"Study Plan for TRIP, 11 San Di ego: The Stltl Diego County Comprehensive Planning 
Organization, ~arch 1967 (with .Greg Salas and Robert Whorf). 

"Intra-Metropolitan Migration: Si x Boston Area Municipalities" (M.C.P. 
Thesis), Massachusetts Institute of Technol ogy , June 1963. 

Conference Pa p£rs Delivered: 

''Impacts of Urban-Industria l Growth on an Evo lving Village System: The E~pcriencc 
of Rural Alasku. 11 Conference ' on Rural Development, Department of Social Wcl fare, 
Provi nciul Government of Taiwan, 1976 . 



Conference Papers Delivered (cont'd): 

"The In-Ci tics Housinu Rese«1rch and Ocvelop1:icnt Prograr.1. 11 U.L . I. Housing Conference, 
Chi ca go, 1968 . · 

"Metropolitan tlon -GrOl·Jth :Les~ons fro11 the U.S. Expcrtcnce. 11 Your:igstown State 
Univer:sity Conference .on f·:ctropolitan Decline, 1977. 

"The tlext Appa 1 ilchi a: Must Every Energy Ooom Go Bust?" Hes tern· Economics 
Association, 1977 . 

. . 



' . 
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Education: 
B.A., Radcliffe. 
Graduate !khoo1, 
Graduate School, 
Graduate School, 

Ph.D. 

Ernployr.ient : 

POLLY ROBERTS 

ECONOMIST 

, 

1'>66, 1 n l'hj'[tiC5, PE'.( 
:ia."."Varll , l 0,66-J.<)61-:>; il.n~.:..,: nt Hear Eastern Laneuager; 
.Oer~cl cy, l C/'70-1 '171: '~:1d ent lfoo.r Eastern La.nguagc~ 
Bcrkclc.v, J. ,, . .'2- : ,1.;;rlcultural <Lr•d Rcsourcu Economics, 
Ca.ndld<J.te, June • 77. 

Harvard Cyclob.-.1n Lab, summer. 1965. 
Ralph Nader's Center for the Study of no~ponsi ·1e Law , 1.970 · 
C.'lear Creek roagM.inc, Publicity Director, 1971. 

fublicatio:is: 
Study of pesticide ret:;ulation. 1.11 Sowing the Wind, (Nader Report on USDA), 

by Harrison Hell ford, Grossma11, 19'/l. . , 
Study of fa.rm subsidi cs, in The Poli ticz of I.and Use (t~ader Ropor t on 

lnnd use in Californin), by flcbert J.'ollrr.e.th,-G"consrian . 197J. 
Power ~ J~n~ }n C:lliforni~ . ~ Su~!L· (Summary of above report, 1971) 
St atcrnc:nt, in F'<1r!!";Horl\Cro 1.11 Hural A1nP.rica, 1971-72, Hearing!i bafo:::-c the . 

Senate Subcomi:d ttco on ·l·l~e;ratory I!.\bor , Part 1, p , 125, Sept . 21, 1971. 
"The Rczoarch Subnldy", luid, P..irt. 5D, p. J8l~L Biases in research at. the 

land ~ant collec;c:..;. 
"Behind the Load Curtair:", roviou of load pollution hazards, in ~...!. 

· Creek, May, 1971. 
"Farnilnnd Tax BrcaY.::;1 lloH Not. t.o Stop Urban Sprawl", in California 

. HomcoHnP.r, Ap.cil , 197).. -
"?arks for F\J.n and Profi ti '11w Story of Point Reyes", in Not ~ ~part, 

August, 1972 . , 
"California Without the Milk Stabilization Act", in lhirl Seo~, June, 

1974. 
" 1'!1e Pricing of local Scrvice!l and Et'focts on Urban Spatial Sl!:'ucturc" , 

to be publi1;hed in procedings of June, 19'?1J. , conference, Sur.le t.1 tlc, 
· cho.irr.t'111 untl \?llitor, f''1ul ll. fuHni11g. 

"Low 1)3nsity Policios1 the Price Com1nunit"lca P.'\y", with Keith Roborts, 
Tho flcnl ~tl:\t<: Ao11rai.ser, l·:Urch- AprU, 1975 . 

.. Property -;faxc;; nntlIAnd Value 1'axe::;" t !!!£ noal ~r.tntc AEprais.£!_, 
Septnmber-Octobor, 1975. 

''Mnkina Dollars r ml Se nse out of Fi::>cal Imj .. 'lcl An11l~·si:;", Pln.nJ.!1..J!~, 
Auc;u!lt . )Q{u , rcprt1·lcd in Ertt ron:v.!r\ln1 c,,:i- .. <:rl , (n p~blkn.lion of 
the Urban I.nnd In:.L.\ lute), Oct.o l1c r 19?6. ·- - ·· 

Actlv1t1os 1 

Sion·a Club , 13.'.ly Cha ptcr Urban E)w iron1J1.~nt Subcomrui.t. tee 
Henry Coorgo School of Social Sclencc, Pre~ltlcnt, 197'J-75 term. 
League o t h"omcn Vo t cr:; , 1 ?7 )-76 !Jropor ly t ax 3 tudy. 
Coordi 11a.lor, C1·mferoncc on D.lv !...~Urban Crowlh1 Yee£!:~? Qe or Out.? 

Oct. Jl/Nov. l, 1975. - -



JOSEPll "PAT" WEINSTEW 

,. 
P·1r. Weins tci n is a city µ 1 anner and educ a tor with a broad range of cxpcri cnce 
in economic and labor studies, housing· market «na lysies, educational planning, 
and crimir:al justice. lie has worked \'Jith both private and public sector 
clients in the· preporatio!r of analytical reports, in t~e evaluation of policy 
isr,ues, E111d in the provision of technical assi.st;ame. 

Mr. Weinstein has developed substnntial experth e and understanding regarding 
the State of Alaska us a result of his ir.volVC:.:nents in an Alaskan public 
policy surv:~y, the D2part;:·,c:nt of Labor 1\laska l·la:;po:.·1er Study~ and majol' 
socio!:!c<J11c1mic c!5Ses!;r::~ nt!'.: uf the Arctic Gils pipclinQ and the fcc1sibility and 
projected ir.:pacts cf Alaskan florth Slope off-!:.horc dri11ing·. In ~ddition, he 
has givr:n expt1i" t tr:stimony on Alasklln-related filatters ·befo14 e the Federal 
Pa.'t'er CO!iliili!;Sion and the e~rger Corr.r:iission in Canada. 

EXPERTEl~CE: 

1976 - present 

1974 - prcsen t 

Project Director, Socioeconomi c Studies Program of th~ 
'Aiaskan~cfuter-Con tinenta l Shel f Petroleum Development. 
Respan·sible for direction 2nd coordination of all field 
and resca 1·ch staff on this contract \'lith the Bureau of 
Land Management , wnich focuses •Jn Alaskan comr:iunitie$ 
and their capacity to undergo ~ign ificant social, economic, 
and cnvironmGn tal change as a result of resources develop­
ment. 

I 

Pro~ect Director , Petroleum Public Opinion Survey in 
lliska:-Rcsponsibilities include directing a study of 
Alaskan attitud~s towards taxation and economic development . 

Research Director, Alaskan Arctic Gas Socioeconomic Impa ct 
Study. Assessed the social and economic i mpncts of both 
the Alyeska and Arctic Gas pip~lin~~ upon the State ~f 
Alaska. Thi s comprehensive study was undertaken in com­
pliance with the NEPA requirements of the Federal Pm·:~r 
Comr.tission and Department of Interi<'r Regulations. 
Pilrticular emphasis was placed on an in-depth analysis and 
projection of future n2eds in the follm·ling areas: heal th, 
housing, social services, edec,1tio11 , public safety , revenue, 
population, labor and cmployn:r.nt, economic development, and 
governance. 

Subsequently testified on socioeconomic impacts of petroleum 
development in Alilksa before the 'Federal Pm·1er Corrmissicn 
and the Berger Cammi ss ion in Cirnada. 



• 

1972 - 1973 

Project Coordinator~ P.~gi on X DCL I\ 1 ask.:i Manpo\':cr· Study • . 
Res pons fblerorcoo-rci r.ati ng major r~search effort in 
Alas ka involved with analysis of man~o~cr and labor force 
changes over period from 1974-l9eo. 

Project Di r~ctnr, ~ay Area Revenue 'Sharing Study. 
toriectca re· ... ue sharing dat.:i on local cor.:nunities and 

..... cvalJated in terms of in:puct upon future expenditure 
policies of selected Bay Arca found~ti ons . 

Projec ·, Director, Evaluation of Citizen Participation 
in the Goal Sett.ing Process of California Schools . 
Directed a case study analysis· of 24 selected school 

-...~.districts throughout ti1c state , focusing on the kind 
and lcvni of citi zr. 1;!> 1 involvcn1ent. Recca·J:~;::ndatio:is 
from the study \·:ere presented to ti:c Joint Coi!'rnitic:::? 
on Edur.:ation~l Goals chaired by Asst:mb1ym,1n Jo!:n 
Vasconcellos. 

~cnior Staff , Oakland Public Schools M~ster Plan Citizen 
Corrmittec. Assisted in the reforn1uiation of the Citizen's 
Master Pl an s i:ruct11re to rcfl ect the experiences of the 
Committee's first three years. Drafted rccorrmendations and 
outlined submission fo1· foundation funding. 

Mf\RSllALL Kt'\Pl.Arl, GANS /l.~ID KAHN, Cit'I Planners, Consultants 
-Sem or !-itafr, San t.nrnnio 1Hver Corridor Study. lior.ked - ­
Wi1Tlloca1-officiil ls to develop education and crir.iinal 
justice 20-ycar plans , for central area of tlris Texas city. 
Organized regiona l ed .. cation planning liody . Designed 
and cisscssed housing nm rket ques ti onna ire . . 

Project Directo.·, Hom~wood Terrace Housing Market Study. 
7'iialy7.ed the potential for hocsillg of a 9-acre ~ite in 
San Francisco.. Rccorr.'Tiended 2ppropri ate housing package 
and schedule given the unique characteristics of the site. 

Consultant, Westside Planning Group~ Frt?sno . Dev2l oped · 
Tntormat1on qu1~stionnaire and packet to assist community 
based group in organizing around education issues. 

Senior Staff, Valencia Hou5ing Market Study. Evaluated 
performan ce of f ou r-year-o 1 d Sout hern Ca 1 if orn i<l New 
Town; made specific recorrmcndations r t?lating lo physicJl 
lay-out, design, housing mix , absorption schedule , and 
management policy. 

Consultnnt,Jlarbor Oay Isle Housing Market Study. Assisted 
in the rcforn!ulation of absorption scl11 .. ·fu l r 1fter local 
legi slation chdngcd the zoning of a particul ar s ite in 
Alameda, California. 



·-· ...... ... . 

1970 - 1971 

.. 

EDUCATIO~: 

Rccruitm~nt Director, Urbiln Technical Services'. Charged 
Wltn COntactfng-; S-Cl'Cer:ingl end ~election Of professionals 
to be a pa rt of .u HUO program \'/hi ch p 1 c;ces th2sc ski 11 ed 

· peopl e in sma 11 to~·:ns throughout the Un i.ted States . · .. . .. 

Pt'Ojcct Director) Rancho San Diego. Analyzr:d California 
edu'czGoi110glsTation and the res lJtJnt cduciltion funding 
sources to ilssist th~ Title \'II New Town outside San Diego 
in th2 provision of educationa l services to its future 
residents . Comparison 'r:as also made to other Title VII 
communities in other states . 

Senior Staff, RP. loc?.tion Technicnl Assistance Guide. 
lleveloµcci-fi)form~tion system and data b:?se fer local 
rcl ocatio11 officials n:ec;ting new 7cdcral r~iucai.ion 
r~quirement5. 

Planner, Oakland Model Cities, Oakland, California. 
'On a consul t~nt con tract to City Demonstration A~1ency , 
assist~d in the preparation of ye~rly plan, managed 
educat1 on projects, sought federal funds for model 
school, and analyzed econon:ic potential ~f various Model 
Cities-funded businesses providing services to the 
Port of O;:ikland . 

Wesleyan University 
Harvard University 
University of California, 

Berkeley 

BA 
MAT 
MCP 

· Social Studies 
Education 
City Regional Planning 

1967 
1970 
1972 
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FAIRBANKS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

Phone 907 A52·5AOO or A52·.5752 619 Eleventh A'tenue fa:rbanlu, Ala1ka 99701 

MS . o. Milton, Secretary 
Permanent Fund Committee 
Alaska State Legislature 
Pouch V, State Capitol 
Juneau , Alaska 99811 

Dear Ms. Milton: 

June 9 , 1977 

Thank you for the inte~est in FOCUS NORTH issued by 
the Fairbanks Industrial Devel opment Corporation. This 
publication is yet in an experimental stage, and only three 
issues have been printed at the end of 1976. However, on 
the basis of response to the flrst issues of FOCUS NORTH, 
plans are being drawn for a continued effort. 

We will be pleased to add the Permanent Fund Committee 
to the FIDC mailing list. There is no charge since our funding 
is entirely non-government . 

WRW/kb 

Sincerely yours, 

~ ;f.wcrml 
William R. Wood 
Executive Vice President 

Fairbank• . . . Interior Alosko's S ervlce, 0 perotlons & S upply Center 



PHMITMO. ZS 

Facts on Fairbanks Growth, Opportunities & Profits Sept. 15, 1976 Vol. I No. l 

FIDC publication aims 
at real Fair hanks story 

Think of Alaska and whal do you picture? 
Snow, ice, cold, remote, inhos'lltable, backward, 

isolated. 
WRONG. 
This Is the firsl Issue or Focus North, an iconoclastic 

publication bound and determined to shatter all the mylhs 
you've ever drenmed up about lhe far north. 

At the llmt! of this writlr.g. we're: looking out on a cloud 
studded blue sky under a 70-degrec sun, Clowers are 
blooming, folks arc out and abou t nnd It's just about lime 
foe harvesllng all t:1ose backynrd gardens. 

HARVEST TIME- Fields at the University ot Alaska's 
Exper imental Farm lie cropped In tho sun. Agriculture ln 

We're also looking out on a thriving community with 
scaffolds and skeletons of new construction In every direc­
tion; looking out on brand new roads stretching to the 
north, south nncl west; looking out on a community that Is 
lircd of hearing horror stories about the trials and tribula­
tions IL faces in order to survive. 

We're here and we like it, and Focus No1lh Intends to 
tell you why. 

Dr. William Wood, director of Lhe Fairbanks Industrial 
Development Corp., thinks Fairbanks has a very solid and 

IS1t Plgt 4, Col. 11 

Alaska Is becoming more or a reality. F'or detaU1 see In· 
side. Photo by Jim Truell 



Co-op looks toward marketing 
The experimentation has gone on fo1 78 years and now 

It's time to do something with the facts learned. 
That sentiment expressed by Dr. James Drew, head of 

the University of Alaska Agricu:ltural Experiment Station, 
started the Alaska Farmers Cooperative, Inc. in Delta in 
June of this year. Since its CiJ~st meeting the coop has 
grown to 57 members and has begun tackling some of the 
major obstacles lo a viable agric:.lltural economy in 
Alaska. 

Fairbanks Realtor Frank Geiger, an offlccr in the 
cooperative, said the main thru;t of the organization Is to 
gel across the Idea that participation and cooperation are 
the only ways to achieve an economically feasible 
agricultural industry here. 

" Even big corporations are nl)l big enough," Gelger 
said. ''We need more people and more acreage." 

Bringing the analogy down to th·e farm, Geiger poin~ed 
out the Industry here Is In a ''which-comes-first-the· 
chlcken--0r-lhe-egg" dilemma: " We need processing and 
shlpplneto support a lot of acreage and production, but we 
need a lot of acreage In production before It can support 
the processing and shipping.'' 

The coop Is addressing the problem in several ways. The 
Dt!lta group Is just the nucleus of a iitatewlde organization, 
Gelger explained. and eventually hopes to hook up with 
farmers In the Malanuska Valley, Nenana, Kodiak and 
other places in the state. 

On a more lmmedi'lte level , the coop hopes l.o get 
started soon In cooperative marke'llng and retailing In this 
nren, procuring seed an•J ferllllzer on a volume basis for 
member farms, and mo\< 'ng Into •Cereal and grnln hnndl· 
Ing and marketing ror Alaskn's bRrley, oats and wheat. 

Down the ro&d Is a plan for !c•!d lot operations and beer 
processing plB'lts In coopernllon with beef farmers In 
Kodiak. The plan calls for cal ves from Kodiak lo be ship­
ped to the Delta area for "finishing," or the !lnal reeding 
stage before slaughter. thereby freeing .. 1e Kodiak farms 
to carry more breeding stock. 

Focus Nort11 Is publ/shcxl monUily lJy the F11/rlmnks /11-
dustrlal Development Corp., 619 B/ove11th A venue, Folr­
bnnks, AK99701. 

Dr. H'l/llnm n. Wood 
Executive V'~c : • .J.ddent 

Ed/led by Wore/smiths 
1221 Coppet 
F11/rbsnks, AK 99701 

F'lllC llMtd ol DllY:10n 

Ron Nuland, l'rKIClall 
Ner\Md'a llome P11ml.lllln1P 

llWSm.cker,St'C:nt.uy·Truaum 
t'lnl N •llallal 8W. ot t'alrtJankl 

lJan Cllandltt 
t'Undll't Ph1mblnc ' 11011,., 

P1ulG1Yor1 
M&r\l!I Daahl 51«9 

lloOOl llulrnan 
CA!dcl1 Vlllt)' t:tl'Clrlc AMoclallon, llK' 

Walter ScrJtllo 
Arttk f'lnC rl'deral Snlnp It I Mn 

ltaySl""art 
KC.A Alulca Communlc1110111, Inc 

Other long range plans Include a joint venture with the 
University of Alaska Agricultural Sciences Department to. 
study waste heat utilization from pipeline pump stations 
(see related story) and a joint venture with Farmland In· 
Lernational Energy Division of Farmland Industry to 
come up with a proposal to purchase up to 100 per cent of 
the state's royalty gas for agricultural purposes. 

This latter plan would call for construction of a 
petrochemical f ertillzer plant in Alaska nearest to areas 
of greatest usage for the products. The plant first would be 
a topping plant. for the agricultural fuels propane and 
butane, and eventually would expand to producing fuels 
for consumer use. 

!he cooperative was to meet with Gov. Jay Hammond 
this month on a tour of the farmers in the Delta area, and 
already has hosted a U.S. Senate agricultural subcom· 
mittee on a tour of tha state. 

Gelger feels the time is r ight for agriculture to sink its 
roots Into Alaskan soil . 

"Everything seems to be happening all at once " he 
said, noting the pipeline waste heat studlc.~ .' the 
posslblllles for topping plants to make agricultural fuels 
and fertilizer, und the growing interest in securing enough 
land for agricultural uses In the slate. 

" Right now Alaskans Impor t from 96 to 97 per cent of 
their food stuffs." Geiger snld. " We can grow that and 
compete In the market." 

Biz Squibs 
Rod Bouchnrd, vice preslrtent of Energy Company of 

Alnska, has moved from Dallas, Tex. to North Pole with 
his wife Ona. Bouchard will be affiliated wlth the North 
Pole Refinery now under construction ... St10p space Is 
reported 90 per cent lensed In the new Bentley mall under 
construction on Collcige Rond ... Entrles In the 1976-JUn 
Yellow Pages arc expected lo top Inst year's jump or 21 
new pages ... A new business In Fairbanks Is U1e recently 
opened Cord's Custom Upholstery, :113g Davis Road. 
Owner James McCord snys the firm will reupholster 
anything that movcs ... New members or the Fairbanks ln­
dustrlnl Development Corporation are: Alaskn Airlines, 
Alaskn Archltecturnl & Engineering Co., Alasknn 
Resource Scl<'r!ces Corp., Atlantic i'tlchfleld Co., Bnrnes 
Com~nny Hei:ulors, Uenk Consultants, Car r lugton Co .. 
Carr s Quallly Canters, 0 -8 Co., Inc., Engle Creek 
Roadhouse, El Paso Alaskn, Fosler & Mnrshnll , Inc., 
GDM & Associates, Girl Friday, Heat, Inc., Ken .Jern­
strom Co .• Kenworlh Alaska, Inc., K.INP, Life Systems, 
Inc., McCauley's Reprograph lcs, McLce <:onstrucllon 
Co., N.C. Machinery Co., Nntlonnl Electrical Contractors 
Assoc., Northern Television. Polaris Investment Co .. Dr. 
Arnold V. Pflugrad, Inc., Plywood Supply, Inc., Quollly 
Ments, Rice, Hoppner & llcdlnnd, Sotllo Pipeline Co., Dr. 
Arthur J . Schalb1e, lnc., Totem Ocean 't'rnller Express 
Inc.,/ "TOTE," U111versnl Services, Inc .. Yerkes, Street& 
Assoclntes. 



University officials testify during 
U.S. Senate subcommittee visit here 

WashingLon, D.C. came to the University of Alaska, 
Fairbanks recenay for an update on the developing 
agriculture industry. 

The Senate Subcommittee on Agricultural Production, 
Marketing and Stabilization of Prices heard testimony 
urging federal support for cultivallng the industry hert?. 
Speakers included UA President Robert W. Hiatt and Dr. 
James Drew, head of the UA Agricultural Experiment 
Station. 

Hiatt told the visiting federal oCficials, "Alaskans today 
import 95 per cent of the food they consume. The 
significance of this virtually complete dependence on food 
shipped from elsewhere is evident to al Alaskans each 
time they pay the weekly grocery bill." 

Bolh Hiatt and Drew maintained the Cull potential of 
agriculture here will be realized if the industry Is 
developed so il can compete with production in other 
states. Hlall said prices here then will be commensurate 
with prices Jn other areas. 

The president urged federal support to develop resource 
Inventories and economic analyses, to aid farmers and to 
Improve transportation. D1·ew asked Cor federal 
assistance for two specific research proposals. 

Hlatl explained, "Alaska Is at tempting to plan the use of 
enonnous areas of land with a bare m inimum of Informa­
tion about the distribution and behavior of Alaska's soils 
for agriculture, forestry, rangeland and other uses." He 
.asked for Increased support for research and Cor the Soll 
Conflervatlon Service's soil survey. 

Under Improving transportation, Hiatt discussed 
studies made of the feasiblllly of ll11klng the Alaska 
RnUroad to Tanana, Deihl Junction and the Canadian 

Border. He pointed out Increased federal support for 
highway construction also would benefit agricultural 
development. 

Dr . Drew descr!bed two proposed research projects 
aimed at overcoming traditional limitat ions of Alaska 
agriculture. UA Is looking for federal assistance for these 
projects which involve the use of waste heat. 

Drew pointed out there are 8.5 million tillable acres of 
land in Alaska. But only about 17,000 acres are in pro\:uc­
tion. 

He said barley, oats, forages, potatoes and a number of 
other vegetable crops are suited to the soil and climate 
here. Drew added the y ields and quality of these crops 
equal or excell the yields and quality of the same kinds of 
crops grown elsewhere. 

In pursuit of these goals, the UA project would use waste 
heat from pump station nine on the tr ans-Alaska pipeline 
lo dry grain and lo dehydrate and pellet forage in the 
Clearwater-Big Della urea. Also, fish meal , a waste pro­
duct in the fishing industry, would be used as a high pro­
tein supplement in pellets produced for livestock feed. 

Drew explained, " the use of waste heat in these process­
ing operations can provide, for the first time, a means of 
offsetting the cool and somewhat wet harvest seasons that 
have frustrated Alaskan producers of grain and forage In 
the past." 

The second research proposal would test a broad spec­
trum of waste heat application. H is a joint proposal of the 
university and the AJnska Energy Office. 

.Both Hiatt and Drew cmphaslwd Alaska agricul ture 
has the potential of Increasing U.S.1-roducllon significant· 
ly. 

Resolution 77 opens doors 
Following Is the text of Senutc Resolution No. 77, 

perhaps the most Impor tant brcnkthrough for agr lculturul 
development In the history of Alaska. In order lo carry out 
the lnl ent of Resolution 77, 'l'nsk Force 77 was formed, und 
the following lndlvlduuls make up lhe Agriculture Study 
Group 11ppolnled by Gov. Jay llnmmond : 

Cl ) Mr. Jalmar Kerlluln 
(2) Ml'. Paul Huppert 
c:n M r . Waller Kubley 
(4) Mr. Allen Linn 
(5) Dr. James V. Drew 
(6) Mr. Ed Merdes 
(7) M r. Grnydon Nichols 
(8 ) Mr. J3oh Palmer 
(!)) Mr. Roland Snodgruss 

( 10) Dr. Donald Dinkl!I 
( 11) Mr . James G. Palton 

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 11 

Relating to the cstnlJILc;hment of n comprehensive nnd meaningful 
ngrlculturnl policy for the Sia le of Alaska. 
UE IT RESOLVED nv TllE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF 
ALASKA: 

WHEREAS wllhoul a slate policy, boldly set out and strongly backed by 
the prople, the Legislature, nnd the Executive, little can or will be done to 
establish agriculture In Alaska as an economically worthwhile endeavor; 
and 

WHEREAS a sound 11nd sustained agricultural production, processing 
and marketing Industry Is necessary lo the healthy economic life and 
future wcll·belng or Alaska : nnd 

WHEREAS no geogrnphlc entity hns ever attained lasting greatness 
through extractive resource production alone; and 

WHEREAS the agriculture polcnllal or the Grenl land ls perhaps Its 
single most slgntrlcanl prospect ror n stable ruture- n point clearly and 
cmphallcnlly made In three fcderal·state university studies: (1) "Develop· 
menl or New Lands In M~tnnu~ka.Susllna Borough", 1970; 12) " lrrfgallon 

( .. ....... Cll.t ) 
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bankable future, and points out these positives about liv~ 
ing in the north in general and Fairbanks in p·articular: 

Financial picture: There ar~ five commercial banks, 
two savings and loan institutions and one credit union. The 
cost of money here is comparable to that an3rwhere else in 
the United States. 

Employment picture: The unemployrnen•l rate, among 
those able to work, is negligible in Fairbank~ .. 

There are many investment possibilities .in Fairbanks, 
and in the month of August alone the North Star Lvrough 
received 130 applications for business licensus. 

The community has one of the highest per capita educa­
tion~ levels in the country and a large population of pro­
fessional and managerial persons. 

With the improvement of transportation facilities in the 
Corm oC new roads, railroarl spurs, air facilities and 
upgraded warehousing, Fairbanks offers a central and ac­
cessible jumping off point to the whole north. 

Living picture: On the lighter side, there are excep­
'lonal recreation opportunities for persons of all ages in­
side and outside educational institutions. There is also a 
realm of cultural activities from visual to performing 

GOLDEN GRAIN-Barley Is one crop wen-suited to ln· 
lertor Alaska's climate and sou. In fact, experts at the 
University of AJaska DepRrtmcnt of Agricultural Science 
say Alaska's grain products contain more protein than 
their counterparts In the Lower 48. 

Photo by Evan Bracken 

arts, all springing from community involvement, not 
government subsidy. 
Scho~l.s, medical facil.ties, housing and shopping op­

po~tunities ar~ outst~ndmg for a community the size of 
Fairbanks, am. even m 1976, with the wind-down of trans­
AJaska pipeline construction evident, three new shopping 
centers, several new schools, two medical clin!cs and a 
hospital addition are under construction. 

A post pipeline bust? We don't think so. 
Focus North will provide a monthly look at the positive 

side ~f Fairbanks: detailed reports on many of the above 
mentioned areas, an economic barometer Ceatures on the 
Jeisur~ side of lif~ on the last Frontier and~ brief round-up 
of busmess news m the community. 

We hope you enjoy il and will join us in focusing energy 
time and talent on the north. ' 

( cnnu.i ffOlll l'llgl 3 ) 

Potential:;, Tanana kiver Valley, Alaska " 1972; and (3) "Alaska's 
Agricullui·at Potential," 1974; and ' 

WHEREAS, given any one of many possible natu ral 
disasters-·prolonged drought, floods, virulent disease among plants and 
animals, r~treme climatic change, unpredictable weather in the conlincn· 
tal United Slates-Alaska, because it is at the end of the nalion'c: food 
syste"!, would sure er Lile most direct and immediate Impact; and 

WHERE1\S Alaska Is known to have at least 17.5 million acres of tillable 
land, plus at least 10 million more acres of conventional grazing land for 
potentlnl agrlcullurnl use. as well as 100 million acres of land suitable for 
reindeer a11d musk-ox grazing; and 

\\'HEREA<; in the past there has been a lnck of coordination of govern· 
men! progrm ns and policies regarding agriculture: nnd 

WHEREAS Alaska now produces less than five per cent of lhe food it 
cons~mes anuually, agriculture, as a resource management tool, could 
provide a much larger percenlnge or the slnle's basic consumer needs in 
food, Cibcr, luduslrlal raw materials, and aesthetic products at a 
reasonable price; 

BE IT R~;SOI.VED by the Alnska Slate Legislature that the Slate of 
Alaska here.by commits Itself lo an •• t:rlcullural policy lhal encourages and 
pr?motes wise use of Its agricultural base, including, but not limited to the 
fohowlng cours~s or action: 

(I J Thi? state sh.111 promptly determine how best to mnke available land 
for ngrtcullural use. 

(2) Th·e state shall encourage agricultural production, processing and 
marketing through ldenliflc11tlon and use or massive amounts of potenllal· 
ly recyclable waste energy. 

(3J In <·onnectlon with the eornmilmcnt of "in kind" state royalties of oU 
and gas, provision sh:ill be made for the production of reasonably priced 
fertilizer and fuel for local Alaska use. 

(4l The state shall demand lhal nil land ldcnlirled in "Alaska's 
Agricullurnl Potent.I al," 1974, as having llllable agriculture potential be 
removed from D·2 clnssllicatlon, and, In the nalion:il interest, be set aside 
for future agricultural production. 

(5) The slate shall aellvcly encourage the production or phosphate, 
llmcstonc, and fish meal re.'iOurces In Alaska ror use In agricultural pro­
duction. 

(6) The stale shall actively assist In the establlshemnt 11nd financing of 
agriculture processing plants In key agrlcullurnl areas of the stale lo en· 
courage local farm production. 

(7) The slate agencies shall work closely with privntc land owners, 
native regional corporations, village corporat ions, and other management 
organizations lo stlmulato agrlcultural production, processing and 
marketing. 

<Bl The Legislature, In coopcrnllon with the Governor, shall establish a 
task force, composed of representatives of agriculture, business, and con· 
sumer Interests, which shall be responsible for the study of legislative 01>1· 
nlons for Implementing the pollclcs cnunrtntcd In this resolullon. 
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No longer the end of the road 

Highways lead from Fairbanks 
In all of its 586,412 square miles, Alaska has O'lly some 

61200 miles of highways. And that figure incl ides the 
Alaska Marine Highway-traversed by automob les only 
with the help of the state's ferry system. 

The completion in 1975 of the North Slope Haul Road 
marked the first permanent road north of the .i.'ukon 
River, but it is still a private construction road. Even 
when it is turned over to the state i.n mid-1977, the haul 
Road is likely to remain closed to general use for some 
time. <Sec re/;:1led story, p. 4) 

Yet trucking and surface transportation are a viable 
and growing industry in the state. And the highways are 
stretching, straightening and widening to meet Ute 
demands of those who roll on them. 

In 1975, trucking and warehousing in F'airbanks ex­
periencec! the most dramatic growth in the transportation 
industry with employment advancing around 73 per cent, 
according to a mid-year report on the Alaskan Economy 
put out by the Department of Commerce and Economic 
Develop·.nent. 

Thal. growth in the Industry has brought on wear and 
tear to roads, particularly around Fairbanks where 
pipe',ine related traffic was heaviest. The State Depart-

TRANSPORTATION HUB-This Issue or Foe~ North looks al lransporta· 
lion and the many modes that carry goods baclc and rorth In Alaska. Fair­
banks, at the heart or the state, orrers rall, highway, air and combinations 
or these to the North, South and East. 

ment of Highways is asking voters to approve more than 
$53 million in transportation bonds to reconstruct and 
rehabilitate existing routes lo accomodate increasing 
amounts of traffic. 

Commissioner of Highways Hesdon Scougal told a group 
of Fairbanks business persons in September that Ute 
department is asking an additional $70 million from the 
federal government lo upgrade roads aCf ected by pipeline 
impact. 

"We've been building highways for years for everyone 
but ourselves," Scougal said. The Alaska Highway, the 
Richardson, the Glen, the Steese, the Elliott and the Parks 
have taken a terrific beating in the past three years from 
the high priority lramc hauling heavy pipeline equipment. 

The department's five year highway construction pro­
gram for the Interior emphasizes reconstruction of ex­
isting roads lo reduce maintenance costs and upgrade 
roads to meet present and future public demanrls. Some of 
the projects include: 

- Complete reconstruction of ti ll sections of the Steese 
Highway northeast lo Central. A new bypass around Fair­
banks connecting the Richardson Highway and the Steese 
is under construction and is expected to be completed next 
fall; 

- Bringing the entire Elliott Highway up to secondary 
standards within the next five years. This road, connec­
ting with the North Slope Haul R,>ad, was the most severe­
ly impacted by pipeline traffic; 

- Reconstruction or the Alaska l !!ghway uetwecn the 
Canadian Border and Della Junction; 

- Interchanges on the Richardson Highway al No"lh 
Pole and Six Mile; 

- · Replacement of the Pcger Road Bridge In Fairbanks. 
This summer th< ! department completed construction of 

a new interchange at Fairbanks International Airport and 
a new approach lo the University of Alaska. The An· 
chorage to Fairbanks highway has been reconstructed ex­
cept for two short sections, which are included In the five 
year plan. 

The money from the transportation bonds, if they nre 
approved, will be used to fund many of these projects. 

Rolling on these new roads are tracks on dally schedules 

I Cont. on p. 31 
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NORTHERN NETWORK-Extension of the Alaska Railroad to Delta 
Junction and beyond to the Canadian border offers a possible link In a nor· 
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them trans-continental rail network that would tie Alaska to the Lower 48 
states by raU as well as by road, air and sea. 

Alaskan transportation system linked 
to future role railroad will play 

An integral part of the Alaskan transportation system 
are the 5H8 miles of rail stretching from Seward to An· 
chorage to Fairbanks to Eielson Air Force Base. 

Now a federally owned and operated railroad, the 
Ala~ka Railroad Is coming under scrutiny as Alaskans 
look ·~o the future trnnsportation needs of the state and the 
place the rail road can or should takP. in that overall pk· 
lure. 

Historically the railroad has hel) ed to develop the 
railbelt urea along Its tracks. More rt ccntly it has been a 
key factor In the delivery of the huge tcrinage of material 
{or the const.ruclion of the trans-Alaska oll µipciine. 

' 'We successfully met the challenge of pipeline Impact," 
says William Dorcy, general manager of the ARR.. "We 
witnessed our high point in gross revenues, ton miles and 
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employment. " Now the railroad, and the growing number 
of Alaskans who use It, are looking al the challenges of the 
future : lhe winding down or pipeline activity, the promise 
of further mineral dcvelopmenl in the north, the beginn· 
ings of agricultural and timber developmenl in South Ccn· 
Lral and Interior Al.'.lska and the overall development of In· 
dt;.5lry and trnnsporlalion modes-the lifeline to sound 
resource utilization. 

Dorcy, wh'l was visiting Fairbanks Lhis month Lo listen 
to whal business people here had to say about the railroad 
aml the ways It could serve their needs, assumed lite posl· 
lion of general muuuger In April this year. He came to 
Alaska from the mid-west, where he was vice president of 
marketing for the " Katy," the Missouri-Kansas-Texas 
Railroad. Dorcy has a long background in railroading, 
from yard clerk to brakeman to cosl analyst, and has 
worked for the Great Northern, the Soo Linc and the fl. 
llnols Centrnl. 

After several lean years, Dorcy said, Ute Al aska 
Rnllroad wos able to take the profits from the pipeline and 
implement a capital improvements program for the 
r ailroad, leaving the limited Alaska Rail system al pre· 
sent In good working order despite hard use over the past 
lwo years. The question now Is where do we go from here? 

1 'The people of Alaska hnvc to decide If the railroad Is of 
an~ value, lhcn decide whnt to do wlllJ ll.'' Dorcy told the 
boa d of directors of the fi'alrban~ .. l nduslrlal Dcvelop­
mc11t Corpornllon. "I don 't bcllev1.: we should or can Je;:ivc 
It like It ls." 

He met with Ute honrd to gather Fairbanks' opinion on 
stnlus of lhc railroad, the pros and cons of changing thnt 
status to prlvntc enterprise, state ownership, or govern· 
mcnt corpora lion, and !deus for expansion of the railrond . 

1Cont. 011p. 51 



STRETCHING-A new Interchange, above, approaches the University of 
Alaska and connects wlth the Anchorage-Fairbanks Highway. Below, the 
new Steese bypass shoots off the Richardson H'ghway and stretches north 
lo coMed eventually with the Elliott Highway: the route to the North 
Slope. C Photo.( by Jim Truett) 

IDGHWAYS ... 
<Cont . fromp. JJ 

between Anchorage and Fairbanks and on regular 
schedules to remote areas with highway connections. 

Trucking in Alaska has become as normal an operalion 
as trucking anywhere else and rolls 365 days a year. Aside 
from travel on the North Slope where hazardous weather 
and extreme cold make operating more of a challenge, the 
biggest danger on the road these days is traffic, not snow. 

Good equipment, good driver training and the techni­
ques to handle all commodities make surface transport 
just one more link in moving goods in Alaska. Even 
perishable Items hit Fairbanks on the fifty or sixth day 
after they leave Seattle on barge-by air on the same day. 
And with techniques that create a controlled atmosphere 
inside trucks, extra days are added to the shelf life of pro­
duce and meals. 

Like all other aspects of transportation in Alaska, 
trucks are part of intermodal systems. Right now Fair­
banks Is served by three different shipping companies 
sailing from two lo three times weekly out of Seattle, then 
trucking items from Anchorage. Interchangeable con­
taine1·s mean an item might move by barge, rail and truck 
before it reaches its final destination. 

While rates are often a source of complaint, anyone 
shipping things Into Alaska is paying a round trip fare for 
none-way haul With a combination of water and surface, 
however, price and frequency are comparable to anything 
outside. 



Fairbanks meets service/supply challenge 
Fairbanks is the undisputed warehousing capital of lhe 

North since the advent of the trans-Alaska pipeline and 
the investment or millions of dollars in new f actlities. 

The most centrally located cit y in Alaska with conve­
nient transportation lo an area one fifth the size of the 
United States, Fairbanks is the service and supply center 
for the multitude of resource development activitie~ in the 
north. As the take-off point for the haul road to the North 
Slope, the city has an unlimited future substantitated by 
more than $100 million in building permits during the last 
year. IL is now estimated that Fairbanks has more than a 
mil lion square feel of WF ·ehousing space at prices com­
petitive with the major poi t of Anchorage. 

Haul Road 
Policy Statement 

On September 9, 1976, Gov. Jay S. Hammond an­
nounced his decision on use of the North Slope Haul 
Road, lhe private pipeline service road that will be 
turned over to the stale in micf·i977. The haul road, 
constructed Lo service .1e 800-mlle trans-Alaska 
pipeline. is the rlrst and l•nly permanent road north 
of the Yukon River. Following are exct:rpts from the 
Governor's Interim policy statement : 

"Even more than the const ruction oi the pipeline, 
the uses we make of the North Slope Haul Road will 
h.H·e profound effects on the future of our Stale In 
terms or lhc economy, Jund use, wild'l fc, and people. 

''The Interim policy on the Nor.th Slope Hnul Road 
I am announcing has lwo parts. There is a policy for 
access, and there Is a policy for revenues lo meet the 
costs of opening the Haul Hoad. My decision is lhal 
for the short term: the ro.id will he opened just for 
use by Industrial nnd mining Interests much as it Is 
today. We will cxpecl them lo pny for the use of the 
road, just as they do today ... 

.. ... We are lnvcstlgnling various ways of making 
user charges. ·r11ey include: reimbursement 
agreements ; fees, license, or l ax<..s imposed on 
business or Industr ial hlghwny users ; negotiate the 
removal of portions of the Haul Road from the 
F'edernl Highwny System so direct chorges may l>e 
made; seeking Congressional action lo permit im­
posi llon of direct charges on those who use the Haul 
Road ... 

"'l'o completely open th~ rood now would remove 
all opt ions for the future because once opened we 
would likely never be nhlc to modify that access ... 

"This decision Is an lnle1·1m policy for tho short 
term. ll will he In effect unlit the peak Industrial 
demnnds for the rond ha\'e subsided and until the 
Land Use Planning Comn.lsslon nnd locol govern­
rner:!s huve developed 11 rnll<1t111I plnn Cm· the sound 
and profiluble management ot 'itule und Federal 
lands In the nren nffcclcd by the ro:tl' •· 

A prime example of the multitude of new warehousing 
facilities in the Fairbanks area spawned by the pipeline ls 
North Star Terminals. Some fourteen buildings stand in a 
little over 133 acres in the developing industrial park. 
These range from small 2,000 ft. cu:-vette-type buildJngs to 
three large 60,000 square foot Alyeska Pipeline Service 
Company buildings. Some accomodate mini storage uni ls. 
A large new office building is an attractive 9ddition to the 
complex. 

The office building is the latest park unit, and, like other 
buildings in the park, is made of metal. The fact that il 
was er~cted through the winter and in just nine months 
proves that Fairbanks' limited construction season ls 
definitely a phenomenon of the past. Construction of the 
metal buildings can be carried on at tempertures of 40 
below and colder. Year-round c:mstruclion capability is a 
major factor in lowering the costs of construction in Fair­
banks. It means a much shorter amortization period and 
prices calculated lo attract industry to the heart of 
Alaska. 

According to the president of North Star, lnc., Chuck 
Recs, more office buildings and continued development of 
the industrial park are in the immediate future. He said 
the park is Ideal for relait-wholesalr .ype businesses 
wh ich deal in commercial trade and equfre convenienl 
parking areas. 

/\ North Star motel is planned with a minimum of 120 
units, a swimming pool and other recreational facil llies lo 
serve semi-permanent employes in Fairbnnks such as 
salesmen and others who need a local base of operations. 

North Stnr is one of several facilities that have grown up 
in recent years to Sl!rve a variety of Industries operating 
In lnter i'll", North Slope and South Coast Alaska. Business 
people n~ w have a choice among desirable locations ror 
their operational and service headquarters. 

North Star Terminals nnd other facil ities are JrJcaled 
nenr major highways and truck routes ; Metro Airfield Is 
close by as is the Tanana River- navigable by barge: and 
"lorlh Slur has invested In 14,000 lineal feel of track lo br· 
111g n railroad spu1· lnlo the park . 

1 f air Is a prime mode of sup;>ly transport, Fairbanks 
hns tiOOd warehousing facil ities adjacent lo its lnlcrna· 
lional airport. These fncillies also arc served by an ex­
cellent newly completed highway link l o the Anchornge· 
li'alrhanks highway, lo downtown Fairbanks and to the 
11 lghways leading north, easl and south of the city. 

Of parlicular Importance to Fairbanks is the amount of 
prime land available for incluslrlal development In the 
soulh Industrial area, 7,000 ctcres arc available for l ight 
and heavy Industrial use with <1mplc aggregate for 
IJ11ilcllng uml buckhaul. 'I'hls acreage is unbroken by 
residential or other development and ls in llle proximity of 
air, rail , wuter and highway lrnnsporlallon. 

'l'he lnnd also Is contiguous to the North Pole refinery 
and the Golden VRl lcy l!.:lcclrlc Association's new power 
plant. assuring now an ndcquate energy supply . 

The prospect for resource development as \A' .. ll as ser ­
vice and supply acllvlllcs In the F'alrlJanks area has never 
been hrlghlcr. 



Air carriers continue to play 
major role in Alaska transportation 

Transportation is the most important industry in Alaska 
and always will be because of the size of the state, says an 
individual involved in one of the vital areas of Alaskan 
transportation-air. 

In a land where the frontier was pushed back by daring 
bush pilots rather than wagon drivers on the ground, air 
transport continues to take t'1e place of roads and surface 
transportation of goods to most of the area lying north or 
the Yukon River and in many other areas of the state. 

Air transportation has enhanced development in remote 
areas, has made life easier for the people who live in those 
areas and has changed completely the r.onstruction pic­
ture in Northwest Alaska by extending the time of con­
struction with fast material deliveries. 

RAILROAD ... 
<Cont. fromµ. 2J 

tor in order lo get a consensus among the people who ac­
tually use the railroad, "Aflct· a ll ," Dorcy pointed out, 
"the original purpose of the railroad was to develop 
Alaska." 

He also stressed lhal lhe railroad is ony one part or a 
whole transportation system. ''We can no longer look at 
meeling transportation needs by r ailroad or plane or 
truck or barge. We have to look nl an intermodal system 
using all means o{ transportation,' ' he said. 

Barges, trucks and planes nre partly compelltion for the 
raUroad. Dorcy said, but they also create business for Lhe 
railroad. ' 'You put all the services together to make the 
best packngc ror the user.'' 

Fred 'folan, a Senltle-onscd truffle consullnnt to F1DC, 
told lhe group it should consider a three-pronged progrnm 
for the railroad: <I > gel ling better !muling for the AHR to 
put it In to service condition and keep It there ; 12> nchiev­
lng a more visible presence of the ARR in Fairbanks, 
perhaps by making Fairbanks <1 cotermlnnl operations 
fncility; and c:n determining where the Alnskn Railrond 
should go in terms of exp1111sion to do n better job Cor h1· 
lerior. North Slope, Northwest 11nd Soulh Co~sl Alaska. 

'l'he obvious first step Is an extension from Fnir­
hanks- Elclson to Delta .Jundlon-Forl Greely. This would 
require upgrading or Lile 22·mile Fulrbnnks lo Elelson J\ir 
l"orcc Bnse section and a 72-mllc ex tension from Elclson 
to the I'.elln .Juncllon-F'orl Greely nrcn. It would serve lm­
port~nl national defense needs as well us 11gricul turc, 
limber, mining and possible petrochemica l development 
requirements foreseen In that urea. 

Thal extension also would be a step on the way lo 
meeting the Canudiun ruil system, crealing a vast nor· 
thcrn network linking Alaska hy rnll, ns well ns by sea, nlr 
Md highway. Lo the rest or the United States. 

Despite weather conditions that defy practically all but 
hardy dog-mushers, Alaska pilots fly every day of the 
year from Fairbanks International Airport. Technic,11 
support for aviation Is some of the best in the world, and 
Fairbanks boasts the mechanic who won the national 
award for best aviation mechanic. 

Alaska has air service for everything from bulk fuel to 
small packages, flown In airplanes from graceful 180's 
and Twin Otters, to intermediate DC 3's and DC 6's which 
can haul whole sections of modular buildings in their 
holds. 

Indeed there are dozens of air taxi, charter, passenger, 
air freight and commercial airlines that operate out of 
Fairbanks to all points in Alaska-and around the world. 
Add to that the skills of the sta te's bt~sh pilots and there is 
no trip about which one can say "you can't get there from 
here," whether it's a remote construction site or a hidden 
lake where the fishing is great. 

Even though construction of lhe North Slope Haul Road 
has made accssible by road areas that never were before, 
air transport will continue to play a major role In Alaskan 
transportation. Conlinued development on the North 
Slope, particularly in villages which do not wish to be con­
nected lo the mainstream by roads, wlll require services 
that only air can provide: transportation of construction c 
ulpment and materials for building schools, homes and 
meet Ing facilities. 

Jim O'Sullivan. administrative vice president or AtasKn 
lnlernatl .>nal Air, a Fairbanks based compAny which 
made aviation history daily during the beginning of 
pipeline construction. predicts that with developments In 
Nnlive corporations and construction in remote villages, 
there will he more air service out of villages as well as into 
them. with more operators basing their headquarters In 
tho bush and flying bet.ween vil lages. 

I l e said AIA has recognized the downturn that would 
come with the advent of the road, but believes nit· will 
become more and mere economical w'th construction of 
larger nnd longer runwuys and aviallon technology that 
ullows for bigger and bigger craft. 

Combining this technology wllh lntennodal methods of 
trunsportation to provide the most economical tm1-mllc 
for the shipper paints a bright future for 1\ luskan nir 
transport. 

An exmnplc of this Is the rail spur at Fnirbanks lntcrna­
llonal Ah'port. Built al ALA request, the spur hns con­
tributed lo enchancing Fairbanks lnternatlonn l ns n 
dlslrlhutlon center. with curgo origfnnllng 111 Fairbanks 
Instead of Anchorage or elsewhere. 

"The ll ,insportnllon Industry Is very lnbor Intensive, It 
t'l'Nltcs J 1bs, It's un environmentally good Industry. It Is 
lmpcn1ti 1c that wc do anything wc can to focus nllcntlon 
011 Foirl nnks as a dlslrlbullon center for the North." 
O'SulllvH ., SHI<!. 
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FAIRBANKS TELEPHONE DIRECTORY, 1970-1976, 

BUSINESS CATEGORIES LISTED I N YELLOW PAGES 

Year Number 
Percent of 
Increase 

1970 756 Ba se 

1973 855 13 . 10 

19.77 1976 1,024 

Ove rall Increase 
1970-1976 268 35.45 

Biz Squibs 
Construction on an $8 

million addition to Fair­
banks Memorial Hospital is 
20 per cent complete, with 
projected completion date 
for the project set next 
fnll ... Progrcss continues on 
three new shopping mulls In 
F'alrbanks , with th e 
HICKEL MALL on Airport 
and University ul 50 per cent 
complete and the rlrsl occu­
pant set lo move in M11rch I ; 
the BENTLEY MALL oo 
College Roncl is 50 per cent 
ri nishecl, with shop s 
scheduled lo move in March 
15, and Lhe acldilion or LA­
MONT'S lo the MARKET 
DASKET Mull on Airport 
nnd Cowles wil l open in Spr­
ing or '77 ... Construclion in 
the public sector Is moving 
nlong as well, with u 
November '77 target finish 
dnle ror the mulll-mlllion 
dollar rcderul huildinit on 
Gnrrney ... Othcr new rnces in 
Fairbanks Include u 'l'EAM 
ELECTRONICS store on 
Airporl Road, three new 24· 
hour grocery stores- Quik 
Stop, 13ng Boy nnd Dox 
Boy- bringing lo rive lhc 
total or nil nicht stores, and 
lwo new rcstnurnnls, Aug­
gle's nnd Burger King ... 1976 

was a good year for start·up 
In new small businesses, 
with nearly a hundred 
licenses issued in fields from 
construction lo advertising 
l o air lo arts and 
crarts ... Some old businesses 
arc moving into new 
quarters ... l"lrsl National 
Bank or Fairbanks cxpan· 
ding ils present space, 
Ca rrrn l ion· M cndowmoor 
Dairies Into now qunrlers, 
Gelger Heally into n new 
building on Univer sit y 
Avenue, Alusku National 
Onnk or the North into n new 
henrlquurlers building, and 
the Opcrnling Engineers, 
Culinary and Teamsters 
Unions Into new buildings 
and the Laborers nncl Elec· 
lrical Engineers building 
and r emodeling their 
halls ... Thc new Golden 
Valley Electric Assoclulion 
generating plant in North 
Pole Is ready lo go on line 
next month, ndding 70,000 
l<W to Fairbanks' power 
supply ... The diesel turbine 
generators will be followed 
next yenr hy nn oddillon or 
nenrly the sanw urnount or 
gcncrnllon capaci ty al the 
plant . 


